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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
(Appointed as Chairman on 8 December 2016)
Mr. BAl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (Appointed on 12 April 2017)
Mr. LIU Jinghong (Appointed on 12 April 2017)
Mr. XU Jihua
(Resigned as Executive Director and Chairman on
8 December 2016)
Mr. MA Baofeng (Retired on 23 June 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. XING Zhiying

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. XING Zhiying

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)

Mr. XING Zhiying

Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 21 July 2016)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Resigned on 21 July 2016)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Chairperson)

Mr. XING Zhiying

Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 21 July 2016)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Resigned on 21 July 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing
Mr. BAl Tao (Appointed on 21 July 2016)
Ms. WANG Jianfei (Resigned on 21 July 2016)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF THE
GROUP’S SUBSIDIARIES IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1303, 13th Floor, China Evergrande Centre
No. 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th F1., Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road

PO. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110,

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Minsheng Bank Corp., Ltd
China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd

STOCK CODE
00866

WEBSITE

http:/www.ginfagroup.com
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEBEER AT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last  ANEBRBET AN HREEHNELE  BE - BE
five financial years is set out below REDBENT
RESULTS 4
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE “T-1f —T-mF —F-=F - S
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note) (Note) (Restated) (Restated)
(M) (M) (&E5]) (15531
Turnover EXE 716,187 1,414,524 6,488,279 10,830,133 11,085,285
Gross profit/(loss) 7,/ (£R) 36,503 (706,918) (190,400) 1,083,016 1,513,379
Results from operating activities N E ES 319,922 (7,689,352) (641,619 524,902 924,486
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEH (B1B)/ 5H (127,033) (8,037.702) 1, 77 656) (14,605) 452,268
Income tax (expense)/credit E% (%), #4% (189,694) 1,105,525 (114,657) (121,475) (119118)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (F8),/ 57 (316,727) (6,932.177) (1292,313) (136,080) 333150
(Loss)/profit attributable to: fElk (B518),/ 57 -
Equity shareholders of the Company REERBEA (330,542) (6,011,184) (1,183,426) (247765) 257748
Non-controlling interests FifiER 13,815 (920,093) (108,887) 11,685 75,402
(316,727) (6,932,177) (1,292,313) (136,080) 333,150
Coal handling and trading volume (000 tonnes)  RREEREHE (TH) 2123 3,952 15,935 24,034 22,093
Note: The results of the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were [fiiF : HE-E—AFER-_E-—NF+-_A=1+—H
presented on a combined basis of the Group from both continuing and WWFEEZEETNIREHAER 2 HERLEND

discontinued operations.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZZEEER AT @

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IR
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERES
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE| ZE—RHF —=E—mOF == —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARETF T ARETT AR®ETFT ARETT
Total assets BERE 5,662,432 | 5,310,782 14,881,169 18,546,277 18,186,687
Total liabilities BEMBE (10,583,739)| (9,940,178) (12,514,827) (14,855,639) (14,298,021)
Total (deficit)/equity (E54t) e 4ag (4,921,307)| (4,629,396) 2,366,342 3,690,638 3,888,666

Note:

GEE

1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 1. ARBR-FTENF=ANBARHSESEMMK

and became the holding company of the Group with effect from 12 June
2009 upon completion of certain reorganisation steps as set forth in the

prospectus of the Company dated 19 June 2009 (the “Prospectus”).

Mo ARRBEHAZZTZEAFANATNENER
B ((BRER)) EinE TEALSRTKIE
ARBR_ZZFANFANAT BB EEEZER

NS
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEBEER AT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FREBES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Qinfa Group” or the “Company”), |
hereby present the annual result of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CUTTING PRODUCTION CAPACITY AND
CONTROLLING PRODUCTION VOLUME-KEY WORDS
OF CHINA'S COAL INDUSTRY IN 2016

The coal industry has been in excess production capacity with
decreasing coal price and the utilisation of the production capacity
has been far lower than the normal level since 2011. The national goal
is to cut production capacity by approximately 800 million tonnes in
the future 3-5 years. As such, the four ministries including Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security and the Central Bank launched
various ancillary policies to strictly control the credit investment in
outdated capacity and establish proprietary incentive funds of RMB100
billion, which policies are the most useful to cut capacity. In 2016,
the coal production capacity of Shanxi reduced 143 million tonnes as
compared to last year, representing a decrease of 14.7%, and the total
reduced capacity was 47.7% of the national reduced coal production
volume of 300 million tonnes.

The coal price increased rapidly in the previous three quarters as a
result of margin supply gap due to production curtailment. The 276
working days restriction policy in late March was allowed to extend to
330 working days by National Development and Reform Commission in
early October for eligible coal mines to operate in the heating season
of the fourth quarter, resulting in the coal price decreasing slightly
from a top level. Although the moderate increased coal price and
improved profits contribute to the results of the Group, the demands
for coal continued decreasing as a result of the slowdown of the macro
economic growth. Furthermore, the coal price has decreased for
many years and the gearing ratio of coal enterprises are high, so such
contribution can't change the weakness of many years and the industry
remains in a difficult situation. Therefore, the Group should conduct its
businesses with caution.

In 2016, against the backdrop of cutting industrial capacity, the Group’s
coal operation and trading volume continued to decrease as compared
to 2015. Under the difficult operating environment, the Group has
always been persisting in its position and taken more cautious response
measures according to situations on a timely basis.

) Annual Report 2016 —Z—<"FFHK
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PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF GROUP’S COAL BUSINESS
AND SHIPPING BUSINESS IN THE PRC

As the coal business and shipping business in the PRC have uncertain
prospects and their losses have affected the operation and financial
activities of the Group, the Company, after cautious consideration
and discuss and in the best interests of the stakeholders, intended to
dispose of the Group’s coal business and shipping business in the PRC,
and retain international shipping business that can bring steady cash
flows, so as to improve the financial position of the Group and more
effectively use all kinds of resources.

SEIZING OPPORTUNITIES AND OPTIMISING
PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION AND SALES
TO ACHIEVE IMPROVED MECHANISM THROUGH
COMPREHENSIVE COOPERATION IN ALL RESPECTS

The market changes rapidly. To seize the opportunities resulted from the
changing demand for coal and increase in the coal price, the Group held
communication meetings every week for main departments including
production, transportation and sales departments. Each department
mutually provided support and collaboration and timely adjusted
the strategy of production, transportation and sales to seize market
opportunities in advance, leading to realise goals as scheduled and
even better than expect.

For the coal production, the production department reports production
plan on a monthly basis, sets indicators of cost and profit, specifies
appraisal, reward and punishment, effectively controls costs, and
balance the relationship between production and costs to guarantee
the production capacity upon the rebound of the coal price;

For the coal logistics, the Group actively strengthens the transportation
and storage management, implements effective connecting system,
reduces losses, and implements quality punishment system;

For sales of coal, the Group places great emphasis in the investigation
of clients’ creditworthiness, takes flexible marketing strategy and
communicates in time, and also strengthens the management of
receivables;

Strengthening the management and control of logistics, market and
finance involved in the operation, optimising the group organisation
structure and improving its internal control system, the Group believes
that these relevant measures can optimise the organisation structure,
enhance its production capacity, update its service and generate a novel
operation situation.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FTEHRESE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHEE

As one of the key areas of supply-side structural reform, the coal
industry’s priority next year remains to cut excessive capacity. Under
the changing operational environment, the Group is used to developing
and seeking opportunities amidst difficult situations. We are brave
enough to analyse the situations and seize opportunities, dare to find
out problems and bear the responsibility, and are willing to conduct
constant self-examination and encourage innovation.

DEEPENING REFORM, ACHIEVING BREAKTHROUGH
OF TRANSFORMATION AND OVERPACING TO
REALISE THE GROUP’S SPIRIT FOR OVERCOMING
DIFFICULTIES

The Group believes that the market will remain changing in the coming
year. The Group will constantly persist in its position, remain united,
consolidate the foundation, make an improvement, and realise its goal
for the coming year with caution:

- explore a comprehensive operating model covering internet, futures
trading and logistics platform, complementary to the existing coal
business, to improve the value of the platform;

- work hard toward the annual plan of the Group’s coal business
and shipping business in the PRC, no matter the disposal of such
businesses will be completed or not, and conduct safe, effective
and refined production;

- seize opportunities in the coal market and focus on exploring the
profitability, striving to improve the result in 2017 through cautious
layout and operation.

Finally, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
thanks to the board of directors and all shareholders, management,
employees and business partners who have supported the Group
for years. With your great support, it is believed that the Group can
successfully overcome this difficult period and create more value for
the stakeholders.

Xu Da
Chairman
31 March 2017
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIRZZEEER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading non-State owned thermal coal supplier in
China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain, including coal
mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending and shipping
transportation business. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group continued to focus on these business activities and expanded its
integrated coal supply chain through upward vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Proposed disposal of the Group’s coal business and shipping
business in the PRC

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 14 July 2016,
the Group has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Bo Hai
Investment Limited for the proposed disposal. Save for the condition
relating to the approval of the independent shareholders to the entry
of the agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder at an
extraordinary general meeting that had been fulfilled, some conditions
precedent as described in the circular of the Company dated 26 October
2016 have not been fulfilled. As additional time is required to fulfill
some conditions precedent and negotiate with third party financial
institutions in respect of the fulfillment of the outstanding conditions
precedent, the parties to the agreement agreed to further extend the
long stop date for satisfying the outstanding conditions precedent to 30
April 2017.

While we see a moderate recovery in coal prices and some signs that
profit is improving, there are still uncertainties in market factors. The
slowdown in the growth of macro economy has resulted in a declining
coal demand. Our shipping business in the PRC is also challenging.
Losses may affect the direction of business and capability of finance
of the Group in the future. Upon prudent consideration and acting in
the best interests of the shareholders, the Company intends to dispose
both the Group’s coal business and shipping business in the PRC, while
retaining the international shipping business which can bring a stable
cash flow, in the hope of improving the financial condition of the Group,
reducing costs and bringing more flexibility in resource allocation.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEBEER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WA

As of 31 December 2016, the Group owned and operated five coal mines
in the PRC. The table sets forth certain information about these coal

RIZE—RF+-A=+—H AEEETE%E
BREETERE - TRESBEZFREOE

mines. TFEE} o
Operation
Note Location Ownership Site area status
P EE b:uk BEBEIL HE EEARR
(sq. km)
(FHTFK)
Huameiao Energy 1,2 Shuozhou 80% 4.3 Under operation
- Xingtao Coal Shanxi giEs
EXRpER — HERE L 7E AN
Huameiao Energy 1,3 Shuozhou 80% 2.4 Under operation
- Fengxi Coal Shanxi gE
EXRER - BARE L 7E AN
Huameiao Energy 1,4 Shuozhou 80% 2.9 Under operation
- Chongsheng Coal Shanxi EER

EXRER — RIHEE L 78 RN

Xinglong Coal 1,5,6 Xinzhou 100% 4.0 Under development

S Shanxi FE

L 8
Hongyuan Coal 1,57 Xinzhou 100% 4.1 Under operation
N EYEE S Shanxi (Temporarily
LT suspended)
giEH
(ERE=)

Notes: MfsE -

(1) The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to (1) AEEZRFE— ”%“3%\*6)%%@?52ﬂ*ET%JOREQ—rE'J
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as of 30 June 2016 in BHR T NFAA=TRAMBRREHEE
accordance with the JORC Code. For the period from 1 January 2016 to RRERE - BT —<"F—A—_HBE_T—
30 June 2016, there was no material change in total coal reserves and Ei/_\)j = HJt;;EFHEJHﬁE ' %@j{%mﬁgiﬁﬁ@ﬁ
resources. The total coal reserves and resources as of 31 December 2016 RERENBEALS - R_F—A"F+_A=
were derived from the estimated figures after deducting the raw coal T HMRRREE RRRRERE HEMER
production for the period from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2016. T—RFtH 75/@;?::%17/_\%%+:/ =t+—

HIFBEREESREBGABFRMED -

(2) The production capacity for Xingtao coal mine of Huameiao Energy is 1.5 (2) i%@ﬁaﬁ/;ﬁﬁgﬂg9’\]@%&%/%”7,%51 .500,000
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget (excluding coal WE - iR AR s AR H380,000,0007 (T8
washing plant) of RMB380 million. The construction was commenced in = ‘/fk%ﬂﬁ) ’ :%___i‘f’ﬂ Eﬂ;ﬁﬁj’ %Zf::
October 2011. As of 31 December 2016, the accumulated actual investment TAFT-A=F—H RAABRRAEARE
was RMB380 million. The construction of Xingtao coal mine and coal 380,000,0007T EHRBERAKBERL -
washing plant was completed and delivered a capacity of 1.5 million tonnes X ERE1,500,000MF ©

per year.

) Annual Report 2016 —Z—<"FFHK



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEEER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERWEDN

(3) The production capacity for Fengxi coal mine of Huameiao Energy is 0.9  (3) ZEEBRRSHEENELHE AT 00,000
million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget of RMB400 WA 43R & T E A AR #400,000,0007C © —F
million. The construction was commenced in September 2011. As of ——FNARTEZR -HE= 2—7\¢+ A=
31 December 2016, the accumulated actual investment was RMB397 +—HB - 2 EBRRE ARK397,000,0007T °
million. The construction of Fengxi coal mine and coal washing plant was E’é:%—ﬂli—ﬂ —+— B BN
completed on 21 January 2014 and delivered a capacity of 0.9 million B¥T - BFEKESFER00,000M -

tonnes per annum.

(4) The production capacity for Chongsheng coal mine of Huameiao Energy is  (4) IEZEBRERETHETE
0.9 million tonnes per annum, with a total investment budget of RMB391 W BMIREEER ,OO0,000TE S E
million. The construction was commenced in September 2011. As of 31 —— 4 ; AN

December 2016, the accumulated actual investment was RMB392 million.

The construction of the coal mine and coal washing plant was completed, T o 4T M Y R T fE'EE @%I fﬁkiﬁﬁﬁ
delivering a capacity of 0.9 million tonnes per annum. It has commenced 900,000 - —T—HF—A=+—HBZKE °

operation on 21 January 2014.

(5) The Group completed the establishment of two companies, Xinglong (5) M- ZT—=4F F¥ &  KNEBRY TEHEREZR
Coal and Hongyuan Coal, both wholly-owned by Shenchi Shenda Energy RIREEME AR - ZMFR D Bl F 48 B s
Investment Co., Ltd. during the first half year of 2013. EREEERATIZEHRE -

(6) The production capacity for Xinglong coal mine is 0.9 million tonnes per  (6) H[EHEIEAE R IFE BT F00,0000F - KR E
annum, with a total investment budget of RMB348 million. The construction JBEE & AR ¥348,000,0007T :?*:E +=
was commenced in December 2012. As of 31 December 2016, the ARAIEZ H#E-_Z—XRFt+-_A=1+—8"
accumulated actual investment was RMB253 million. The development has 2 ERIRE ARE253,000,0007T © fEDE
been suspended and pending for further investment. EhEFE—FIEE -

(7) The production capacity for Hongyuan coal mine is 0.9 million tonnes per  (7) RRBEEAEFRIFE BT FE00,0000F @ 2R E
annum, with a total investment budget of RMB446 million. The construction FEE A AR ®446,000,0007T ° :%?*Eii H
was commenced in March 2013. As of 31 December 2016, the accumulated IR HE2—_ZT—X"F+-_A=+—H" 2
actual investment was RMB329 million. The operation has been suspended FEERIEE ARKI29,000,0007T » LED E(Z
pending for further investment. NFRE— IR E o

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B

Characteristics of the commercial coal produced by the Group’s 7 £ ] ) A A R A T O 7 2 I B T

operating mines are as follows:

Huameiao

Huameiao Huameiao Energy -
Energy - Energy - Chongsheng
Xingtao Coal Fengxi Coal Coal
EXRER EXRER EXRER

Coal Quality Characteristic RERE —EgEE - R - RARE

Seam jEs 4 9 9

Moisture (%) K5 (%) 913-1211% 2.07-2.90% 8.70-11.84%

Ash (%) K5 (%) 21.07-29.94%  18.36-30.42%  21.25-23.85%

Sulfur (%) SHRE(%) 0.76-1.81% 0.31-0.84% 1.78-2.40%

Volatile Matter (%) BENZE(%) 21.96-27.49%  19.90-29.49%  27.54-28.88%

Energy Content (MJ/kg) BaE CkER /Tr) 17.30-18.13 17.08-22.03 20.36-22.25
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WA

OPERATING DATA BEHE
Reserves and Resources BERSEE
Huameiao Huameiao Huameiao
Energy - Energy - Energy -
Xingtao Fengxi  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal Total
EXR EXR EXR
R - R - B8R -
FMEE BEE% SRR AR REEE o
Reserves e
Reserves as of BE2-T-"%-A-H
1January 2016 (Mt) MiES (REH)
- Proven reserves -EhRREE 6313 1719 3010 22.49 3016 163.07
- Probable reserves - HEtEE 12.26 2743 19.51 9.53 117 69.90
Total reserves as of 1 January 2016 (Mt) BZ-F—7~F—A—H
MEfs (B0 75.39 44,62 49,67 32.02 31.33 232.97
Less: Total raw coal production A ERRRBES (BEI)
for the year (M) (0.62) (0.72) (080) naTER  naTER (2.04)
Less: adjustment (Note) R (M) - (0.04) 002 nat@EB  naTER 0.06)
Reserves as of BE-Z-~E+-A=t-H
31 December 2016 (Mt) HHE (FEM) 7497 43.86 48,69 32.02 31.33 230.87
Resources BRE
Resources as of HE-Z—E-A-H
1 January 2016 (Mt) MERE (FEM) 111.94 69.09 73.70 45.96 4178 342.47
Less: Total raw coal production - ERNRE
for the year (Mt) BEE (BEH) (0.53) (0.96) (1200 naMER  na @R (2.69)
Less: adjustment (Note) i % (B3 (0.06) 0.14) 01 nat™ER  natER (0.31)
Resources as of BE-E-"E+-R=1-H
31 December 2016 (Mt) WERE (BEM) 111.35 67.99 72.39 45.96 4178 339.47
Note: The adjustment of total coal reserves and resources represents the  Mfsf : BERHEEREKREREZALIENR T —
difference between the estimated figures for the period from 1 January NF—A—HE-_ZT—R"FAA=Z1+HEHEZ
2016 to 30 June 2016 and the estimation of an independent mineral et B F B VIEEREM AN - —NEX
industry consultant as at 30 June 2016. A=+RZEF0ERE -
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The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at the  [NXRI|R MEBAFREEN S EES L

abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=T—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
(’000 tonnes) | (000 tonnes)
Raw coal production volume BEES (Fmg) (Fmg)
Huameiao Energy - Xingtao Coal EXHALR — BfFEE 417 452
Huameiao Energy - Fengxi Coal EFERAER - BEEE 722 545
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EERRER — SR 905 445
Total BT 2,044 1,442
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-hF
(’000 tonnes) | (000 tonnes)
Commercial coal production volume (Note) BMEEEE (M) (Fmg) (Fm8)
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal EXRE R — ERHE 271 294
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal ERRR — BAEE 469 354
Huameiao Energy - Chongsheng Coal EXHER - SHAEE 588 289
Total Bzt 1,328 937
Note: Per the competent person's report issued on 30 September 2011, 31 K& : RER_-_F——FAA=t+H - —F—=
May 2013 and 25 July 2016, the volume of commercial coal produced by EA=1t—H &i::g—i_:flz‘tﬂ —thHA%
Huameiao Energy is calculated by a yield rate of 65% raw coal. FMEBRMATRE - EXREREENRD
B LA R 65 % AT E o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses Bix - AR BARER
The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses consist of AEB/EE - HELAFEZEHEBSEUA TS -
the following amounts:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2016 2015

—E—-XRE —E-.E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETF T

Materials and consumables Yk KBRS 32,489 45,833

Staff cost BITRA 54,103 139,185

Other direct cost HAF B 33,442 37,453

Overhead and others A o HAth 106,259 193,776

Evaluation fee FHE 1,321 2,455

Total st 227,614 418,702
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt %5 2] B8

Revenue A

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Revenue from continuing and discontinued operations & B 1548 Jé 5 48 FAF & 2 78690 A 2016 2015

—E-XF| —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

Coal business R TS 608,469 1,220,485

Shipping transportation fiEEs 107,718 156,722
Port business BOER

(reclassified as discontinued operation) (EFD A RIEEEER) - 37,317

Year ended 31 December

Coal business HRET BE+-A=+—HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
T T
Coal Handling and Trading Volume of Coal Business [EREBHEREEREFE 2,123 3,952

) Annual Report 2016 —Z—<"FFHK



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEEER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the volume of the Group’s
coal handling and trading recorded a 46.3% decrease as compared with
2015. The monthly average coal selling prices during the year ended 31
December 2016 were in range between RMB88 per tonne and RMB626
per tonne, which were more fluctuated when compared to the range

B WEDH

HEZZT—R"F+A=1+—HLEFE "
—hAFRAL  AEBNEREERBEZERD
46.3% c REIZZZE—R"F+A=T—HLF
?Wmﬂii’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ}\ﬁﬁ%%ﬁi
FHEARE6267T - —HRENTFTEEAR

/\—?

between RMB206 per tonne and RMB354 per tonne in 2015. MZO6EiH¢EAE”ﬂ§354EE’j$BE$H Lt o R IE
EKXe
The average coal selling price and the coal handling and trading volume #HZE—-ZE—XE+-_A=+—HILt=E&@AF
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2016 are set forth inthe & @ FHERHEEBREEREENRE FH S
table below ISENE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLHFE
2016 2015 2014
—EB—XF —E-hF —PF
Average selling price (RMB per tonne) FEHER (FEARET) 287 309 395
Average monthly handling and FHEBAKER
trading volume (000 tonnes) Z58 (FH) 177 329 1,328

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the PRC
domestic markets to customers, including power plants, cement plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in the
coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for use in the
combustion processes to produce steam for power and heat. Cement
plants consume coal as primary fuel in their production process. The
following table sets forth information regarding the Group’s revenue
from coal business by industry segment during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015:

AREE G E (2 B BB AT IS RE R R ECR
BREETHER KEBMERREZIAEEFS -
AEBEFPZHUNTELBILE - FEREKE
R ARIERRE  WEERIAREERHE
2o MARBEEBEPOHTEMRHBERK - T
RJIAKERBE-_ZT—RNFLR-_FT—OF+
A=t BIEFERITED A& D MR R EH
WARIEFY -
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
ZE-RE —hF
Percentage of Percentage of
Revenue total revenue Revenue total revenue
L ON IEHBIA
L/ON WEZH WA BWBE DL
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T (%) ARETT (%)
Power plants HER 199,329 32.8 273,611 22.4
Coal traders BXE 5% 396,042 65.1 502,924 41.2
Cement plants and others* 7K Bk & E b * 13,098 2.1 443,950 36.4
Total “REt 608,469 100.0 1,220,485 100.0
*  Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers. *  HErEHEAAEAREIRMEER o
Shipping transportation FiEE R
The segment revenue for shipping transportation from external HZE_-_ZT—XE+_-_A=+—HIFFEEZRKEBINEB
customers for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB107.7 million & F /)fniE & & 2BU A B AR B107,700,000
as compared with RMB156.7 million for the same period in 2015. The £ MZ-—Z — A FE R A A E#¥156,700,000
Group has recorded 31.3% decline in shipping transportation revenue 1 o REBNEEH I ASEE31.3% N @ =
principally because of disposal of two chartering vessels during the  ERAERXNHEMMEAHPTEL ©
year.
Port business Y YmE-y 3
The Group disposed of its equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., REER-_ZT—FRFN\A+HLEEERKEGR

Limited on 7 August 2015. After that Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co., Limited

BHAERRA 72&% 1%

WERBEEHAR

ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The Group’s port business
has discontinued and the revenue and result of port business have not
been recognised in the Group’s revenue and result since then.

) Annual Report 2016 —Z—<"FFHK
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales from continuing operations of the Group in 2016 amounted
to RMB679.7 million, representing a decrease of 66.9% compared with
RMB2,053.9 million in 2015. The decrease was due to the fall in coal
handling and trading volume during the year of 2016.

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business segment:

B WEDH

SHERAK
AEBEELEERN T NFNHEERK
E AR¥679,700,0000 M- ZE—RHFARE
2,053,900,0007C 3, 2°66.9% ° $5& KA T ¥+
THRBEREENESER T — NE KA
ﬁ °

TREGIRREE D G RHERA

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2016 2015

=F-AF| —FIF

RMB million RMB million

AREBEER | AREBETT

Cost of coal purchased SN B IR B AR 262.3 1,322.8
Cost of coal transportation BB BRI R AR 54.4 66.7
Cost of self-produced coal S35 0)p %N 252.3 445 4
Materials, fuel, power JRA - BORL - B 325 45.8
Staff costs BT 54.1 139.2
Depreciation and amortisation e 83.2 145.5
Others HAh 82.5 114.9
Other costs H A KA 111 491
Total cost of sales of coal business segment R E TS B AR SHE BR 580.1 1,884.0
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The Group purchases coal mainly from the PRC market. The following
table sets forth information regarding the Group’s origins of coal based
on sales volume and revenue in 2016 and 2015:

AEET2EHBEBATSRERRK - TRET
BREARER —T—R"ER-F-AFHRIRE
ERWAD B Z R KR 2 ER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-RE
Sales volume Revenue | Salesvolume Revenue
HE L'ON HE WA
’000 tonnes RMB’000 ’000 tonnes RMB’000
Origins of coal IR % RR F g AR¥F T T ARBTFT
China i 2,123 608,469 3,944 1,216,981
Overseas AN - - 8 3,504
Total HEt 2,123 608,469 3,952 1,220,485

The Group keeps expanding the network of suppliers to ensure a supply
of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its key
PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed business relationships
with the majority of them over a period of not less than three years. This
enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality coal.

Gross Profit/Loss

The Group’s gross profit from continuing operations was RMB36.5
million during the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared with
gross loss from continuing operations of RMB676.7 million during the
same period in 2015. The Group recorded gross profit from continuing
operations in 2016 principally because of the rapid rising of coal selling
price after several years of decline and effective implementation of
cost-control measures.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s other income,
gains and losses from continuing operations amounted to a net loss of
RMB56.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately of RMB73.4
million, as compared with a net gain of RMB17.4 million in 2015. The
decrease in other income, gains and losses from continuing operations
in 2016 was mainly due to the one-off loss arising from the net loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, including two vessels, of
RMB70.5 million in 20186.
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AEBEBTREERSE  AERAGAEE
ERREHRENRKIKME

AEBERE T ZPFEBEANRKREEHEL TIRE
BERG  ARERZHXSHERBERZL=FH
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BRI AR

ER,EEH
BHE-_Z—RFE+-A=1+—HBILFE  KA&H
BELEXHHNEF A ARKES6,500,0007T ¢
M- —AFRPFECEERIATBEARE
676,700,0007C - AEERFELEEHBN T —
NESBEFN  TEHAREREEERFELETF
TEREZR A RBRUE K ANIESIFETEFTE

HA - WEREER
BE-_Z—"F+-_A=1+—BHItFE #H_ZFT
—RFWHFEEARKE17,400,0000H8 - A&
SEFELEEBHNNEMBA - W kEER
B8 % 58 A R #56,000,0007T © WA AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses from continuing operations decreased by 48.1%
to RMB16.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, as compared
with RMB30.8 million in 2015. The decrease in distribution expenses
from continuing operations was in line with the decrease in coal
handling and trading volume during the year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s administrative
expenses from continuing operations amounted to RMB189.3 million,
representing a decrease of 9.1%, as compared with RMB208.3 million
in 2015. The slight decrease was mainly attributable to the Group has
further launched a series of cost saving controls during the year to
reduce the administrative costs.

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s other expenses
from continuing operations amounted to RMB59.5 million, representing
an increase of 28.2%, as compared with RMB46.4 million in 2015.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs from continuing operations of the Group in 2016
amounted to RMB447.0 million, representing an increase of RMB79.0
million or 21.5%, as compared with RMB368.0 million in 2015. The
increase was principally due to the drop of interest capitalised into
construction of coal mines in 2016. Construction of certain coal mines
had suspended during the year.

Loss Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB330.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately of RMB5,680.7 million as compared with
RMB6,011.2 million in the same period in 2015. The decrease in loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was principally due
to no further significant impairment on the assets and partial recovery
of previous impairment amounting to RMB604.2 million.

B WEDH

pakiz1: 5d
REBRKEEBNDHEAYE_T-—HF AR
30,800,000 8t + WA 481N EHE—Z— N
FH+ZA=1+—HLEFEMHARK16,000,000
TL o FRIFELE R D 8 TR A EBE R 48
BREBGERL—H -

THEX
HE-_Z—F+-A=1+—BILFE  K&EEHF
B E X TTR S A AR 189,300,0007T
BT —FF ARE208,300,000CLEER A T
9.1% - BMRL RAFTEZEAEBRFRNE—
WEELT — Z51 A AT HII 8 e LA PR AR TER A AN ©

HAtpAxX
BE-_ZT-R"FT-_A=+—HLFE £A5E
FEEEXRHOHAMRAX R AKS59,500,000
TR ZF — A F AKM46,400,0007T 5 A1
28.2% ©

B RAR R
AEFRBESEEBRR T — NFNPBRAF
B ARH447,000,0000 B E—HFAR
#368,000,000 038 50 T AR ¥79,000,0007T 8k
21.5% - I FEZERR T —NFHEER
BEEREFETHRAS A ETHEEEE
BRIE-

EEBEAEEER
HE-Z—F+_A=1+—HILEE  KQE#
mis A AR R ARK330,500,0007T © =
T FHERAREB,011,200,0007tH P HAR
#5,680,700,0007T ° AR AR IEA A B EE
RO EZEREAEEWEE - SERENBE
RBIE SR B £ A R ¥5604,200,0007T °

Annual Report 2016 —Z—<FFIR (



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIZZEBEER AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWEDN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and strives
to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital by internally generated financial
resources and bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group recorded net current liabilities
of RMB9,463.9 million. The Group has taken initiative to enhance the
financial flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium
term loans to replace short term loans. The Group is currently negotiate
with financial institutions to renew and extend bank borrowings and
consider ways to improve the Group’s working capital.

On 25 December 2015, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Link Beautiful Limited (“Link Beautiful”) pursuant to
which Link Beautiful has agreed to subscribe 215,000,000 new shares
in the capital of the Company to settle a payable of approximately
RMB48,822,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD58,480,000) owed
by the Company to Link Beautiful. The conditions of the subscription
agreement have been fulfilled and completion of the subscription
agreement took place on 6 January 2016. In this regard, the Company
allotted 215,000,000 new shares to Link Beautiful as at 6 January 2016.
The subscription arrangement converted the outstanding interest
payable of the loan into equity capital of the Company, which reduced
the amount of borrowings of the Group and improve its financial
position in an efficient and effective manner. The Directors believe that
it is in the interests of the Company to preserve as much liquidity as
possible in order to strengthen the Group’s financial position and secure
a sustainable business growth.

As of 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group

amounted to RMB24.7 million (2015: RMB20.7 million), representing an
increase of 19.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2016, the total bank and other borrowings of the
Group were RMB6,043.3 million (2015: RMB5,905.3 million), which
were classified as current liabilities. As a result of the non-payment of
loan principal and interests of RMB959,229,000 and RMB361,965,000
respectively, bank loans amounting to RMB2,473,678,000 (2015:
RMB2,602,325,000) due for repayment after one year which contain a
cross default clause that demands immediate repayment when there is
default in any bank loans repayment are classified as current liabilities.
The bank and other borrowings carried interest at rates ranging from
4.35% t0 13.50% (2015: 4.35% to 12.96%) per annum.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB6,136.4 million (2015: RMB6,313.1 million), of which RMB6,006.2
million (2015: RMB5,887.1 million) were utilised.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, except
amount of RMB12.2 million in United States dollars (“USD”) and amount
of RMBO0.7 million in HKD, were held in RMB. All the Group’s bank and
other borrowings were made in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as bank and other borrowings netted off
sum of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits
divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
106.3% (2015:109.9%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to
increase of total assets as a result of reversal of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights, trade receivables and
prepayments and other receivables.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in RMB
and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group's subsidiaries in
the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while overseas purchases and
chartered hire income are usually denominated in USD. The Group’s
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence, the Directors do not
consider that the Group faces significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuation risk.

B WEDH

HE-_ZT—XRF+-_A=+—H8 &%
BEATHAEBZRITREMEERLTE %AE
#6,043,300,000c(Z T — A F: AR ®
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ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁ%%&ﬂ&%@v&AE%
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s assets in an aggregate amount
of RMB3,470.4 million (2015: RMB3,074.2 million) in forms of
property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights, lease prepayments,
inventories, trade and bill receivables and bank deposits were pledged
to banks for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for certain matters disclosed in the Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2016

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Except for the disposal of the equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port
Co., Limited on 7 August 2015 as disclosed in the Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements, there was no material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. Additional information is set forth in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with customers, suppliers and other business partners
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior management
has kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared
business updates with them when appropriate. Except for certain
outstanding litigations as disclosed in note 41(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its customers, suppliers and other business
partners during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended
31 December 2016.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2016, the Group employed 1,203 employees. The
Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to motivate
its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to staff members
with outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also subject to
social insurance contribution plans organised by the PRC government.
In accordance with the relevant national and local labour and social
welfare laws and regulations, members of the Group established in the
PRC are required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other relevant insurance. Members of
the Group incorporated in Hong Kong have participated in mandatory
provident fund scheme, if applicable, in accordance with the applicable
Hong Kong laws and regulations.

Moreover, as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 19 June
2009, the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme and a post-
IPO share option scheme in June 2009 to incentivise and retain staff
members who have made contribution to the success of the Group. The
Directors believe that the compensation packages offered by the Group
to its staff are competitive in comparison with market standards and
practices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWEDN

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The year 2016 witnessed the commencement of China’s major work of
cutting excessive industrial capacity. As one of the key areas of supply-
side structural reform, the coal industry’s priority next year remains to
cut excessive capacity. During 2016, China reduced coal capacity by
more than 290 million tonnes, exceeding the previous goal of 250 million
tonnes. Li Keqgiang, Premier of the State Council, specified China’s
overcapacity cutting scheme: to cut 800 million tonnes of coal capacity
in 3 to 5 years, aiming to bring coal industry back to a more healthy
condition.

Affected by the slowdown of global economy, against this backdrop,
the Group must adjust its direction in response to market movements,
policy trend and supply and demand changes to achieve various targets
in the future:

- improve the Group’s financial indicators and complete the disposal
of the Group’s coal business and shipping business in the PRC so
as to reduce the gearing ratio and finance costs of the Group. If
the disposal is completed after all the conditions precedent were
satisfied, it is believed to greatly ease the Group’s cost pressure
and allow a more effective allocation and application of financial
resources, which will improve the operational position and
profitability of the Group while relieving operating pressures ahead;

— work hard toward the annual plan of the Group’s coal business and
shipping business, no matter the disposal of such businesses will be
completed or not. The Group will conduct safe, effective and refined
production, seek for opportunities among challenges, and try every
means to achieve cost efficiency and revenue growth;

- explore a comprehensive operating model covering internet, futures
trading and logistics platform, complementary to the existing coal
business, to improve the value of the Group. In view of constantly
changing internet information, trading platforms and operating
models, the Group also insists on keeping up with the market to
expand new development directions; and

- conduct research and development on supply chain finance by
leveraging on its years of industry resources and experience to
promote business diversification, broaden source of revenue and
improve risk resistance of the Company.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal in
the PRC and shipping transportation. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 20 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 24 of this report
and the section “Corporate Social Responsibility” on pages 66 to 68 of this
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 77 to 78 of this report.

The directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 30(b) to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in share
premium account are distributable to Shareholders, subject to the
condition that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2016 and 2015, the Company did not have any distributable reserves.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BEBER

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s ZANQa]ZA4Z2MA ([ZRMAA|]) kHSH
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, & (BIZARQ T M RERR) L5130 &5 78
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which BEEEEZIEX » BEAR A BILZLHIEIEA
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to  IRERIZZ B EFMD ©

existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE

A summary of the Groups result for each of the five years ended 31 AEEEHZE _—_ZT— R F+_A=+—HItAEAFE
December 2016 and the Group's assets, liabilities and equity as at 31 ESF2X¥EHENAEFR T ——F - =Z

December 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 are set out on pages 4to5 —=F + ZE—NF - _E—HFN T F
of this report. TZA=T—HZEE  BELREZHENARE
SB4EDH o

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE HBE - HESZBEREAXAATLTES
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company norany HZE_-ZZ—XFE+-_A=+—HILFE ' XA T
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of s HF{RIM{EB A T MmEEE - H & o B 0 B {q
the Company. KRR LEMESF ©

DIRECTORS 25

The Directors during the year of 2016 and up to the date of this report —E—XEFEEEAREDH  EEMOT
are as follows:

Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. XU Da (Chairman) " ELE (EE)

(Appointed as Chairman on 8 December 2016) (RZE—RE+ZA/\BEZEREF)
Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer) B 8K (7TTHEER)
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIFE L
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (Appointed on 12 April 2017) BEKEE (RZE—LFMNAT+-AEERE)
Mr. LIU Jinghong (Appointed on 12 April 2017) BRIk E (RS —tFMA+_REZE)
Mr. XU Jihua REERE

(Resigned as Executive Director and Chairman on 8 December 2016) (RZZE—RE+_ANBBEIRTEER

)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Retired on 23 June 2016) ERESLEE (RZEBE—REXNAZ+=HEMR)
Independent non-executive directors: BYEHTES:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng EHE BT E
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2R EE
Mr. XING Zhiying MERB L
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Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken
into account in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company, Mr. BAI Tao
and Mr. XU Da will retire by rotation in accordance with Article 84(1) of
the Articles, and Mr. FUNG Wai Shing and Mr. LIU Jinghong who were
appointed by the Board on 12 April 2017 will retire in accordance with
Article 83(3) of the Articles. All retiring Directors, being eligible, would
offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON- BV I#H{TEECBIY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive  #RIEBEA &5 Fm#R A ([ EHRA ) 5£3.13
Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 & ARG BN S B IENTESESEB LM
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange  #ER K - EEF SR ABIIERITEEABY -
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EERSHNEEEREBE

MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set BEENESREEEBNBREESHNAREES0E
out on pages 50 to 54 of this report. 548 o

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS EERESTHAERRS - HER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, G REFPZEEZRAR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the R-ZTE—XE+-_A=+—HB ' KRAFTEER
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying HZE{THRAEBR ARG REEEER (TERE
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations I EFIE571 2 E 5 REAE KN ([HERBEK
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance Il |) EEXVEL) 2 B&1p « AR NESFTHE
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required  (a)iR 15 5 %5 & BRI E (&0 £ 35 2{& B 2 82 AR A 7
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company  FT{F& Z i MK : sk(b)iR & 47 Bl BT &+ Fr
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company #H F I AR ESH TR AR 5 2 EEFA| ([1E
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities 2E5FBI]) ZBBAM AR B MBZ AT 2 #EZS SR B
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) 0T :

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company RAEANT 2R
Approximate percentage
of issued share capital
Number of shares of the Company (%)
HERATEBITRE
RHEE 2R B D (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
EEpnA s Ha RE "R wRE
Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.01 Nil
FRIRL L ERAA i i
Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 45,135,251 Nil 1.81 Nil
TRES EREAA i i
Mr. HUANG Guosheng Beneficial owner (Note 1) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
BRI EE BB A (1) i i
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 2) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
2IHIR A EmEa A (FiF2) i i
Mr. XING Zhiying Beneficial owner (Note 3) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil
MERTE Fama A (MEE3) i i
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Notes:

1. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. HUANG Guosheng
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

2. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

3.  The beneficial interest represents 500,000 Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. XING Zhiying
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

* Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the Board.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

FERRAADARNFP 2EHZR AR

—E-RFE+ZA=+—H8 " FIAL (A
AEZRXRSITRARIN) RARF 2D
FAR G R - BN ARR RIR IR & 5 M A 1R

%D)%

register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to |55 336{§ 17 B 2 #E a5 & 50 M AT a0 8% 2 #E 25 N0k
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: B
Approximate percentage of
issued share capital of the
Number of shares Company (%)
HAERTEBITRAZ
RH BB BABE D (%)
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholder Nature of interest positions positions positions positions
REREE ERME He KA Ha RE
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
BREBA i
REELE (HE1) Interest in a controlled 1,154,000,000 Nil 46.28 i
corporation s
NS VN 5
Fortune Pearl (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,154,000,000 Nil 46.28 Nil
21 (MisE1) BEREAA i i
China Minsheng Banking Beneficial owner 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil
Corp. Ltd.
R A RITIRO AR AR EmlaA G i
Note: KoFza
1. Mr. XU Jihua is a former Director who resigned on 8 December 2016. Mr. 1, B &HELLE BAIES - E—-RNE+-ANH
XU Jihua is interested in 100% shareholding of Fortune Pearl International BE- 155 FE %i}gg*ﬁi/ BEHEAER AR ([

Limited (“Fortune Pearl”), which in turn is interested in 1,036,000,000
Shares and 118,000,000 Shares which may be allotted and issued upon full
conversion of the perpetual subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS”)
held directly by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is deemed to
have interests in the Shares so held by Fortune Pearl.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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PAYABLE CAPITALISATION

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 December
2015, the Company entered into the debt to equity agreement dated
25 December 2015 (the “Agreement”) in relation to the capitalisation
of RMB48,822,000 (the “Payable”) with Link Beautiful Limited (the
“Creditor”) pursuant to which the Creditor requested the full and
final settlement of the Payable by capitalising the Payable. On 25
December 2015, the Group consolidated certain payable due to China
Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd by its subsidiaries of RMB141,533,000
(the “Minsheng Payable”) and novated the Minsheng Payable from the
subsidiaries of the Company to the Company as the principal debtor.
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd, on the same date, signed a deed
to assign the Minsheng Payable, including the Payable, to the Creditor.
Subsequently, the condition of the Agreement has been fulfilled and
completion of the Agreement took place on 6 January 2016, whereby
a total of 215,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued to the
Creditor at the subscription price of approximately HKD0.272 per share.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Share Option Scheme detailed in note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount of
HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2016, which was convertible
into ordinary Shares in the Company at the initial conversion price
of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to adjustments). Assuming
the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to the PSCS
at the initial conversion price, a total of 118,000,000 conversion
shares will be issued. The PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole
ultimate beneficial owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who
is a former Director of the Company (Resigned on 8 December 2016).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s companies
shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her
in the execution and discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto
pursuant to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31 December
2016 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees is
based on their performance, duties and responsibilities, qualifications
and competence displayed. The Group has adopted a performance-
based rewarding system to motivate its employees and such system
is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-
end bonuses will be offered to those staff members with outstanding
performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance and
responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by companies of
comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’'s major suppliers and customers were as follows:
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FEHERREF
AEEEERERRESAEREREEELE
SHIT :

Purchases RABEE
~ the largest supplier — AER 26.7%
~ five largest suppliers in aggregate — IREEEER 88.7%
Sales SHE R
- the largest customer - BAEP 21.7%
~ five largest customers in aggregate -~ hAAREP&ERT 51.6%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Proposed disposal of entire equity interest in Hong Kong Qinfa
International Trading Limited

On 25 April 2016 and 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement with Bo Hai
Investment Limited (“Bo Hai Investment”), a related company wholly
owned by Mr. Xu Jihua, a former Director and a close family member
of Mr. Xu Da, an executive Director and chairman of the Company
respectively in relation to the disposal of entire equity interest in Hong
Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its subsidiaries (“HK Qinfa International Group”)
at a consideration of RMB176,740,000. The principal activities of
HK Qinfa International Group are coal mining, purchase and sales,
filtering, storage, blending of coal and shipping transportation in the
PRC. The proposed transaction is yet to complete and is subject to
certain conditions precedent as stated in the share sale and purchase
agreement. Subsequent to the year, the Group and Bo Hai Investment
agreed to further extend the long stop date to 30 April 2017 for
satisfying the outstanding conditions precedent. Further details are
set out in the circular dated 26 October 2016 and the announcements
of the Company dated 16 December 2016, 30 December 2016 and 28
February 2017.

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions
(other than continuing connected transactions that are exempted under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December
2016:
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On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”),
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, each member
of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus), and their
respective equity interest holders (which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da,
Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being controlling shareholders
of the Company) entered into the Structure Contracts (as defined in the
Prospectus) for a term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics
agreed to pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation of the coal
operation business and the inland shipping transportation business of
the China Qinfa Group, and all economic benefits and risks arising from
the business of the China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Further details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant to the
Rule 14A105 of the Listing Rules to the Company for all transactions
under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance with the
applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions for the Company
were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business; (i) in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
(iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.
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Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed that (i)
the transactions carried out during 2016 have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions
carried out during 2016 have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa Logistics;
(iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have been entered into on
the same terms as the existing Structure Contracts and are fair and
reasonable so far as the Group is concerned and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole; and (iv) no dividends or other distributions
have been made by any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity
interest holders.

The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus)
and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus). Having
considered the demand for coal imported from overseas into China
and the expansion of the Group’s overseas coal operation business,
the Directors strategically planned to centralise the management and
operation of the Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets
and determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage and
operate the coal operation business in China through the establishment
of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa Logistics”), a member of Hong
Kong Qinfa Group and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in February 2008.

However, after verbal consultations with the relevant PRC governmental
authorities at Zhuhai at which the Group operates its coal business, the
Directors understand that the PRC governmental authorities currently
do not grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according to (i) Article 7
of (The Regulations on the Management of Waterway Transport of the
PRC) promulgated by the State Council on 12 May 1987 and revised
on 27 December 2008 and (ii) (the Guidance of Foreign Investment
(Amended 2007)); and after the verbal consultations with the relevant
PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai, the Directors understand that
the PRC laws and regulations currently prohibit the issue of Waterway
Transportation Licences to foreign equity controlled companies. These
views have been confirmed by the PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and operate the
coal operation business in China, the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the Prospectus) (collectively the
“Structure Contracts”) were entered into under which all the business
activities of China Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa
Logistics and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Pursuant to the
equity transfer agreements dated 25 October 2010, 15 December 2010
and 17 December 2010, equity interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading
Co., Ltd., Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd.
and Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd have
been transferred to the Group. As of 31 December 2016, Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under
the Structure Contracts.

Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement Agreements and
the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009. Qinfa Logistics is entitled
to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
after deducting all relevant costs and expenses (including taxes)
and has the right to acquire any or all of the equity interests and/
or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the
lowest possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa Logistics a pledge
over the equity interests in equity holders for the purpose of securing
the performance of the contractual obligations under the Structure
Contracts. Any amendment to the Structure Contracts shall be subject
to the approvals of (i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose
of promoting good corporate governance, the Shareholders in general
meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts can be made
unless required under the Listing Rules or approved by Qinfa Logistics
in writing in advance. For details of the Structure Contracts, please refer
to the section headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in
the Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial results
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and economic
benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa Logistics. In addition, all the
directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be
nominated by Qinfa Logistics. Through its control over the directors of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is able
to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business, operations
and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
so as to ensure due implementation of the Structure Contracts. The
Structure Contracts also enable Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over
and to acquire the equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time as
permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with an undertaking
from the Controlling Shareholders to provide to Qinfa Logistics all the
consideration received pursuant to any such acquisition. Based on the
Structure Contracts, the Directors consider that, notwithstanding the
lack of equity ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa Logistics
is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this basis, the financial position and
operating results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are
included in the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the Company’s subsidiaries, and
their financial position and operating results are consolidated in the
Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements. The revenue and total
asset value subject to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts
amounted to approximately RMB31,483,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 and approximately RMB52,164,000 as of 31 December
2016, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and provide for
the resolution of disputes through arbitration in accordance with the
arbitration rules of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission in force at that time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in
China. Accordingly, the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in
accordance with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved
by arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.
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There are risks involved with the operation of the Group under the
Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the Directors, if the
Structure Contracts are considered to be in breach of any existing or
future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory authorities would
have broad discretion in dealing with such breach, including:

imposing economic penalties;

discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong Qinfa
Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping;

imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the Structure
Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping may not be able to comply;

requiring the Group to restructure the relevant ownership
structure or operations;

taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could
adversely affect the business of the Group; and

revoking the business licences and/or the licences or certificates
of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and/or voiding
the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the risk and to
ensure proper implementation of the Structure Contracts:

(a)

as part of the internal control measures, major issues arising
from implementation and performance of the Structured
Contracts are reviewed by the board of directors of Qinfa
Logistics on a regular basis which is no less frequent than on a
quarterly basis;

matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at such regular
meetings which is no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
and

the relevant business units and operation divisions of the Hong
Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is no less frequent than
on a monthly basis, to the senior management of Qinfa Logistics
on the compliance and performance conditions under the
Structured Contracts and other related matters.
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The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the contractual
arrangements under the Structure Contracts and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted, and their impact on the Group. The
Board also confirmed that there is no removal of restrictions that led to
the adoption of the Structured Contracts.

In January 2015, the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC (the “MOFCOM”)
published the draft Foreign Investment Law (the “Draft FIL") under
which a foreign investor may be permitted to invest directly or indirectly
in restricted industries (i.e. without the need to use contractual
arrangements), so long as the foreign investor’s ultimate control
person(s) is/are PRC investors, subject to competent authorities’
approval and certain limitations. The explanatory memorandum
accompanying the Draft FIL proposed three options for dealing with
existing VIE structures. According to these three options, a foreign
investor would only be able to retain its business under contractual
arrangements after the Draft FIL becomes effective if is is in fact
controlled by PRC investors, subject to reporting or verification, or
otherwise with MOFCOM’s prior approval.

Based on the fact that Mr. Xu Jihua holds 42.12% of the issued share
capital of the Company (excluding the conversion effect of PSCS), and
is hence capable of exerting decisive impact on the management and
decisions of China Qinfa Group through the Structure Contracts, the
PRC legal advisers of the Company advise that Mr. Xu Jihua is likely to
be deemed as “ultimate control person” under the Draft FIL and that the
contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts are likely to be
permitted to continue under the Draft FIL.

Since a number of legislative stages have to be undergone before the
promulgation and implementation of the new Foreign Investment Law,
the Directors are given no reasonably sufficient evidence to believe that
the new Foreign Investment Law will be adopted immediately and/or the
new Foreign Investment Law will be the same content or form with the
Draft FIL and the accompanying notes. The Company will keep a close
eye on the development of legislation and retain external legal advisers
who will advise on the effect and the possible solutions to ensure that
timely reaction and necessary adjustment is made in accordance with
the new Foreign Investment Law, and the relevant rules and regulation
taking effect in the future.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The related party transactions as disclosed in note 37(b) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements constituted exempt continuing
connected transaction and exempt connected transaction, respectively,
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly, are exempted
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions as disclosed in note 37(a), (c) and (d) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements are not regarded as connected
transactions under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on 31
December 2012 and the Company paid interest of HKD5,841,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the two
schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
whereby 26 employees of the Group were granted the rights to
subscribe for Shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise the
contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the Group and/
or the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. The principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are substantially the same as the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and

(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share BRI B A AR ERTERES 2125 B
Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted under the — #4) » AR B A AFEER B EST 28
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so has been terminated  — 45 T iF HEENRE - RZEF DR A TE
upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. No share is RN EHAZAT EHBLIE - BB EH N AFEER
available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. BEAS st &I AR () A] F 37T o

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted ~ MR HE] » BIE B A AF R ERERES 2

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report: HMATEHERLEERENE —SHEHN T
B
Number of Share options outstanding
HATREERESE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Exercised Effect of Lapsed At Exercise of the
Category/Name of 1 January during retirement of during 31 December price Company
Participant Date of grant 2016 the year adirector the year 2016 HKD Exercise period (%)
R R BELF
ZB-RF B EBERf ZE-RE BRTRAN
SEERR/HE REAH -A-H ERE P8 RERXN TZAZt-B  GEE 768 BB
AT (%)
Executive director 12 June 2009
YrES “EEAERATCA
Mr. MA Baofeng 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) - - 126 12June 2009 to 0.00
(Retired on 23 11June 2019
June 2016) —EThE
SRELE ~ATZHE
(RZF-—RERA “ENF
“+ZBEA) ~AT-A
Employees 12 June 2009 10,800,000 - 1,200,000 (2,400,000) 9,600,000 126 12June 2009 to 0.39
& “EENEAATZR 11June 2019
ey a2
~ATZRE
“E-nF
~AT-H
Total 12,000,000 - - (2,400,000) 9,600,000 0.39
At
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Notes:

1.

The exercise price per share is HKD1.26 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from 3 July 2009, being the listing
date of the Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the option in cash.

Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(@) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the first
anniversary of the Listing Date;

(b) 30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the second

anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c) 40% of the total number of the options can be exercised from the
expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing Date.

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was

determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”.

The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum;

. forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and

- forecast dividend yield - 1.50% per annum.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”, the total
fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e. 12 June 2009)
was HKD7,650,000.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair value of
options and is a common choice among various option pricing models for
assessing the fair value of options. The value of the options depends on the
valuation arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on variables.
Any changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect on the

assessment of the fair value of the options.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme which shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable the Company
and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the share;
(ii) the closing price of the shares on the date of the offer; and (iii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to an
employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit shall be subject
to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be determined
by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed ten years from the
date of grant. The Share Option Scheme does not specify any minimum
holding period. The acceptance of an offer must be made within 30 days
from the date of offer with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 96,702,255 Shares, representing approximately 3.88% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2017.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options (the
“Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the Share Option Scheme to 15 eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share
(which represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392 per Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of HKD0.10 per Share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years
from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16 January 20183,
40% of the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16 January 2014,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16 January 2015,
30% of the total number of Options granted to him.

On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options to subscribe
for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme to eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD0.485 per share (which represents
the highest of (i) the closing price of HKDO0.485 per Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKD0.484 per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10
per Share). The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 30 April
2015 to 29 April 2025. Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted,
1,500,000 were granted to the directors of the Company. The remaining
share options of 156,000,000 were granted to other eligible participants
who are not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of
the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of
them.

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option period,
provided that the maximum number of Options which each Grantee is
entitled to exercise at the below period shall not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2016, 40% of

the total number of Options granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April 2017, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April 2018, 30% of
the total number of Options granted to him.
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Set out below is further information on the outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

EEERE

EERER RO ERITEER RN E— 5

BHEINT

Number of share options outstanding

HAITRERIES A
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Granted Effect of Exercised Lapsed At Exercise capital of
At 1 January during ~ retirement of during during  31December price  Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2016 the year adirector the year the year 2016 HKD  period (%)
R R LR
It St EZRE “E-RE e BRAIRE
SREEN /14 RHEH -A-B  REARH 2¥E  RERGE  RERAN tZAS1-B B TEH BOAD (%)
Executive director
YrES
Mr. MA Baofeng 17 January 2012 2,964 457 - (2,964,457 - - - 150 17/01/2012t0 0.00
(Retired on 23 June 2016) ~“2-—%#-F++A 16/01/2022
SRéLE kS
(RZE-R"EFAZTZRER) B ARES
—3-CF
—R+5A
Independent non-executive
directors
BIFHTES
Mr. HUANG Guosheng 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0485 30/04/2015t0 002
By “Z-LERA=TH 29/04/2025
“E-1%
MA=+HZ
“Z°FRF
mAZthA
Mr.LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0485 30/04/2015t0 002
iy i —E-nE 29/04/2025
mA=+H ik
MA=tHZE
“E-RF
mA=thA
Mr.XING Zhiying 30 April 2015 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0485  30/04/2015t0 0.02
MEREE “E-1¥MA=1A 29/04/2025
“E-1f%
MA=TRZE
ZECRE
mA-thH
Sub-total 4,464,457 - (2964457) - - 1,500,000 0.06
gt
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Number of share options outstanding
WATTERERES A
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Granted Effect of Exercised Lapsed At Exercise capital of
At 1January during  retirement of during during 31 December price  Exercise the Company
Category/Name of participant Date of grant 2016 the year adirector the year the year 2016 HKD  period (%)
R R AT
“E-RE ESRf ZE-RE & BRTRE
SREER /B4 RHiAH -A-B  REARH %% RERTRE REREAM tZR=1-H Br  TEA BOBAL(%)
Employees 17 January 2012 5,928,912 - 2,964,457 - (741114) 8,152,255 150 17/01/2012t0 0.33
B8 “E-CF-ATtR 16/01/2022
—E-Cf
—-AttAEZ
“E-CF
—BtRA
30 April 2015 132,000,000 - - - (7000,0000 125,000,000 0485 30/04/2015t0 501
“Z-RFNA=TA 29/04/2025
—5-1F
MA=+AZ
ZTCRE
MA=tAH
Sub-total 137928912 - 2964457 - (IaNe 133150255 5.34
it
Total 142,393,369 - - - (7761114) 134,662,255 540
At
Notes: BfsE
The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under D RIR-—"ZE——F—A+tAR-FT—FHAFNA=+
Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial Option ~ HRIEERET SR L NBREN AR BIIEA =
Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were: %;ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ’_ﬂj BT BAZEBEANZIZHA

. risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

. forecast fluctuations in share price - 55.31% and 53.89% respectively; and

+  forecast dividend yield = 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”, the total
fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date (i.e. 17 January
2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively) was approximately HKD11,642,000 and
HKD28,667,000. The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess
the fair value of options and is a common choice among various option pricing
models for assessing the fair value of options. The value of the options depends
on the valuation arrived at based on certain subjective assumptions on
variables. Any changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect on

the assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at the 31 December 2016, the total number of share options

outstanding is 144,252,255.
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately RMB6,043.3 million. Particulars of the
bank and other borrowings are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the public
as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to compete (either
directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report, save for
Mr. XU Jihua's legal ownership in the equity interest in members of the
China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus) and the executive Directors (collectively, the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 12
June 2009 in favour of the Company. The Covenantors have provided the
Group with written confirmations that they and their associates (other
than members of the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-
competition throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of non-
competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of refusals
provided by the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus)
on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Covenantors and their
respective close associates did not direct any Business Opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the independent
non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on the decision
made in relation to Business Opportunity.
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EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

On 25 April 2016 and 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a share sale
and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement with Bo Hai
Investment in relation to the disposal of entire equity interest in HK
Qinfa International Group at a consideration of RMB176,740,000 as
disclosed in this report. This proposed transaction is yet to complete
and is subject to certain conditions precedent as stated in the share
sale and purchase agreement. Subsequent to the year, the Group
and Bo Hai Investment agreed to further extend the long stop date
to 30 April 2017 for satisfying the outstanding conditions precedent.
Further details are set out in the circular dated 26 October 2016 and
the announcements of the Company dated 16 December 2016, 30
December 2016 and 28 February 2017.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES
Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the Company’s
Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject to Hong Kong
stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the purchaser and
seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the consideration or, if
greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/sold or transferred
(rounded up to the nearest HKD’000). In addition, a fixed duty of
HKD5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from Hong Kong
may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from Cayman Islands
stamp duty.
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Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in
any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of
subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It
is emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers will
accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of
shares in the Company resulting from their subscription for, purchase,
holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

KPMG, the preceding auditor, did not seek re-appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the Company’s annual general meeting held
on 30 June 2014. An ordinary resolution was passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 30 June 2014 to appoint Moore
Stephens Certified Public Accountants as the auditors of the Company.
On 1 January 2015, Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants
practiced in the name of another certified public accountant, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
XU Da
Chairman

Guangzhou, 31 March 2017
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEEBE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (#3£), aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director on 9
October 2014. Mr. XU is also a Chairman of the Group. Mr. XU achieved
a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU has more than 5 years of working
experience in thermal coal procurement operation from overseas. He
joined the Group as import and export manager in 2009. Mr. XU did not
hold other directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.

Mr. BAI Tao (A #8), aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director on 9
October 2014. Mr. BAl is also the chief of executive officer and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board.
Mr. BAI graduated from Cardiff University with a bachelor and master
degree in civil engineering. Mr. BAl has more than 5 years of working
experience in construction project management. He joined the Group as
general manager of Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange Centre in 2012. Prior
to joining the Group in 2012, Mr. BAl worked as a manager of engineering
management department in a company listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. BAI did not hold other directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (£ & &), aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director on 6 May 2008. Ms. WANG is principally responsible for the
Group’s overall management and operation. Ms. WANG obtained an
associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles University Foundation
in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms. WANG completed
an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by the FEARKEZREKBE
IR B4 4% AE AT FE AR L (Risk Capital and Network Economy Research
Center of China Renmin University) and # BI{b2EIB5EF)H 0 (China
Enterprise Management Training Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more
than 15 years of enterprise management and operation experience.
Before joining the Group in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in R85 253 (=

£8) AMRAF (COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from
1995 to 2000. Ms. WANG has been a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since 30 November
2009. Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (S1&H), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2017. Mr. FUNG is also the Company Secretary and
Chief Finance Officer of the Group. Mr. FUNG graduated from University
of London and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in banking and finance and MBA in finance respectively. Mr. FUNG
is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
with over 20 years’ experience in finance, auditing and accounting fields.
Mr. FUNG joined the Group in 2014. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the chief financial officer of a private group since June 2010. He was
the qualified accountant and company secretary of Ko Yo Chemical
(Group) Limited (previous stock code: 8042, current stock code: 827) from
February 2002 to December 2005. Mr. FUNG was also the independent
non-executive directors of TLT Lottotainment Group Limited (stock code:
8022) from 12 August 2008 to 11 July 2012. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
FUNG did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LIU Jinghong (8] & 4I), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 April 2017. Mr. LIU finished his post-secondary education
in Heilongjiang University in 1994. In the same year, Mr. LIU passed the
National Judicial Examination and qualified as an attorney in the PRC.
From 1994 to 2014, he practiced as a civil and commercial attorney in two
law firms in the PRC. During the period from 2007 to 2010, he pursued
further studies in China University of Political Science and Law. From
2010 to 2012, he acted as chief legal officer of a private company in the
PRC. In 2014, he joined the Group as chief legal officer and was later
promoted to Vice President. Mr. LIU did not hold other directorship in any
listed companies during the last three years.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (EElB¥), aged 74, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG is also a member of
the audit committee and the chairperson of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Board. Mr. HUANG graduated
from FEIKE (Zhong Nan University), formerly known as &8 £
Ft (Chang Sha Railway College), majoring in railway transportation in
1965. Mr. HUANG served as the head of EJE#/E (Guangzhou Port
Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a visiting professor
by F/&8%EKE (Shanghai Maritime University), formerly known as £
8/8EZRT (Shanghai Maritime Transportation College), in 1996. Mr.
HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway transportation and has
enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the State Council
since 1992 for his outstanding contribution in engineering technology
for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2185)R), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU is also the chairman
of the audit committee of the Board. Mr. LAU graduated with a bachelor
degree of science in Business Administration from Oregon State
University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as well as a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since April 2003. Prior to joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003,
Mr. LAU was the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and
had worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong for
five years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (“Dragon Crown”) on
30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 10 June 2011. Mr. LAU was also appointed as an
Independent non-executive Directors of SDM Group Holdings Limited
(“SDM Group”) on 26 September 2014, SDM Group was listed on GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014. From 3 September
2013 to 29 December 2014, Mr. LAU was also a non-executive director of
ZMFY Automobile Glass Services Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
LAU did not hold any directorship in other listed companies during the
last three years.
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Mr. XING Zhiying (B &), aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 January 2013. Mr. XING received a
Bachelor of Arts from Sun Yat-sen University (1L K2 in Guangzhou,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. XING served in various
managerial roles, including the vice president of the Guangdong
Branch, the president of the Hainan Branch and the senior expert in the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1996 to 2011. Mr. XING
is currently a senior economist (7= A& % M), the chief of Supervisory
Committee of the Finance Arbitration Center in Guangzhou (BN <& &
HEPTEEE LR E9), the vice president of Finance Expert Association in
Guangdong province, the PRC (BRI FREZRBE) and a member
of the China Society for Finance and Banking (1Bl £ B2 &). Mr. XING
has been appointed the independent director of China Mercantile Bank
(FERIRTT) in Shenzhen, the PRC since 2011. Mr. XING did not hold any
directorship in other listed companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YU Tao (F3%), aged 44, is the vice president of the Group. Mr. YU
is responsible for both domestic and international shipping business
of the Group. Mr. YU has a Master degree of Maritime Law of Dalian
Maritime University, is a professional manager with rich experiences in
international shipping practice and management. Mr. YU has worked on
board of vessel and then engaged in shipping practice and management
for over 17 years. Mr. YU joined the group in 2008 and worked as
shipping manager, deputy shipping general manager, and was appointed
as shipping general manager in 2013.

Mr. BAI Lei (B &), aged 50, is the vice president of the Group, and
is principally responsible for domestic investments and financial
planning matters. He takes full charge of domestic financial operation,
development strategies and ensuring the efficient operation of financial
systems. Mr. BAI graduated from T AZ (Jiangxi University) in 1989
with a bachelor degree of enterprise management and subsequently
obtained the qualification of accountant. Mr. BAI held the positions
on financial and finance aspects in various institutions and had
accumulated more than 20 years of working experience in relation
thereto. Mr. BAI joined the Group in 2016 when he was appointed as the
financial controller in China. He was appointed as the vice president of
the Group in 2017.
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Mr. Ql Jinyuan (B $8)R), aged 48, is the vice president of the Group, and
is principally responsible for the management and operation works on
coal mine business. Mr. QI graduated from Renmin University of China
in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree in national economic planning and
management, and obtained a master degree in business administration
from A b & & E & (Hebei Provincial Party School) in 2003. Mr. QI
has more than 20 years of experience in the field of investment
management and financial planning with specialty in taxation planning
works on financial aspect. Mr. QI was appointed as the vice chairman
of Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a member of the
Group in September 2015 and as the vice president of the Group in
February 2016.

Mr. XU Peihua (FF3%%), aged 55, is the general manager of coal mine
division of the Group, and is principally responsible for mine production,
development planning as well as safety and technology management.
Mr. XU graduated from ZEPEE& T 27 (Jixi Staff College) in Heilongjiang
Province in 1986. He has more than 30 years of working experience in
construction design and technology planning of mine production as
well as production system, safety policies, device management and
coal quality control. Mr. XU jointed the Group in 2009, and served as
chief engineer and mine director during his seven years’ service. He was
appointed as the general manager of the Group in 2016.

Mr. MA Jihai (55 3%), aged 49, is the general manager of coal mine
division of the Group. He is responsible for mine production policies
performance, efficiency promotion and ensuring the implementation
of regulations. Mr. MA graduated from & & T % X 2 (Changchun
University of Technology) in 2013 with a bachelor degree in the major
of coal mining technology. Mr. MA has more than 20 years of working
experience in coal mine related industries. He is very familiar with
coal operation and environment, and has therefore made significant
contribution to coal mine business of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise on accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of Shareholders and to fulfil its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate governance code
of practices since the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, monitoring its operating and
financial performance, performing the corporate governance duties and
evaluating the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided to
enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when requested.
The company secretary provides secretarial support to the Board and
ensures adherence to Board procedures and the relevant rules and
regulations which are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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EERRE

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are managed by the executive Directors and senior
management of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to these officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board
periodically reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to
obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, five of whom are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors:
Mr. XU Da (Chairman)

(Appointed as Chairman on 8 December 2016)
Mr. BAl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. WANG Jianfei
Mr. FUNG Wai Shing (Appointed on 12 April 2017)
Mr. LIU Jinghong (Appointed on 12 April 2017)
Mr. XU Jihua

(Resigned as Executive Director and Chairman on

8 December 2016)

Mr. MA Baofeng (Retired on 23 June 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. XING Zhiying

All five executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not
limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group. The Company maintains appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance.
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The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-executive
Directors are set out on pages 52 to 53 of this annual report. Each of
the independent non-executive Director has confirmed in writing of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors and
auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company held an annual
general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting and the Board
held ten Board meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with
the Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREE
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings

entitled to attend
KRB BREERE
Name of Directors L General Meeting Board Meeting
BRAE EEgE3
Mr. XU Jihua HEESE 2/2 9/9
(Resigned on 8 December 2016) (R=—Z—RE+-ANHET)
Ms. WANG Jianfei TR L+ 0/2 10/10
Mr. XU Da rOESAE 1/2 10/10
Mr. MA Baofeng BREL A 0/1 3/3
(Retired on 23 June 2016) (R—ZE—XREXNA-+=HEME)
Mr. BAl Tao H EE%E 2/2 10/10
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =HEBEA 0/2 10/10
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2B IR A& 2/2 10/10
Mr. XING Zhiying EE LA 0/2 10/10
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua (resigned on 8 December 2016) and Mr. XU Da (appointed
as the chairman of the Board on 8 December 2016) are the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director, responsible for providing advice
for the overall management and strategic development and overseeing
the operation of the Board. Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director, is the
Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for the Group’s overall
management, corporate development, strategic planning and the
supervision of day-to-day operation. The segregation of duties and
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive officer
ensures a balance of power and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration committee
consists of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned on 21 July
2016) and Mr. BAl Tao (appointed on 21 July 2016), and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING
Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the remuneration
committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The remuneration committee held three meetings during 2016 to assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management and
review their remuneration. The duties of the remuneration committee
include determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management. All the members
attended the meetings.
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Number of attendance/

Number of meetings

entitled to attend

Name of Directors EEHS HERE BREEERE
Ms. WANG Jianfei FaIRL+

(Resigned on 21 July 2016) (RZE—ARFLAZ+—HET) 3/3

Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R A 3/3

Mr. XING Zhiying TEREE 3/3

Mr. BAI Tao BEELE
(Appointed on 21 July 2016) (R=—Z—X"ELtA-+—HEZMT) 0/0

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The nomination committee consists
of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei (resigned on 21 July 2016)
and Mr. BAI Tao (appointed on 21 July 2016), and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying.
Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the chairperson of the nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board include
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held two meetings during 2016 to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to meet the requirements of the business of the Company.
The nomination committee also evaluated the effectiveness of the
board diversity policy. All the members attended the meetings.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings

entitled to attend
Name of Directors EEER HERYERHERE
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIRZ L
(Resigned on 21 July 2016) (R=ZE—ARFLAZ+—HFT) 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng EE) e 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying MBE& S A4 2/2
Mr. BAI Tao ARELE
(Appointed on 21 July 2016) (R=ZB—R"FtA=-t+—HEZT) 0/0

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years. All the independent non-
executive Directors entered into renewed appointment letters with
the Company in 2015 for a term of three years. Such term is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set out the
requirements for diversity in Board members and the principles for the
selection of Directors.

(1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increased diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In planning the Board’s composition,
board diversity needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the Board
Diversity Policy
Selection of candidates of the Company will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the reporting period, the nomination committee reviewed
the composition of the Board and concluded that the Company had
met the diversification requirements with regard to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
When making the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the
future, the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the objective
of diversity in Board members.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded of
their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG
Guosheng, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is
the chairperson of the audit committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.
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During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the
members attended the meetings.

FR - BEZZESRTTMAEE  TAKEY
HEEE -

Number of attendance/

Number of meetings

entitled to attend

Name of Directors BEEHR HERE BREEERE
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 28R & & 2/2
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R E 2/2
Mr. XING Zhiying ME&E T4 2/2

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2016 and interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2016 to the Board for approval. The
audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company in respect of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and are in the
process of reviewing the relevant issues as described in the paragraphs
under “Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive induction
package which includes introduction on the business operations, internal
procedures and general policy of the Company and a summary of
statutory and regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing Rules
and other relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors are
provided with regular updates on the Group’'s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training records provided
by the Directors to the Company, each Director has confirmed that he/
she has obtained reading and training materials during the year under
review and has attended the trainings in relation to various aspects,
including but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management
and internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
interests of the Group as a whole.

The internal audit function monitors the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems established within
the Company and its subsidiaries for proper accounting records, and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information. The work of the
internal audit function is generally focused on identifying, monitoring
and reporting on major risks faced by the Group, including those related
to business operations, compliance with laws and regulations and
financial reporting. The review of risk management and internal control
systems is conducted on an ongoing basis by the internal audit function.
The Group has also adopted internal control policies to manage and
minimise financial and other risks, ensuring timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and monitoring
compliance with laws by the senior management of the Group in the
performance of their duties.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing, maintaining,
implementing and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control system and ensuring that the Group established and maintained
appropriate and effective systems. Management also assists the
Board in the implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design,
operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and
control these risks.

The Group has established an audit committee under the Board, which
has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws by the Group’s
senior management and in its daily operations, and of carrying out
investigations for suspected breaches of law. The Company convened
meetings with the audit committee periodically to discuss financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementing and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management process and
risk management report including key risks and mitigation measure
summited by the Management and the Audit Committee, in which
it oversaw the development and implementation of the Group’s risk
management system.
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The Board has reviewed the effective of systems and considered that,
for the year 31 December 2016, the risk management and internal
control system and procedures of the Group were reasonably effective
and adequate, no material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of results and
cash flow for the year.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 69 to 76 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration to the Group’s
external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group is set forth below:
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RMB’000

ARMF T

Audit services ZE R 1,852

Non-audit services® FERZBARTS* 1,130

Total a5 2,982

*  Non audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the  * IFZBURIS SMBEIA R AIEHE DM HHRE 2

Company review its interim financial statements and certain services for BERF MBI AR AGRUABALES BRE
assisting the Company prepare its circular in relation to the disposal of HK B[R &2 [ 43 bR 2 B T AR TS o

Qinfa International Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing Rules
to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate, complete
and timely basis and all other information that might have significant
impact on the decisions of shareholders and other concerned parties in
an active and timely manner. Also, the Company takes effort in ensuring
all shareholders have equal access to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and the
chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings and results
presentation, attend investor forums and respond to investors’ call-
in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional investors and
financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to
keep them abreast of the Company’s business and development as
well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects the
feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and
mutually beneficial relationship with the Company’s investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company secretary to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, which is presently situated at Room 1303, 13th
Floor, China Evergrande Centre, No. 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled at
shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will
review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and
suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary. Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TEEEERE

The Group is a long-time, continuous supporter of corporate
social responsibility, dedicated to contributing to society through
nature preservation and helping the underprivileged. To maintain
its sustainable development momentum and become a leading
international coal operator, the Group treats its employees, customers,
the society and the natural environment ethically.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has been working tirelessly to build green communities.
Besides promoting a green lifestyle, the Group strives to minimise
damage to the environment while increasing production efficiency,
creating win-win outcomes for the Group and the society.

Land reclamation

Consistent with the “those who destroys shall reclaim” guidance issued
by the State Council, five coal mines of the Group (namely Fengxi Coal
Mine, Chongsheng Coal Mine, Xingtao Coal Mine, Xinglong Coal Mine
and Hongyuan Coal Mine) carried out reclamation activities for all
parcels of land compromised during the course of mine construction
and production. The reclamation project focuses on agricultural
production and forest restoration according to the principle of “using
for agriculture, forestry or animal husbandry as appropriate” The Group
will spend approximately RMB354 million on reclamation projects
for the five coal mines over periods of 22, 31, 25, 30 and 30 years
respectively. Throughout the process, the Group will provide streamlined
management and land protection services, thereby allowing the land to
maximise its economic, social and ecological benefits.

Office 4R

The Group actively encourages its employees to apply “4R” (reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace) rules in the office. Under the 4R policy,
the Group’s employees replace direct paper printing with electronic
scanning and use email to transmit documents in order to reduce the
use of paper, and avoid the use of disposable products. From time to
time, the Group reminds its employees to reuse single-side printed
waste paper for printing internal documents. The Group’s office drinking
fountains also use recyclable plastic bottles. In the future, the Group
will continue to pursue the 4R policy and maintain a green working
environment.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group considers its employees to be essential for the business
success. Therefore, the Group attaches great importance to its
employees’ physical and mental health and working environment, as
well as their continuous skill development to enhance competitiveness.
Thus, the Group has formulated occupational safety guidelines and
policies for the working environment, along with related requirements
for different employees, and provides regular safety training.

Communication channels

The Group believes that work performance and learning attitudes are
affected by internal factors such as the working environment, attitudes
of co-workers and company policies. The Group therefore adopts an
open approach which encourages employees to report their opinions
to the management and provide the Group with ways to improve our
operations.

Employee benefits

The Group’s employees are an important part of its assets. This is why
employees are covered by insurance policies taken out by the Group
and receive medical benefits in addition to wages and bonuses. The
Group also holds an annual year-end party to express its gratitude for
the efforts made by the employees throughout the year and grants
outstanding performance awards to employees with especially excellent
performance.

Employee training

The Group’s ability to maintain continuous development amid severe
competition depends on each employee performing their role well.
Towards this end, the Group regularly invites professionals to organise
training seminars on management, law, accounting, finance and other
corporate fields for its employees, allowing employees to keep abreast
of the latest information and making sure they have the knowledge and
skills they need to handle the demands of their jobs.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
TEHEET

Housing allowance

In addition to general and basic benefits, the Group also offers housing
allowances to coal miners to help limit the inconvenience they may
encounter in getting to and from the workplace. This arrangement
allows them to relocate to locations near the coal mine at lower cost to
themselves, thereby saving commuting time and expense.

Safety code

As a coal operator, the Group attaches great importance to the safety of
coal miners at work. Workers are therefore required to comply with the
Group’s strict safety code and wear appropriate safety equipment before
entering coal mines. The Group is particularly proud that the Xingtao
coal mine operated by Huameiao Energy was designated a Grade 1
Safety Demonstration Mine by the China National Coal Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Qinfa
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 77 to 224, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Qur responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHE R E

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 1.2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated
net loss of RMB316,727,000 during the year ended 31 December
2016 and, as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB9,463,913,000 and capital deficiency of RMB4,921,307,000. As at
31 December 2016, the borrowings and accrued interest amounting
to an aggregate amount of RMB959,229,000 and RMB361,965,000
respectively were not renewed or rolled over upon maturity, of which, up
to the date of this report, the banks had renewed or had agreed to renew
conditionally borrowings in an aggregate amount of RMB77,500,000.
Subsequent to 31 December 2016, the Group had settled the principal
and interest of such borrowings of RMB4,356,000 and RMB904,000
respectively. The non-payment of loan principal and interests in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates caused the banks
having the rights to call for immediate repayment of all borrowings
and their respective interest. As at 31 December 2016, the current
borrowings included certain borrowings with scheduled repayment
terms over one year amounting to RMB2,473,678,000. In addition, as
at 31 December 2016, there were several unsettled litigations against
the Group mainly requesting the Group to repay certain payables with
interest immediately or within one year with an aggregate amount of
RMB678,136,000.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1.2(c)
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHENRE

BRREREE
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statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in  fZ#& g8 4= A BF xR SR = 1 o Hoos B0 2 B B R I8 55

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to

be communicated in our report.

TE B2 W
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights

VISR ~ B B 5% 8 DA I SRR BRI 2 Rl (L P A

The Group’s impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights is included in Notes 15 and 16
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(k)(ii) to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Key audit matter

BREELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANEZNAREZEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of RMB2,614,793,000 and coal mining
rights of RMB2,292,588,000. Reversal of impairment of
RMB211,597,000 and RMB371,199,000 in relation to property,
plant and equipment and coal mining rights respectively were
recognised during the year.
RZE—AR"FE+ZA=+—H' EX5EEEYHE K
FREMEARB2614,793,000t R E R EBEREARYE
2,292,588,0007T - FA DRI ERME - BE RZE AR
BERIRIE 2R BB @ A K ¥211,597,000T & A R %
371,199,0007T °

For the purpose of management’s impairment assessment,
the recoverable amounts of the individual assets or the cash
generating units (“CGUs”), to which the assets belonged were
determined by management based on their values in use
using cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant management judgement was used
to determine the key assumptions, including sales quantity,
unit selling price, unit cost and discount rates, underlying the
value-in-use calculations.

HREBEELHZRENGEMNS  BUEESIREEEEM
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Our procedures to address the matter included:

BPREZEENBZIZF 81

. We assessed management’s identification of individual
assets and CGUs to test the assets for impairment based
on the Group’s accounting policies and our understanding
of the Group’s business;

- BfIRE EEENSFHBRELRY EEEXENTE -
HEEREUBYEERRSELEMMNBRINGEEE
TRERIE

«  We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management; and

. BAFEEEEARBOEREEFERTE &

. We assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including sales quantity, unit selling price, unit cost and
discount rates) based on our knowledge of the business
and industry.

« BPIRBAFHZEBRITENHRE  FHIERRKR (2
HHE  BUEE  BUKARTEX) WEEKE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHE R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conTinueD)

Impairment assessment of trade and bill receivables
B E SRR R EREE ZBENG

FAREZEE m

The Group’s impairment assessment of trade and bill receivables is included in Note 22, to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(k)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

EXEBRENE SRR RERER 2BEMGRNERS VBRI E22 R AP REME200 ()2 BFTHE °

Key audit matter

RREELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWEZNAEEZEE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade and bill
receivables of RMB392,342,000. No impairment was
recognised during the year.

RZZBE-—RE+TA=+—0  BEEEHFEKEZIERKR
FEU IR AR #392,342,0007T © F AN ERERRE o

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss and the amount of impairment loss to
be recognised, the management takes into consideration
the credit history of the customers and the current market
condition which require significant management judgement.
REEREFEREBBENTERE KRERREBENEER
K- BEEEZREFLPNEERHENENTR  EHFETEEE
H B A HE -

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment of
trade receivables made by the management of the Company
included:
HIHE
B

BERAEREBEHNEKE ZRFREF ENEF

- We discussed with the management the Group’s
procedures for granting of credit periods to its customers;

- BMEEEEHNR BERERTHEFPEREHNER

«  We evaluated the impairment indication for each trade
receivable balance by performing ageing analysis of the
trade receivables;

« HFBEBHEWEZRFETRERSNT  FESERKE
DRFERORETR

«  We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables; and

- RAIMERKEZRFINREENER &

«  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of trade receivables.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Annual Report
2016 but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS’ FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHE R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:~-

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHE R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung
Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 31 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE =L —~F+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBT ARETTT
Continuing operations HREEER
Revenue & 5 716,187 1,377,207
Cost of sales SHE A (679,684) (2,053,885)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(EE) 36,503 (676,678)
Other income, gains and losses HEUA - Wes R EE 6 (55,962) 17,381
Distribution expenses vaKi=1ib-3 (15,993) (30,831)
Administrative expenses TR (189,339) (208,260)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment REER CREEE) T8
losses), net 8(b) 604,173 (6,713,988)
Other expenses HAtnpZ (59,460) (46,430)
Results from operating activities BB CEE 319,922 (7,658,806)
Finance income B 984 2,826
Finance costs ZURID TN (447,939) (370,803)
Net finance costs B 75 B AR EE 7 (446,955) (367,977)
Share of loss of an associate o — B E AR EE = (6,522)
Loss before taxation BB AR 8(a) (127,033) (8,033,305)
Income tax (expense)/credit 5% (FAsx),/ % 9 (189,694) 1,105,525
Loss for the year from continuing operations B iFE K& XK NFEANEE (316,727) (6,927,780)
Discontinued operation EARIEREER
Loss for the year from RE BRI E TSR
discontinued operation FNEE 10 — (4,397)
Loss for the year FABE (316,727) (6,932,177)
Other comprehensive income Hig2E A
ltem that may be reclassified HigngeEsoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: EmmWIEE
Foreign currency translation differences BINETSEE 2
for foreign operations HNEBIRE = 24,524 30,799
ltem that was reclassified to profit or loss: EEFOEEERMIAR :
Foreign currency translation HEME A RRER
differences reclassified to profit or loss DEEERN
upon disposal of subsidiaries NI R = (4,438)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMBEBA  RHEE
net of tax 18 24,524 26,361
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEEZE (292,203) (6,905,816)
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ=—F— X F+_A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
- —F—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBT T ARETTT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: BiEER (BE),5F
Equity shareholders of the Company RABERFEA (330,542) (6,011,184)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR 13,815 (920,993)
Loss for the year FAEE (316,727) (6,932,177)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for EEER2E (FE) A
the year attributable to: e
Equity shareholders of the Company RRATERFFEA (306,018) (5,984,823)
Non-controlling interests SRR E T 13,815 (920,993)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREZEEEHEEE (292,203) (6,905,816)
(Loss)/earnings per share from continuing FARABERITE AEMNL
and discontinued operations attributable REFERCKRIELEEK
to the equity shareholders of 28Rk (&8 &7
the Company during the year 14
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREAREE (B1B)  &F)
From continuing operations REFELEET (RMB13cents) | (RMB284cents)
(AR®¥13%7) | (AR¥284%)
From discontinued operation RE BRI E R - RMB1cent
= ARB1D
From continuing and discontinued operations 2K B4 N B & IHE S %55 (RMB13cents) | (RMB283cents)
(AR¥132) | (AR%283%)
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BEIR R

At 31 December 2016 A=—Z—"F+-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-AF —hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(=2 ARET ARETTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B MR 15 2,614,793 2,437,997
Coal mining rights B R R TR 16 2,292,588 1,942,708
Lease prepayments HEBEM RN 17 5,073 5,213
Interest in an associate R—EE QR 2 s 18 - -
Deferred tax assets FIERIAE B 19(a) - 690
4,912,454 4,386,602
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 21 49,652 88,073
Trade and bill receivables JEUE Z R R R IR 22 392,342 582,284
Prepayments and other receivables TE A< BR 3 N E A R M BR 5K 23 281,158 187,243
Pledged and restricted deposits B R BB H 7R 24 2,113 45,911
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 25 24,713 20,669
749,978 924,180
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bill payables BN E SRR ENRE 26 (981,827) (1,088,711)
Other payables H e ER R 27 (2,946,743) (2,5625,023)
Borrowings B’E 28 (6,043,271) (5,905,322)
Tax payable FETFRIE (242,050) (236,438)
(10,213,891) (9,755,494)
Net current liabilities nBAEFE (9,463,913) (8,831,314)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABIERE (4,551,459) (4,444,712)
Non-current liabilities FRBEMS
Other payables H A FE T AR X 27 (67,717) (82,195)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIR1EZRE 29 (96,458) (79,047)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE 19(b) (205,673) (23,442)
(369,848) (184,684)
Net liabilities BEFE (4,921,307) (4,629,396)
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

At 31 December 2016 R=ZE—~E+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
AL —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
hE=s AR%T ARET T
Capital and reserves MR R
Share capital A&z 30(b) 211,224 193,275
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities 7K AR 4R AJ# A% B 5 30(c) 156,931 156,931
Quasi-capital FHEXR = 45,771
Deficit B At 30(d) (5,447,702) (5,169,798)
Total deficit attributable to equity RRAREREE AEWSL
shareholders of the Company B4tz (5,079,547) (4,773,821)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR R 158,240 144,425
Total deficit B A% (4,921,307) (4,629,396)

—tF=A=+—BHETEREEEER

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China R Z=%&
RAEFGHEREETE -

Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2017.

Xu Da Bai Tao
wE HES
Director Director
EE=a E=a
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEZ&#5E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RS ER

N

n

+—RHEE

F+-A=

7N

2TF

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;

(966'629'%) 'l (178°eLL%) +(20L0919) LT +(189711) 1080819 WLl 166951 LLLSH 66'17€ GLT'e6l
(c26'68) (0c8's81) 876'6 18ee 8ryel - (1L528) - - LLLSY 798l 77L9l
- - - 19E'l (198') - - - - - - -
6891 - 68LY1 - 68LY1 - - - - - - -
LLLSY - LSy - - - - - - LLLSY - -
- - - 6697 - - (66972) - - - - -
- - - 8222y - - 80Ty - - = = =
Loy - 9110y - - - - - - - el L9l ()aloe
(82L) - (82L) - - - - - - - (8aL') -
(0/8'81) (0/8'581) - - - = = - B = - -
(918506'9) (666'026) (678786'S) (#81'110°9) - 19692 - - - - - -
19692 - 19692 - - 19690 - - - - - -
- (8etry) - - - - - - - -
6608 - 66£06 - - 6608 - - - - - -
(LLV7e6'9) (666026) (#81'110°9) - - - - - - - -
1789967 887157 Y80I (0ee'891) 6928 (270'661) £05°G79 il 166951 - 052708 165°9L1
(MPoeRY  (MPJosEy  (NPICEY  (E0ERY  O)0EEH (G)oeiy £l
(P)og 810N (I{p)og 810N (P)oe 810N (9Jog e1oN Pog e1oN (q)oe 10N S3I0N
LIgdY LY Lrgdy LY LrgHY LIgHyY LrgHaY LrgaY LigaY LigaY LrgEY LIgdY
0008 000.8Nd 000.8Nd 000.8N4 000.8Nd 000.8M4 000.8Nd 0008y 000.8Nd 0008NY 000.8Nd 0008
&5 (1) £ gaE YETIZ L LE L 9865 SR VEH E LA v
/% #EYOY Bk
oyap)/fanba  sisaselul Jel0] $8550] 308sa) EIVES] SaNasaYy EINES) S8111n03s Jeaded wniweld Jexdeo
Jelol Sunosuoo pajeIWny  Uopesusdwod  agueyxg Jadia) 81q1anuod -Iseny aleyS aleyg
-UoN paseg-aleys paleuIplogns
Jenjediad

CENEE S (N
fuedulog a3 Jo s1apjoyaseys A1Nba o} BjeINgUIY

gHLy
= e
PR
EL A iEas)
Ny
YRy

B2
Y EERYvE

ETURAYE
SHTREIAS
YL ERRY
296
LERH Rl
B NER
HEEERY

(YT RANEE
HYEHRRY

8% (39)/ Ve

EHMESHE

EZEHRY
BRYSECLE
HEvENSH

EEEURY
CHIELE
YHESHE
sy

i (59
/Y fEEHS

H-H-$T-&-y

6107 1oquiadsg LE W

S153Ja3U1 BUl0U0D
-UOU PUE SJ3pJoyaJeYS
f3inba yim suonoesuey} jelop

pasde) suondo aJeys
S)uswfed

Paseq-aleys pajties-Ainb3
Jexdeo-isend

se pesi|e}|ded sajgefed
Spunj uoiianposd pue

B0UBUBJUIEW JO UONESI|ii
spunj uoizanposd pue

30UBUB)UIeW J0 Uonyerdosddy
Buioeid

101080581 Ul PaNSs| saJeyg
591111088 8]G11I3AU0D
pajeuiplogns jenjedsed

0} Surieje uopngrsig

SalJeIpIsqns Jo esodsig
fyinba ui Apaaiip papiodss
‘sjsalajul Bujouod
-UOU UE S13|oyaeys

fyinba yyim suoryoesues)
(ss0))/ewooul

8AISUBYRIALID [e30]

awoau|
3A/SU3BI0W00 Jau10 |B10]

SALBIPISYNS JO
1BS0dsip uodn $0} 40 31j0ud
0} P3I}ISSe)03 SBAUBIBLID
Uopejsues1 foualing udialod
suoijesado
U3le10} Joj SBOUBJBYIP
Uonejsues1 fouaLino udialod
5UI00U] NISUBRIdWOD JaU1()

Jeafl 8L} 10§ $07
Jeakay) Joj (550))/ui00u
aAISuaYaIdwiod jejoL

6107 Arenuer | 3y

NEFH

ot

Annual Report 2016



I3
<
B
i
[
%
o
)

China Qinfa Group Limited #

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE =L —~F+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
hE=s ARBT ARETTT
Operating activities RETEE
Cash generated from operations KEEEERE 25(b) 73,129 373,741
Interest paid ERFER (135,685) (283,064)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid EfTRBEEEMSHR (1,161) (1,280)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KeESEE (FTA) FiBRLFE
operating activities (63,717) 89,397
Investing activities REEE
Interest received LS 984 2,844
Proceeds from sale of property, LEYE - BRE RBEERIE
plant and equipment 47,403 18,637
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WY - BE MEE (163,009) (312,948)
Net proceeds from disposals of HERBARMEE AT
subsidiaries and associates Fr 1S 50085 58 32 - 346,712
Net cash (used in)/generated REZE (FiA),/ FBREBE
from investing activities (114,622) 55,145
Financing activities R SER
Distribution relating to perpetual B K A R AR AT AR 75 25
subordinated convertible securities BER DIk 30(c) = (4,728)
Proceeds from borrowings B EFSHIE 1,888,848 3,605,561
Repayment of borrowings EEEER (1,750,899) (4,269,964)
Decrease in pledged and restricted deposits 2 K30 & Z R #1720 2 43,798 451,218
Net proceeds from placing of shares il & A% 15 P15 F08 )5 58 30(b)(i) - 40,116
Net cash generated from/(used in) mMEEEE
financing activities (FiR) REFE 181,747 (177,797)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEYEM,
cash equivalents (R2) F8E 3,408 (33,255)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZRERRELEEY 250 20,669 53,864
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSEHWY 636 60
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—H=
RERRSEEY 25(a) 24,713 20,669
Significant non-cash transaction ERFRERSZ

On 25 December 2015, certain interest payable to a financial
institution of RMB48,822,000 is to be settled by issuance of shares
of the Company. Such amount was capitalised as Quasi-capital in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December

2015.

AR -

RZT—RE+-_A=-+HE  EN—RELE
BHE TR B ARK48,822,000T#5 B @EITA
RRIRO T - BASEEREE
AT HLEFENGEMBRRANENMES

—E—RFE+
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

e PR M

31 December 2016 —Z—XF+=—_A=+—H

1.

1.1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

General information

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2007 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is 22nd Floor, South Tower,
Poly International Plaza, No. 1 Pazhou East Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering,
storage, blending of coal in the PRC and shipping transportation.
The Group was also engaged in the provision of port services, which
the Group has discontinued during the year ended 31 December
2015 as a result of the disposal of a subsidiary, as disclosed in Note
10.

1.2 Basis of preparation

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related
Interpretations, promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below:

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands,
except when otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Going concern

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group continued to
be affected by the unsatisfactory performance of the Chinese coal
market. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the directors of the Company have given consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that the Group
incurred a consolidated net loss of RMB316,727,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceed its current assets by approximately
RMB9,463,913,000 and capital deficiency of RMB4,921,307,000.
As at 31 December 2016, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of RMB959,229,000 and
RMB361,965,000 respectively were not renewed or rolled over
upon maturity of which, up to the date of this report, the banks had
renewed or had agreed to renew conditionally borrowings in an
aggregate amount of RMB77,500,000. Subsequent to 31 December
2016, the Group had settled the principal and interest of such
borrowings of RMB4,356,000 and RMB904,000 respectively. The
non-payment of loan principal and interests in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates caused the banks having the rights to
call for immediate repayment of all borrowings and their respective
interest. In this connection, certain borrowings with scheduled
repayment terms over one year totaling RMB2,473,678,000 have
been classified as current liabilities.

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

1. PRIBEEREREE @)

1.2RBEXE ()

(a) BREH @)
Rt R R B EEM T B T ME(E
ST BRI iSRS 2] - 2 F RN AEE
RARATG AN+ HAME B R £k m] IR R
A - 37 R E BTt HEE
BB EAREEG B ZEEE) MmN
RIF BV MR AN L STBOREE) o

(b) stEER
RIESBER AREMBREUAARS
(TAR®]) REMIIR - FASBEHSNER
AZREENTAUHE -

RENEEVBREAABZFAEEE[ESL
AL -

(c) FHBRE

BHE-_ZTE—AE+=-_A=+—HIEE "
AEBEBEZHEBEIXTHENTR KRBT
2 - NMREAEBRSRAUERRE  &AQ
RESFEEREASENAREBES BA
AEBREE_T—X"F+-_A=+—HLt
FEELGABEFEARM316,727,000
T RRER  AEEMNRBABRBLE
B E E 4 AR ¥9,463,913,0007T & &
%58 R A R %4,921,307,000C R T
—A"NE+-A=+—8 2EIFNAAR
#959,229,0007T & A R #361,965,0007C
MEE K ETFEREI BT REES R
7 BEAREBH  BROCEESERE
EGHHwEEEES £ ARK77,500,000
T —E—XRNE+-_A=+—H% x&E
ESRENZEEENAE A BARK
4,356,0007T M A R#5904,0007T ° fHARREMK
RBEtZERAHEMNERAE LR S - RTT
BERERAEEMEEERELHEERES -
MHME > HEEBZBEHA—FUL - A
LHE A AR 473,678,000 E THE
ENEARSALRE -
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1. RABERBREE w

PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

1.2RBE%E (1)

(c) Going concern (continued) (c) HELKE @)

As at the date of this report, the Group has not obtained waivers
from the relevant banks on these cross default clauses, but these
banks have not taken any action against the Group to demand
immediate repayment except for as disclosed in Note 41(a)(v).

In addition, as at 31 December 2016, there were several pending
litigations mainly requesting repayment of long outstanding
payables with interest against the Group, as set out in Note 41(a).

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the assumptions that the Group will continue to operate as a
going concern notwithstanding the conditions prevailing as at 31
December 2016 and subsequently thereto up to the date of this
report. In order to improve the Group’s financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a
going concern, the directors of the Company have adopted several
measures together with other measures in progress at the date of
this report which include, but not limited to, the followings:

(i) The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and capital expenditures;

(i) The Group is maximising its sales effort including seeking
long term orders from power plants in the PRC with a view to
improving operating cash flows. Considering the recovery of
coal market and increasing coal prices, the Group is expected
to generate operating cash inflows in 2017 from its existing
production facilities;

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Going concern (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The Group has been actively negotiating with certain banks
to renew its borrowings. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group has successfully extended the repayment
and renewed the terms of certain existing bank loans that had
original maturity in 2016, totaling RMB1,986,392,000, which
RMB1,915,092,000 and RMB71,300,000 will be falling due
before and after the end of 2017 respectively.

Subsequent to 31 December 2016, the banks had renewed
or had agreed to renew conditionally the borrowings in an
aggregate amount of RMB77,500,000. The renewed borrowings
would be repayable after 31 December 2017;

In relation to those bank loans that were not renewed or
rolled over upon maturity or those bank loans that became
immediately repayable under the cross default clauses, the
Group is in the process of negotiating with the relevant banks
to extend the repayment and renew the loans and to obtain
waivers from the lenders for the due payment pursuant to the
relevant cross default clauses;

For borrowings which will be mature before 31 December 2017,
the Group will actively negotiate with the banks when they
fall due to secure necessary fund to meet the Group’s working
capital and financial requirements in the future. The Group has
not experienced any significant difficulties in renewing most of
its short-term borrowings upon their maturities and there is no
indication that the banks will not renew the existing short-term
borrowings upon the Group’s request. The directors of the
Company, have evaluated all the relevant facts available to
them, are of the opinion that the Group would be able to renew
such borrowings upon maturity; and
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1. RABERBREE w

PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

1.2RBE%E (1)

(c) Going concern (continued) (c) HELKE @)

(vii) The Group is actively negotiating with the plaintiffs for
settlement of the court cases. Subsequent to year end and up
to the date of this report, the Group has successfully reached
an agreement with certain plaintiffs at a PRC court on a
settlement plan over 40 cases with an aggregated amount of
RMB72,062,000 that will be repaid by monthly installment. In
addition, the Group has reached an agreement with certain
plaintiff in settling the amount of RMB1,686,000 by installment.
The aggregated amount to be settled before 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB25,686,000. The directors of the Company are
of the view that the Group will be able to resolve these matters
without significant impact on the Group’s cash flow in the next
twelve months.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the measures
described above in the foreseeable future and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the twelve months
from 31 December 2016. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the going concern
basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their estimated recoverable amounts, to provide
further liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other resources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are described as
follows:

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables

Impairment losses for trade and bill receivables are assessed and
provided based on management’s regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual customer.
Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the profit or loss in future years. At 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade and bill
receivables was RMB392,342,000 (2015: RMB582,284,000). Further
details are disclosed in Note 22.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

1.

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)
(ii)

(iii)

Use of judgements and estimates (continued)
Depreciation

Other than the mining structures, property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual values.
The management periodically reviews changes in technology and
industry conditions, asset retirement activity and residual values
to determine adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives and
depreciation rates. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expenses in future periods. At 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, other than the mining structures and assets under
construction, was RMB1,135,629,000 (2015: RMB1,351,366,000).
Further details are disclosed in Note 15.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of distributing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of competitor’s actions in response to industry cycles
or other changes in market condition. Management assesses the
estimations at each reporting date. At 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of the Group’s inventories was RMB49,652,000
(2015: RMB88,073,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 21.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1. ARAESEREHREE w)
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued) 1.2RBEE @)

(d) Pz HIER R &5 ()

(iv) BIREE

(d) Use of judgements and estimates (continued)

(iv) Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal reserves are inherently
imprecise and represent only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated coal reserves can
be designated as “proved” and “probable” Proved and probable
coal reserve estimates are updated on a regular basis and have
taken into account recent production and technical information
about each mine. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from
year to year, the estimate of proved and probable coal reserves
also changes. This change is considered a change in estimate for
accounting purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in
related depreciation and amortisation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates,
these estimates are used in determining depreciation and
amortisation expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation and
amortisation rates are determined based on estimated proved and
probable coal reserve quantity (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of mining structures and coal mining rights (the numerator).
The capitalised cost of mining structures are depreciated and coal
mining rights are amortised based on the units of coal produced.
At 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
mining structures recognised in property, plant and equipment
and the Group’s coal mining rights were RMB737,652,000
(2015: RMB661,379,000) and RMB2,292,588,000 (2015:
RMB1,942,708,000) respectively. Further details are disclosed in
Notes 15 and 16 respectively.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

1.

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (conTinuED)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)
(V)

(vi)

Use of judgements and estimates (continued)
Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final reclamation and mine
closure involves the estimates of the amount and timing for
the future cash spending as well as the discount rate used for
reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The Group considers various
factors, including future production volume and development plan,
the geological structure of the mining regions and reserve volume,
to determine the scope, amount and timing of reclamation and
mine closure works to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the Group and the
estimated liabilities may turn out to be different from the actual
expenditure incurred. The discount rate used by the Group may
also be altered to reflect the changes in the market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability,
such as changes of the borrowing rate and inflation rate in
the market. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), revisions to the obligations
will be recognised. At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
the Group’'s accrued reclamation obligations was RMB96,458,000
(2015: RMB79,047,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 29.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that non-financial assets with definite lives may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(k)(ii). In assessing whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets may be impaired,
the Group considers indications from both internal and external
sources of information such as evidence of obsolescence or
decline in economic performance of the assets, changes in market
conditions and economic environment. These assessments are
subjective and require management’s judgements and estimations.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

2. EXEFHBE @
(a) B AR R IFIZERELR (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(e)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (Note 2(b)) or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (Note 2(k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(b) Associates (continued)

(c)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(e)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—

2.
(c)

(d)

(i)

NFETZA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Goodwill (continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (*CGU”), or groups of CGU, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances
relevant to the entity (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB (the “presentation
currency”), while the functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”).

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
financial year. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss, except those arising from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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2. ERSFBE @
(d) HhE& (40
(iii) B INETE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
(d) Foreign currency (continued)
(iii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to RMB at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

BIEBHEENBE (BRAKRBELEN
ARAERE) BREBNINEEZRE S A
R¥ - BINEBOBRARFAXRZ S AEX
BMER/ARE -

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive INEZBE D RIREMEE HQ?\‘:P HRI R
income and accumulated in the translation reserve, except to the ERET R EREEEOEIEERE

extent that the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling
interests.

If the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable
to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in
the foreseeable future, then foreign currency differences arising
from such item form part of the net investment in the foreign
operation. Accordingly, such differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve.

Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date
that they are originated. All other financial assets are recognised
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does

Nz o+t
BRI ©
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not retain control over the transferred assets. Any interest in such BERR BAAKRBEELANRE ZEERZ
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group EEMEBEECEMNERERAENEERE
(==

is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

o
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

Loans and receivables comprise pledged and restricted deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and bill receivables, and other
receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the trade date
at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
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2. ERSFBE @
(e) £WIE &)
(i) ETELRERE @

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities (continued)

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Such financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost comprise trade and bill
payables, other payables and borrowings.

(iii) Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects,
are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued by the Group
gives the right to the holder to convert these securities into a fixed
number of the Company’s shares at any time at a fixed exercise
price per share. Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

AKERIEDTE S BB EDRARBHHA
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Rk %56 A ERARRAEA R
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with no contracted obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distribution are classified as equity. Respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD) 2. EAEFBER @
(f) Property, plant and equipment (f) W% BERSZE
(i) Recognition and measurement (i) BRKRE

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(Kk)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (Note 2(s)) and changes in the measurement
of existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting from
changes in the timing or outflow of resources required to settle the
obligation or from changes in the discount rate. Purchased software
that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have been determined,
costs incurred to develop coal mines are capitalised as part of the
cost of the mining structures. All other expenditures, including
the costs of removing waste materials, the cost of repairs and
maintenance and major overhaul, are expensed as they are
incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different estimated useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD) 2. EREFBER m

(f) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (f) % BERRE @

(i) Subsequent costs (ii) BB
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and WEBRYE  BELRXBEEDB,>ERAR
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is RAEBTERGERNz - MEKARIRA] AR]
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the FEE - AEXASZRZEENREER
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. R BRIBOWEEEBTUSER - W% -
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. BWEREENEEREXNASREEERE
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and AR ER o
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation (iii) &
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. ﬁ%)—ﬁ&félxﬁ$ﬂfﬁ\ﬂﬁﬂﬁ@ o &l 51
Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a BEMNEEZERN DS T ARM - ﬂfﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ 3 HY
component has an estimated useful life that is different from the 1E§+—Iﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁiﬁém/ﬁ\ﬁﬂa‘ﬁﬁ$@ + Al
remainder of the asset, that component is depreciated separately. ZEBDGER T AFE -
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis Tﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ@ﬁ BERZEEHEEE (RRERZE
over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of PIBRHN) FE DB ET Al E R F AR FE
property, plant and equipment, other than mining structures. ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁp TR o
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of M BMEAIBEAEERBATRLERF
significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows: BRI AFEHRINT ¢
Plant and buildings 10-30 years = R iEF 10E30%F
Machinery 3-30 years a3 3E30F
Electronic and other equipment 3-10years B RHAMEE 3ZE104F
Motor vehicles 5-15 years E 5E 1654
Vessels 10-30 years B 102304
Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-production FIBEEEMBBEDRARGTHEKESZ -
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the depletion FERb EER BB A EAEITINE -
base.
No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until EREEEMLTKIAIERTE AR TET 1R
such time as the relevant assets are completed and available for E SEEREERBETKE  BAY
intended use. Assets under construction are transferred to the ¥ BERZENEBER -

relevant categories of property, plant and equipment upon the
completion of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values ﬁ%ﬁxﬁ AERIEAFHEEEE NS
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. EHETRF AR (WEA) -
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2.
(g

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue)

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired from the
government or through a business combination. Coal mining rights

are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(Kk)(ii), if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-production
method, utilising proved and probable coal reserves in the depletion
base.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Lease prepayments are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(k)
(ii)), if any.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights except that the
amortisation is included as part of assets under construction when
the amortisation can be directly attributable to the cost of relevant
assets during the construction period.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuen)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of spending
estimates at both surface and underground mines in accordance
with the PRC rules and regulations. The Group estimates its
liabilities for final reclamation and mine closure based upon
detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash
spending to perform the required work. Spending estimates are
escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability such that the amount of
provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The Group records a
corresponding asset associated with the liability for final
reclamation and mine closure. The obligation and corresponding
asset are recognised in the period in which the liability is incurred.
The asset is depreciated on the units-of-production method
over its expected life and the liability is accreted to the projected
spending date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in timing of
the performance of reclamation activities), the revisions to the
obligation and the corresponding asset are recognised at the
appropriate discount rate.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and
that the loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount
due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers,
the disappearance of an active market for a security, or observable
data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash
flows from a group of financial assets. In addition, for an investment
in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment includes a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets
measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables) at both an
individual asset and a collective level. All individually significant
assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to
be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment.
Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets
with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical
information on the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
less than suggested by historical trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an
allowance account against loans and receivables. When the Group
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of
the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other
than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill that have indefinite
useful lives or coal mining rights that are not yet available for
use, are tested annually for impairment. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU. For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operating
segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(v

Non-financial assets (continued)

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash
inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate assets
are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the
corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of
CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
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2. ERSFBE @
() EEEF )
(i) EREBARAKETEEME @)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
(1) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in the central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the
local municipal government. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to
reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years.

(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to share
capital and share premium accounts) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value added tax.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually
in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that
discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably,
then the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the
sales are recognised.
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(n)
(ii)

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Revenue (continued)
Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in nature, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on a percentage-of-completion
basis, which is determined on the time proportion method of each
individual voyage.

(iii) Government subsidies

(o)

(p)

Government subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Subsidies that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as other income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Subsidies that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the estimated useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total
lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprise interest income. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and bank
charges. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
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2. ERSFBE @
(q) Fﬁ SHBA

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)
(g) Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpose and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

SBHASKRFEFAMSHE 2 EREH
E&ﬁkﬁﬁé?&ﬁ@z ''''''' A5h o BIEARLIA
UREEHBEEERBBEEHRBERTE
R EEEMEERASEERESTER
MEERESBEA DR REME2EmBASKE
BRI A RERBRIN -

BV EA 7 18 2 4F A 3L B AR B UR A T T HA FE A~
MFLIE - TR HRE B &l ESE S FE T
R P RBEFEREARENEAFE M

A

E_o

BEFIAEER ARG T RIK B Al sk e
SRR EREER  IREERAGED BB
BmEMTENES ZREEFNERME
£ BERBEENS AR AHIARER
APATRELMESE °

BRETERIBRIN  FIBEELEHBEE G LIE
EHIBEEEEHLE A AL AR AR RER
Fm MR e T AR o IR A A
= EMESEBRLEHIBEEENRRERE
wmAl BIEAEE A FENERT TR E
EMEANHSE BELELNMHEEN/ANE
B — RIS RE — RN ERER W8
HRfE PRI E R = BB B A [E — HAfE =X
EREFTIS T & BE P EE AR v S /E5 48 7] 88 1 5
HEEER A D o ERTE B A FEAER
HERNEZEER BN FERARTENE
B R F R IR AT E £ IR EFTS R E
EFN - TeHAR—%£R - EEEEHERA
— B RE R EEER YRS
T8 HA7E g {5 FA 0] $5 40 &5 18 A0 2R F1) A3 A TE 4R
B ORI —HERNEE -



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
(g) Income tax expense (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are
met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2.
()

(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Dividends payable

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they
are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions on
behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing bank borrowings
and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with
IAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by
management’s judgement. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuep)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank borrowings
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”)
data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

(w) Discontinued operations

(x)

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is

presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD) 2. EREFBER m
(x) Related parties (continued) (x) BER @
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) ﬁf*/\TBﬂJET—H\mW ANEEEAREE
conditions applies: BRE

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group () ZEHEE ﬁ’i EER—SEKE
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow naE (SRR MBARIKRZR
subsidiary is related to the others); by ﬁlﬁtf’ﬁﬁ%’?@) ;

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) " HEBRS ERNBERRNK
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a EETE (KEZ—EBAKERFIZ
group of which the other entity is a member); SEETKERAICEERARIHE

PO
EE)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; (i) MEEBHRRA—F=TM&& D

¥

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other v " HERBRE-"FEEBHNEED
entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MR EBERBRZEF=-STEEN

=N

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v) EBRASBEREAEEEBE L
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the EEREENEZ IABERBENG
Group; 2 ;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) BB XZ(@FT#HAATIZESI T HMA
identified in (a); R

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over Vi RE@OFTHATHERBEERY
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel BNSBZEE (X *i EBNEAR
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and A) TEEEEKE

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) 88 - kR EBREP—HoE
provides key management personnel services to the Group 1l &= = &Y TEEHBZ BAAMASER
or to the parent of the Company. RARARIMBARIREETEERASR

AR o
Close members of the family of a person are those family members EARERRXEXNBEBHATEZE (X2
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person AAFERSHZEEBRIINRENXE °

in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

2. ERSFBE @
(y) RAREE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuED)
(y) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD) 2. EXEFBE @
(y) Fair value measurement (continued) (y) RREFTE @

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or FREMBHREPRANERNBEE LA BEHFT

disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised EEENMBERAABZREARNDLE  WATFT

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the it BEREAAENEERMEEEEXN
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement HREEREAMEE :

as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for E—& - HREEXABENERMISHNTS
identical assets or liabilities WE CREFHE)

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that FH EFHBMATEESEEERE
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or HWAN B EEEATENGER
indirectly observable =

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input F=F : HEFRWATAEHEEBHEER

that is significant to the fair value measurement is EREATENHKERE
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated REEFEEEERN GRSV BEREERNE
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines ERRENS  ARERSHEPRAAE
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by G (REASAABEAEEEMS B
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is BEANSEARNBE) BEEEBRCHAES
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of TERE -

each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments issued by the IASB.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the
IAS 28 Amendments Consolidation Exception
IFRS 11 Amendments Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IAS 1 Amendments Disclosure Initiatives

IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Amendments Depreciation and Amortisation

IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Amendments

IAS 27 Amendments Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2012 - 2014 Cycle

None of these amendments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has three reportable segments — coal business, shipping
transportation and port business — which are the Group’s strategic
business units. These strategic business units offer different
products and services, and are managed separately because they
require different technology and marketing strategies. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the port business segment was
disposed of and was presented as discontinued operation which
details were set out in Note 10. For each of the strategic business
units, the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal
management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is adjusted
loss before net finance costs and income tax expense. Items
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as
unallocated head office and corporate administration costs are
further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, interest in an associate and current assets with
the exception of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and bill payables, other payables attributable to activities
of the individual segments, accrued reclamation obligations and
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

7 AR ¥R

(a) DEHEE - BEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

4, SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinuED) 4, DHWHRE @
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) P HEE BEREE W
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FELEEY BRIHEELE
Coal business Shipping transportation Port business Total
R mEEH BOER Eh)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-RF | Z5-RF | Z8-~F | ZE2-0F | ZB-~F | CE-1f | SB-RF | C2-0f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | A\RETL | AR%TR | ARETL | AR%TR | ARETR | ARETR | ARETT
Revenue from external customers iEaslien 608,469 1,220,485 107,718 156,722 - 31317 716,187 1,414,624
Reportable segment revenue TREPHUE 608,469 1,220,485 107,718 156,722 - 37317 716,187 1,414,524
Reportable segment profit/(loss) HESBREEER /
before taxation (B8) 590622 | (7401623) |  (262,627)|  (243,618) - 40,268 327995 |  (7604,953)
Depreciation and amortisation nERES 88,146 162,148 29,788 70812 - 53,046 117934 276,006
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment W% BERRE
losses on property, plantandequipment ~ (HEER)/BEFE |  (396451) [ 2,848,840 184,854 218,665 - - | (1597 3067505
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment FirivgiE
losses on coal mining rights (BEAE)/FEEE | (37M199) | 2678444 - - - - | (67199 | 2678444
Impairment losses on interests in RBEAR R
associates HEEE - 70705 - - - - - 70,05
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment RWEZER
losses on trade receivables (HEER)/ HESE (13568) | 502,479 - - - - (13,568) 502,479
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment BNEARE L ERES
losses on prepayments and 2 (HERE)/
other receivables REER (7809) [ 394855 - - - - (7809) [ 394855
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HENBARREERR
subsidiaries and associates 2 (B8)/ i - (2751) - - - 70,834 - 68,083
Reportable segment assets IREIBEE
(including interest in an associate) (BER-BHELH
) 5,745,978 5,016,443 428,635 669,135 - = 6,174,613 5,085,578
Reportable segment liabilities THEAPER (10,454,739) |  (9,957818) | (1,015,360) (963,345) - - | (11,470,009) | (10921163)
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4., SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinuED)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit/

31 December 2016 —Z—

. DEHE @

A P RARMEE

NFETZA=1+—H

(b) REFERCRULEREEBNTRES

(loss) before taxation from continuing and discontinued B - BEADER (BE) - BER
operations, assets and liabilities BEHER
Revenue from continuing and discontinued operations REFFE R DRSS ERe s
2016 2015
—E-XRF —hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Reportable segment revenue Al #REo Ep U = 716,187 1,414,524
Consolidated revenue from continuing KEFHERDRIEREEE 2
and discontinued operations el 716,187 1,414,524

Loss before taxation from continuing and discontinued
operations

SR

BRI E X < BRI ATEE

2016 2015

—E-AEF —hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Reportable segment profit/(loss) before taxation ARG D ERBIATR R (EE) 327,995 (7.604,953)

Unallocated head office and corporate expenses NN oy NS ENE] 7253 (8,073) (20,087)

Net finance costs TSR AN F R (446,955) (412,662)
Consolidated loss before taxation from REFERBRILEEEL

continuing and discontinued operations mEBRTAER
(included gain on disposal of subsidiaries) (BIEHENE ARz WEw) (127,033) (8,037,702)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinuED) . DEERE @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit/ (b) REZENRCALEEEENTRES
(loss) before taxation from continuing and discontinued M - BREADEFR S (BE) BER

operations, assets and liabilities (continued) BEHER @
Assets BE
2016 2015
—g-xF| —T-a%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Reportable segment assets AIREDEBEE 6,174,613 5,685,578
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 EP R M AR Tk 2 ¥ 8 (522,604) (381,224)
Deferred tax assets RIETRIAE B - 690
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 10,423 5,738
Consolidated total assets IREBEMBR 5,662,432 5,310,782
g (==
Liabilities 8f&
2016 2015
—B-AF —h%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARET T
Reportable segment liabilities AlFRED T EE 11,470,099 10,921,163
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7 2B FE A BR SR 2 ¥ 88 (1,349,211) (1,251,696)
Tax payable FESRITA 242,050 236,438
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIB A E 205,673 23,442
Unallocated liabilities ROMEE 15,128 10,831
Consolidated total liabilities e BEesE 10,583,739 9,940,178
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, SEGMENT REPORTING (conTinueD)
(c) Geographic information

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s total assets are primarily
dominated by assets handling its coal business and shipping
transportation business. The coal is sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in all coal mines are
physically located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets and
liabilities are almost all located in the PRC. The vessels are primarily
deployed across geographical markets for shipping transportation
throughout the world. As a result, the directors of the Company
consider that it will not be meaningful to allocate the Group’s assets
and their related capital expenditure to specific geographical
segments. Accordingly, geographical segment information is only
presented for revenue, which is based on the geographical location
of customers.

Revenue from external customers from continuing and
discontinued operations

A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

. DEHE @

(C) EHE R

R_EBE—XR"E+-A=1+—8 A&£EHL
BEFEAREHL B RERMMBBEREK
MEE BREEZEFHRBEARE  FiE
HEREEG FURNPE - l% HENE
ENBBEAETEBUNRTE EMEERSE
DR B A A % B TS SRS o Bt - AR

REERAKARBHE S BESAEEEE
MERBEARITESE - Alt * RER
FREMIBMEENREZNHE D PE
B} o

REBBEARCRILEEXBHNIINRES
iy 58

2016 2015
—E—XRE —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

PRC as 641,359 1,303,629
Other countries H MR 74,828 110,895
Total a5t 716,187 1,414,524
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ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

4, SEGMENT REPORTING (conTiNuED)
(d) Information about major customers

During the year, revenue derived only from the following customers
in coal business segment with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4, DEIRE @

d) EREEEFZ2EH
RER > ERXFEAEEWHBIBI0%Z T

FIRIREB D BB PR T

2016 2015

—E—XREF —E-ARF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Customer A ZEEA 155,610 N/A“NE

Customer B EFB 87,535 N/ATE A

Customer C ®PC N/ATiE A 270,085

Customer D XFD N/ATiE A 228147

5. REVENUE 5. W
Revenue for the year represents the sales of coal and charter hire REFWRREHEREROBARBS KA -
income.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised

REAERNZTER2HEMN WSS AEH W0

during the year is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Continuing operations RREEK

Sales of coal IR SHE 608,469 1,220,485
Charter hire income e WA 107,718 156,722
716,187 1,377,207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HA ~ Wz REE
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
F5E AR®T T ARETTT

Continuing operations BEREXK

Government subsidies BT B & (i) 2,479 3,237

Foreign exchange gain, net BE W am - JHER 7,716 6,653

Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR K AT

and associates ZERRE = (2,757)

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEVE  BMERXREZ

plant and equipment (B18),/ Wa=F58 (i) (70,525) 3,174
Fair value gain on capitalisation of payables ~ ¥ERERRER L (iif)

~rEE - 3,051

Others HAth 4,368 4,017

(55,962) 17,381

Notes: B 5

() The Group received unconditional subsidies from local government (i) AEERFAERE &R
during the years as recognition of the Group’s contribution to the /i\ ERERBAEEHEMCEERMER
development of local economy. BA °©

(i) During the year, the Group obtained government subsidy of (i) WER - REBREHRE - @B 855D -
RMB30,019,000 (2015: Nil) in respect of demolition of one vessel (2015: FERMBEZBEURTRMESLH
Nil) in accordance with “Implementation Plan for Early Retirement and Bomn (2 B8 38 % i A AN B8 55 0k 8 42 Al
Replacement of Obsolete and Worn-out Transportation Vessels And RS MBS R) R (EEEHRMMER
Singlehull Oil Tankers" €& B 1% &) f A 1 88 38 % 12 A7 3R A% 2 31 & b I B 7 % 5B X PP R B B B BIR A & B IR
5 2) and “Administrative Measure For The Special Subsidies Given Zj&'>> TR R (CE—RF E)
By The Central Finance To Encourage Retirement And Replacement 5 AR ¥30,019,0007t (— T —H F: &)
Of Obsolete and Worn-out Transportation Vessels And Single-hull Oil Zﬂ(/)ﬁ‘%ﬁ Bh ([ # A8 ﬁﬁﬁ_ﬂy\l" ?ﬁ E‘f&ﬁ
Tankers” (B EBMMM A B AR BEENP AV BREHTEESE BERE  FEMERBENEBRFIRESARE
EEA) jointly promulgated by the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of 70,929,0007C * WREFRNEF AL ENE -
Transport, the Development and Reform Commission, and the Ministry BE Rl EBEFEA o
of Industry and Information Technology of China (“Vessel Demolition
Subsidy”). After taking into account the subsidy compensation, the
net loss of demolition of the two vessels was RMB70,929,000 and has
been included in net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
during the year.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group capitalised (iii) @§:§—£¢+tiﬂ E‘?’f HIEFE $
certain payables as quasi-capital as disclosed in Note 30(b)(ii). SERBETRARSERNMEBBEN (KM eE
The fair value gain represented the fair value of the shares to be 30(b)(IB&) o A o B Y 15 i 4R PT ¥R T (B
issued at quoted market price over the carrying amount of payables BITIRD B A A B BB E R RAER
extinguished. EENEH o
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

7. NET FINANCE COSTS

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. BBARAFEE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Interest income MewA (984)] (2,826)
Interest on borrowings BEFE 443,371 417,655
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts FETBE 2N BR (FEE29)
(Note 29) 4,568 4,354
Less: Interest capitalised into property, W BEREERE
plant and equipment* &AL F) B+ = (51,206)
Finance costs BATERC A 447,939 370,803
Net finance costs BATG R AN 3 R 446,955 367,977
*  No finance costs were capitalised during the year ended 31 December * HE_T-R"FE+_A=F+—-BIEFE I
2016. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the finance costs BUBKAEERNM - BE_T—RF+ =
have been capitalised at a rate of 5.75% per annum. A= Jré:%ﬂ{ét FE - BBEKAEZREREX
5.75% &

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
(a) Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

8. BRFiAT

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

BiR

(a) BRBIATEGIBE HIBRA T BIR ¢

2016 2015
—B-REF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT

Continuing operations FREEEK

Cost of inventories (Note (i) FEBKAR (MsEG3)) 675,625 1,911,228

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value T &M ZE Al #3558 - 35,542

Minimum lease payments under operating lease: KEHE T o RIBEEENK :

- properties — ¥E 14,581 21,505

- vessels — MufA 4,734 8,198
Depreciation for the property, plant and M - BEREREITE

equipment (Note 15) (PfF5E15) 96,513 210,340

Amortisation of coal mining rights (Note 16) BIR IR S (FIEE16) 21,319 12,480

Amortisation of lease prepayments (Note 17) TETETBRFRE S (F5E17) 140 140

Property, plant and equipment I E YN ki

written-off (Note 15) (FI5E15) 2,090 204

Auditor’s remuneration 2% EX A N <

- audit services — BZR®E 1,852 2,108

~ non-audit services — FEFZARTE 1,130 1,563

Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ BERMRAY (TERREESFK

and chief executive’s remuneration (Note 11)) =T ABME (FizE11))

— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —¥e  EEEREMEF 123,342 257,316

— Contributions to retirement benefit schemes — RINENET B K 12,223 31,936

— Share-based payments — DABRAD B AR A 51 5,232 14,562
140,797 303,814

Note: MIeE -

() Cost of inventories included RMB180,418,000 (2015: RMB378,772,000) () FEKABEREREERIFX WX K
relating to employee benefit expenses, depreciation for the property, EREETERERFBEZBHEEBOA
plant and equipment and amortisation of coal mining rights which R #180,418,000c (—ZE—HF: ARK
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed 378,772,0007t) * B BEINET AR SZ

THTERR EXEBHEENERASHE -

separately above for each of these types of expenses.
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ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (conTinuED)

(b) (Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses, net

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. BRIZATE B

(b) CRERE), BIERE TR

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Continuing operations FREEEK
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses on ME - BB NEE ORERR),
property, plant and equipment, net (Note 15) WEEEFEE (5E15) (211,597) 3,067,505
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses on BRI ORERE),
coal mining rights (Note 16) BIEEE (FIEE16) (371,199) 2,678,444
Impairment losses on interests in associates N YN W N (= g
(Note 18) (HMtzE18) - 70,705
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses on JEURE 5 ERFR CRE R E ),/
trade receivables (Note 22) EEE (FfFE22) (13,568) 502,479
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses on TR BR % % L th FEE LA BR 5K
prepayments and other receivables, net (Note 23) CRERE), REEsEFE
(Mt5E23) (7,809) 394,855
(604,173) 6,713,988

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(a) Income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated statement

9. FREBEX (E%)

(a) REZEBRARAWFAEBIBAXZ (E

of comprehensive income represents: %)
2016 2015
—g-»x%| —T-3%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBT T
Continuing operations BEREEK
Current tax expense ENERR IE A 2
- PRC Corporate Income Tax — R EMEH 9,288 2
— Over-provision of PRC Corporate — BEFEREPEMRSEH
Income Tax in prior years EBRR (2,515) (9,189)
Deferred tax (Note 19) RIERIE (FI5FE19) 182,921 (1,096,338)
Income tax expense/(credit) FISfims /(E%) 189,694 (1,105,525)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continue)

(a) Income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as these subsidiaries did not
have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the year (2015: Nil).

No provision for income tax has been made for the subsidiary
located in Macau as the subsidiary did not have assessable
profits subject to income tax in Macau during the year ended
31 December 2015. The Group disposed of its entire interest
in the subsidiary located in Macau during the year ended 31
December 2015 (Note 32).

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on
the statutory rate of 25% (2015: 25%) of the assessable profits
of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC.

A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

9. FIBHEIREY% (E&)®

(a) ZEZHEWRARANAERBES (K
&) ¥ @)
() RERSHENEBREZHEEMNREIR
B REBHERWHASHERAE
BREHERNERAER

(i) AREIREBHNE R BRE R EE
AEHBMEBNSHOERTEN (=
T—0F &) #AKEALERZFN
BRRSEEMNESHIELEE -

(i) BRI ARFINMB AR REBEE -2 —
HE+-_A=+—HI-EEHETME
BRI SR ERTEF - AL
Eii: A NN VN R CY R (S
e AEBEREE_ZT—HF+_-A
S+ —ALFEHEENRFKB AR
ez (FisE32) -

(iv) PERIBRMEHRDERTBEREERZ

BB A B] 2 FE AR B i A% K E F R 25%
(ZZE—FRFE : 25%) {EHB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (conTinuED)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and

9. FIB8HMX (ER) @
(b) BBARKRHEZFBHEX (ER)

loss before taxation at applicable tax rates: RERBAIE R 2 H R ¢
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Continuing operations BEREXE
Loss before taxation B AT E R (127,033) (8,033,305)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, KAEARETERTRIER
calculated at the applicable tax rates GOEZERrE| 48,363 (1,922,910)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RUER 2 AR BT EE 2 B
not recognised & 150,019 662,300
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR HRA S 2 IS & 33 =
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIERZ AT E R =5/ 2
MR8 896 164,274
Utilisation of temporary difference not recognised in ~ B BAEFERERZ
prior years =% (7102) =
Over-provision of PRC Corporate Income BEFERBEEEMEH
Tax in prior years HREAR (2,515) (9.189)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrEfimY,(EE) 189,694 (1,105,525)

10.DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 26 June 2015, Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional disposal
agreement with Zhuhai Port Logistics Centre Co., Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Holdings Group Co., Limited to
dispose of its 60% of the equity interest in Zhuhai Qinfa Port Co.,
Limited (“Zhuhai Port”) for a cash consideration of RMB350,000,000
(the “Disposal”). Zhuhai Port Holdings Group Co., Limited is the
non-controlling shareholder of Zhuhai Port who owned 40% of the
equity interest in Zhuhai Port immediately before the Disposal.

Zhuhai Port was incorporated in the PRC and is principally engaged
in provision of port services. The Disposal was completed on 7
August 2015. The Disposal constitutes a discontinued operation as
Zhuhai Port represents the port business of the Group, a separate
major line of business.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

10.CRILEEET
R—EBE—RESNA=-+ B FEE%Z
SERRAE (ARRIZ2EWNBRR) Bk
EEYRPOBRAR (KREEERERS
BRARIZEEWBAR) FINEIKEELER
& UWIRe R E ARY350,000,0005T &
ERGKBREBBARAR ([HREHBH])
260%hHE ([HEEE]) - HKEBERER
BERARABWEBE 2 IEERRE - B
EZHEABE RGBT Z40%MHE -

REBBIRPBEAMKL  FERER
HEORY - HEFHER _T—RFN\A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

10.E R IEREER @)
BE-E—hF&F—HA—HEE=ZHEBHH -5

10.DISCONTINUED OPERATION (conTinuED)

The results of the port business for the period from 1 January 2015

and up to the date of disposal were as follows: A O EBHWEENT -
2015
—ZE—nF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Revenue Wz 37,317
Cost of sales SHE KA (67,557)
Gross loss EE (30,240)
Other income, gains and losses HAWA - Wz R EE 2,012
Administrative expenses THAX (2,318)
Results from operating activities REEBE TG _ (30,546)
Finance income EUE T N 18
Finance costs EURID RN (44,7083)
Net finance costs B B AN R ER (44,685)
Loss before taxation FRBiATES 18 (75,231)
Income tax expense FriSii < =
Loss after taxation MRBiREE (75,231)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB ARz W= 70,834
Loss for the year from discontinued operation RECRLREXEK > FREE (4,397)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued BEREERIEREER
operation attributable to: FREF(BR)
Equity shareholders of the Company RAGIERRFE A 25,695
Non-controlling interests FEPERRHE AR (30,092)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation REERIEREXEL 2 FREE (4,397)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

10.DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continueD) 10.E AR IEE X )
The net cash flows of the discontinued operation for the period E-E—hF—A—BEEEHEHHILEH
from 1 January 2015 and up to the date of disposal were as follows: MRERIECEERRSREFEAT -
2015
—hfF
RMB’000
ARBT T
Net cash used in operating activities K EEFTRIR &R E (10,243)
Net cash used in investing activities HEEEFTRAR®FE (1,094)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTAIR & FHE (300)
Net cash used in discontinued operation ERIEREEKFTARESFE (11,637)
11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NEBRITHRAZME
REMUNERATION
Details of directors remuneration are as follows: EEMe ZFBEWT
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances toretirement
and benefits benefit Share-based 2016
Directors' fee inkind schemes Sub-total payments Total
¢ 28R BIEHN NRGAER “E-RE
EZHe ENEHN TS Nt PAES @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors ESpg ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARBTTR ARETR ARBTT
Executive directors HTES
Mr.Xu Da fRELE 292 33 b4 669 = 669
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (i) A& (ki) 642 757 27 1,426 - 1,426
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note (i) IR &L (ki) 674 496 19 1,189 - 1189
Mr. Xu Jihua (‘Mr. Xu") (Note (i) REERE ((R%E]) (FE) 617 678 25 1320 - 1,320
Mr. Ma Baofeng (Note (ii) SRELE (i) 289 674 - 963 - 963
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TES
Mr. Huang Guosheng BEBLE 240 - - 240 30 270
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen SR 325 - - 325 30 355
Mr Xing Zhiying iFy g 240 - - 240 30 270
3,319 2,978 75 6,372 90 6,462
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e MR

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NEZBERTHEARME @
REMUNERATION (conTinuED)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  toretirement
and benefits benefit Share-based 2015
Directors fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
e BR RIREH DRAAEE  ZT-1%
LR EMiEd STEIER ) pAGE @i
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
Name of directors £z ARETEL  ARETT ARETn  ARETT  AR%ETn ARETR
Executive directors YES
Mr.Xu Da RERE 298 372 4 674 = 674
Mr. Bai Tao (Note (i) BEgE (e i) 449 531 6 986 - 986
Ms. Wang Jianfei (Note (i) FaR L (i) 632 496 18 1146 - 1146
Mr. Xu (Note(i) B () 632 740 2% 1,39 - 1,396
Mr. Ma Baofeng (Note (i) SRELE (F) 633 734 - 1367 - 1,367
Mr. Weng Li (Note (iv) Sk (fzHv) 129 127 1 257 - 257
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUEEHTES
Mr. Huang Guosheng HEELE 120 - - 120 76 196
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2GRLE 303 - - 303 76 379
Mr. Xing Zhiying MHaLE 120 - - 120 76 196
3,316 3,000 53 6,369 228 6,597

(i)

(iii)

Mr. Xu resigned as an executive director of the Company on 8
December 2016.

Mr. Ma Baofeng retired and ceased to be an executive director
of the Company on 23 June 2016.

Ms. Wang Jianfei, an executive director of the Company,
resigned as the chief executive of the Company on 10 December
2015. On the same day, Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as the chief executive of the Company.
Their remuneration disclosed above includes those for services
rendered by them as the chief executive of the Company.

Mr. Weng Li resigned as an executive director of the Company
on 8 April 2015.

(i) REAEER-ZZ—RFETZANBEER
NEMITES -

(i) BREEENR_ZE—RFRA=-+=H
BRERTBREARBAITES -

(i) RARATESFERRZLN - -5
FT_ATHBEARARSITRA
B-RAA ARARRNITEFHHLLEE
RERRRARFITRAER « RA LK
B eRMMESARRITHRAR
REREZME -

(V) BT EAER-T—FAEMAN BREAX
RATES -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NEBSERITHAZME @

REMUNERATION (conTinuED)

There were no amounts paid during the year (2015: Nil) to the
directors in connection with their retirement from employment with
the Group, or inducement to join.

“Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind” paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

12.EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS
Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include three (2015: two) directors of the Company, whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details
of remuneration paid to the remaining two (2015: three) highest
paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

FR - ARRABAES M ATRKRES
AEBR TR RIASRAEFINE 2R (=
T—REF E)-

EXMTHRITIESHAATEEN (HE  Z
BEREWREAN] —REERZEFALEERN
DA R B A R FE AR R H) H A RS
XN TFZEALTIZEALTERENME -

12.BEREREEASHMH

& & %

FR - ARERRRSFHZALBEARAR
AZ=%(CF—hF MB)EF KF
ZEHBRIA LT Z2S - MAKBEESRRS
ME(ZE—RF: =Z8) FHALINZ
BT

2016 2015

—E-XE —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBTIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREMET 1,734 2,422
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RO A ET B R 19 19
Share-based payments LARS {7 23 EEHE 2 55k 1,595 4,006
3,348 6,447

The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HKD
BT

HHMA (ZE—0F: =8) RaFHMA
TZHMIT

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AE

1,500,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 2,500,000
2,500,001 - 3,000,000
3,500,001 - 4,000,000

1
1

1

1
1

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

12.EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12.EERSREBASHFH @
EMOLUMENTS (conTinueD)
Employees’ emoluments (continued) EEHM @)
There were no amounts paid during the year (2015: Nil) to the five FEX - WEARAELESEES X NEMHE
highest paid employees in connection with their retirement from WEEANEBEREAR Y RIES (T e 42
employment with the Group, or inducement to join. B (—ZE—FF - |)o
Senior management’s emoluments SRETE A EEH
The emoluments of the six (2015: seven) senior management of the HE—T—F+-_A=+—HItEE ' &
Group who are not directors of the Company for the year ended 31 EFNEZ (ZE—AFE: £2) aREEA
December 2016 were within the following bands: B (WIEARRNTESE) 2E5HMOHnT -
2016 2015
i —T—AF
Number of Number of
HKD individuals individuals
BT A AR
1 -500,000 = 3
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 4 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 =
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 = 1
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 = 1
Of the senior management of the Group, eight (2015: nine, AEBZEREEAE  ER N\ (ZF—
including one director who resigned) were the directors of the TE: N BE—E2HEIES) REART
Company, including one director who resigned during the year and EE(BR—EBFABRTES R —BFAR
one director who retired during the year, whose emoluments are TEF)  KEZHFMNESFENRME -

included in Note 11.
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

13.0THER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive
income:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

Htt 2 E A
H2mBANSEXRIEONHBETE

2016
“E-RE
Before-tax Tax
amount expense
kA BEX
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARETR

2015
“Z-1F
Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount amount expense amount

BeeE HAeE BASH Hgke®
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AR®TR | ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR

Foreign currency translation differences for ~ [ESMEREL 2 4MiHAE

foreign operations =B 24,524 - 24,524 30799 - 30,799
Foreign currency translation differences HENEARRENHER
reclassified to profit or loss upon BRONEHEZS
disposal of subsidiaries - - - (4,438) = (4,438)
Other comprehensive income Et2ERA 24,524 - 264,524 26,361 - 26,361
14.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 88 (B518),  BF
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREAREBE (FE) 2R

The calculations of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the
(loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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14.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuep) 14. 88K (B8) 2R @
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued) BREAREE (BB) 2R »
As the Company’s outstanding share options and perpetual R AR B2 ARITE I IR Rk AR AT
subordinated convertible securities had an anti-dilutive effect to BREFEHHE T —AFR_ZE—AF+=
the diluted (loss)/earnings per share calculation for the years ended A=+—BLFESKRES (5B &F
31 December 2016 and 2015, the conversion of the above potential METEEAE REENE  TESRES (5
dilutive shares is not assumed in the computation of diluted (loss)/ 1B),/ BT RBRR ELBEEERMHE
earnings per share. yEL LB
(i) From continuing and discontinued operations (i) REFENRCRIEKEEK
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to HE_Z—XFER_E—AF+-_A=1+—
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended HIEFEARRERERTTAEABRLERE
31 December 2016 and 2015 are based on the following data: AEREEERIDERUTEIEAE -
2016 2015
—B-RF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREETIT
Loss for the year attributable to equity RARERFE ARLFREE
shareholders of the Company (330,542) (6,011,184)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual B BRESEAEZR KA
subordinated convertible securities classified IRBAT AR B 2 79 K
as equity (Note 30(c)) (Fff5E30(c)) (5,030) (4,728)
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity RPpalLBEREE ABGEA
shareholders of the Company 518 (335,572) (6,015,912)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FTEERERREEEEA
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss @R INRE T 19 8L
per share 2,493,413,985 2127,243,347
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

14.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuep)
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

(ii) From continuing operations

ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 are based on the following data:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. 8K (F8), B @

(i) REFELEXRR

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to HE_Z—R"FEZE—AF+-_A=1+—

BREFAREE (BB EF

BIEFEARREREDRTA ARGERE
REESERDENATBIEFE

2016 2015
—E—XE —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Loss for the year from continuing operations RRalEmfEE AELRERE
attributable to equity shareholders of E TS FNEE
the Company (330,542) (6,036,879)
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual B BEDERER Z KA
subordinated convertible securities classified IR BT B 2 77 K
as equity (Note 30(c)) (FzE30(c)) (5,030) (4,728)
Loss for the year from continuing operations RRAREEERFEE ARG
attributable to ordinary equity REFELE EZBEHEA
shareholders of the Company B8 (335,572) (6,041,607)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss
per share

AHEERER N EEERMA
B nEFE 2

2,493,413,985

2,127,243,347

(iii) From discontinued operation

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are based on the

following data:

(i) RE AL

BIEFEEART

BE_T—~FR-F-EF+-A=+-
=R A S RE
A REEEBFITIERA TR

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Profit for the year from discontinued operation RRRERERTE ABLR
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders B B4R I8 & T8 F s A
of the Company - 25,695

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted
earnings per share

A EBREARESE T I
BNt

2,493,413,985

2,127,243,347
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BMERKE

Electronic Assets
Plantand and other Motor Mining under
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles Vessels structures Port  construction Total
BERET BE STREMRE RE Ef  REE®M %0 HREE a5t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 RZE-15-f-A 1,040,484 1,420,432 45,009 167147 1,258,984 1,650,930 1,333,384 871,182 7787552
Additions WE 2177 1,164 1,341 10,59 34119 52,262 1,076 350,031 452,764
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) L E—FKBAR
(F3Es2) (1,278) (446,593) (990) (2,845) = = (1,334,460) - (1,786,166)
Disposals 3 (15,257) - (10) (1,860) - - - - (17127)
Written-off i = - - = (191) = = (141) (332)
Bxchange differences EXER 28 - - 78 37889 - - - 37995
At31 December 2015 and RZF-R%+2A
1January 2016 =t-Ak
I Sy
-A-H 1,026,154 975,003 45,350 173114 1,330,801 1,703,192 = 1,221,072 6,474,686
Additions e 5,505 19,294 2,202 4,569 3,207 12,843 = 105,408 153,028
Disposals it3 - - (4) (2237) (635,235) = = - (637476)
Written-off ik (2,090) - - = = = - - (2,090)
Fxchange differences ENZER % - - % 47057 - - - 47187
At31 December 2016 RZF-AF+2A
=T-H 1,029,604 994,297 47548 175,541 745,830 1,716,035 = 1,326,480 6,035,335
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERAERR
impairment losses
At 1January 2015 RZF-1F-A-A (68,641) (171,268) (20,889) (68,771) (392,436) (33,679) (3704) = (759,388)
Charge for the year FRfE (32,604) (98,897) (4512) (20741) (70,281) (8,961) (25,944) = (261,940)
Impairment losses HEEA (636,940) (450,686) (16,611) (49,604) (218,665) (999173) - (795,826) (3,067.605)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) LE-HHBAR
(P3Ea2) 229 26,513 470 2152 = = 29,648 = 59,012
Disposals & - - 9 1755 - - - - 1764
Written-off 6] - - - - 128 - - - 128
Exchange differences ExZE (20) = = (1) (8,699) = = = (8,766)
At31 December 2015and 1January ~ R=E-RF+-A
2016 =t-Bk
I Sy
-A-A (637976) (694,338) (41,533) (135,260) (689,949) (1,041,813) = (795,826) (4,036,695)
Charge for the year EnfE (18,035) (29,611) (3.439) (5.441) (28:07) (11:886) - - (96,513)
Reversal of impairment REES
Losses/(impairment losses) %/ (BEEE) 37630 68,629 1141 2877 (184,85¢) 75316 = 210858 211,597
Disposals e - - 5 1,986 511,979 = = = 513970
Bxchange differences ERER (35) = = (83) (12783) = = = (12,901)
At31 December 2016 R-B-RETH
=t-H (618,416) (655,320) (43,820) (135921) (403,714) (978,383) = (584,968) (3,420,642)
Carrying amounts REE
At31 December 2015 RZF-R%+2A
=t-H 388,178 280,665 3817 37854 640,852 661,379 = 425,246 2437991
At31 December 2016 RZE—F+2A
=t a8 3R 378 N W6 T - MER 26147
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continueD) 15. 412 « HERRE @

The title certificates for certain items of plant and buildings
with an aggregate carrying amounts of RMB382,876,000 (2015:
RMB360,630,000) as at 31 December 2016 are yet to be obtained.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use the above mentioned
properties and therefore the aforesaid matter did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position as at 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of RMB1,110,714,000 (2015:
RMB1,003,099,000) were pledged for borrowings (Note 28).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain vessels of the
Group suffered operating loss, as a result, the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of each of its vessels as at 31 December
2016. The carrying amounts of the vessels were written down to
their recoverable amount of RMB342,116,000. An impairment
loss of RMB184,854,000 was recognised in impairment losses in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the shipping
transportation segment. The estimates of recoverable amount of
each of the vessels were based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering the useful life of the vessels. A
pre-tax discount rate of 12.5% was applied and the discount rate
reflects the specific risks relating to the shipping transportation
segment.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

R-ZE—RNF+_A=+—"HAKEEA
K #382,876,000t (ZZE—HF : ARM
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R-ZT—RE+-A=+—08 A&EBKE®A
BEAARET 110,714,000 (ZZE—FR4F :
AR#1,003,099,00070) B2 « BB Ma&
BB ESEE (H:E28) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinuED)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a
segmental loss in the shipping transportation segment, as a result,
the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of its vessels as at 31
December 2015. The carrying amounts of each of the vessels were
written down to their recoverable amount of RMB640,852,000. An
impairment loss of RMB218,665,000 was recognised in impairment
losses in consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
shipping transportation segment. The estimates of recoverable
amount of each of the vessels were based on the vessels’ fair value
less costs of disposal with reference to a professional valuation
report issued by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers. The fair value is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent market prices of second-hand
vessels of similar tonnage and usage, adjusted for differences
in tonnage and remaining useful lives. The fair value on which
the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a level 3
measurement. The key assumption used to determine the fair value
less cost of disposal is that the management expected the sales of
the vessels would be completed on 31 December 2015 and these
second-hand vessels used as comparable are comparative to the
vessels of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, with the significant favourable change
in market circumstances in its coal business segment, the
Group assessed the recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment, together with coal mining rights of coal business
segment the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, each coal mine
constituted the smallest CGU, as a result, property, plant and
equipment, together with coal mining rights related to each CGU
are assessed for impairment independently.

The estimates of recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, together with coal mining rights of coal business
segment were based on their value in use method using estimated
future cash flows.

e MR

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

15. 9% - BERRE @

REBEE_ZT—AF+_A=1T—HILFE "
REBERMED G HBEE - ALt - K
EEFHESEMMR_ZE—RF+_A=
T—B®FKREIEE - MAMREERREE
A e & %A R #640,852,0007T © B B E
B AR ®218,665,000c 4R & 2 HIRA K
MR BMED EHRERRE - MM
AIREl &2 EF IBEXGEMA R E
7z BRHERE RERRME QA ERD
ERAMET - ARETI2ZBHEUMEC K BE
W= ? MY B TS B AT IS S LA
TE WA T REMEG R T er R A RABRAM =
(=] ;# S Al [ £ REPT AR 2 R AL BB ER

FE=MAREFE - AREEAR ﬂu”j’%
RANEFEREAEEEERAHEEMME =
Z-—RFFT_A=T—HEK " MZEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinuED) 15. 9% - BERRE @
As at 31 December 2016, the recoverable amount of property, RZZE—RE+A=1+—H 9% KE
plant and equipment and coal mining rights had been allocated as MBI RE R REEN A R E S B /EN
follows: Tof -

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZB-XRE+=-H=+—H

Recoverable Recoverable

amount amount

Pre-tax allocated to allocated to
discount rate Recoverable coal mining property, plant
of CGU amount of CGU rights and equipment

BT IEFWE-
ReE4EN REELEN ERFRBREN BERREH
HWBARERE WUREEE AJRESHE A e & 5

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T AR¥T T

(Note 16(iii))

CGU BEeELEN (B=E18(iD))
Xingtao Coal Mine FFE T 14.0% 1,288,000 906,454 381,546
Fengxi Coal Mine 5 P 14.1% 1,325,000 696,197 628,803
Chongsheng Coal Mine SH R 13.6% 1,043,000 392,064 650,936
Xinglong Coal Mine FE R 16.2% 462,000 202,121 259,879
HongyuanCoal Mine TR R 16.2% 413,000 95,752 317,248
4,531,000 2,292,588 2,238,412
As a result, an impairment of RMB396,451,000 was reversed and At - BiE A R®396,451,000 T E R M -
recognised in reversal of impairment in consolidated statement of WREBEE—ZE—NFE+-_A=+—HIEE

comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2016. M4EE 2 EIR AR NIEZR &RERD o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinuED) 15. 9% - BERZE @
As at 31 December 2015, as the result of the continuing RZZBE-—RFE+THA=+—8H BAREXT
unfavourable coal market circumstances and sustained operating HIERFEIN REKER D EIFE LR
loss of coal business segment, the Group assessed the recoverable EEE AEETEHEERESSEBME
amounts of property, plant and equipment, together with coal TR 55 I 5% M 2 [R) R IR B AR AE Y P Y Bl £ 58 o

mining rights of coal business segment the Group.

The estimates of recoverable amount of property, plant and RIREBDEE - BB MR EER KX
equipment, together with coal mining rights of coal business FEER A Bl BT IERRENRE
segment were based on their value in use with reference to REE  2ZHENBLEXEERMHER
respective professional valuation reports issued by an independent THAMNEEBEREED -

firm of professionally qualified valuers.

As at 31 December 2015, the recoverable amount of property, RZZE—RE+_A=+—H 9% BE
plant and equipment and coal mining rights had been allocated as N A KR R R B AT Bl S B2 /E R
follows: oA

As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H

Recoverable Recoverable

amount amount

Pre-tax allocated to allocated to
discount rate Recoverable coal mining  property, plant
of CGU amount of CGU rights and equipment

BT DETHWE -
HeEAEN BeEABEMN HEREEES KBELERRXRED
WEATARIRE A lE$5E Al E & 58 ERdEkeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT ARETIT

(Note 16(iii))

CGU REeEFEN (HtEE16(iii)
Xingtao Coal Mine 58 P B 14.0% 1,050,000 745,011 304,989
Fengxi Coal Mine RS PO B 15.4% 1,298,000 675,000 623,000
Chongsheng Coal Mine RFTRETE 14.3% 914,000 343,827 570,173
Xinglong Coal Mine B[ T 15.8% 219,000 109,870 109,130
Hongyuan Coal Mine TR TR 16.3% 233,000 69,000 164,000
3,714,000 1,942,708 1,771,292
As a result, an impairment loss of RMB2,848,840,000 was ALt EEE A K2 848,840,0007T 1
recognised in impairment losses in consolidated statement of BHE_ZT-—AFT-A=1T—HILEFENRE
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2015. AEEVARKNERBREEIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

16.COAL MINING RIGHTS 16. % 5k BRIERE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost RS
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R=ZZE—hHF—HA—H —Z—1F
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 +—A=+—8-
—E—RF-A—BER
—F-R"¥t=-A=t-8 4,776,872
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses  ExH# 8RB EEE
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hFE—-—H—H (143,240)
Charge for the year (Note (ii)) FREE () (12,480)
Impairment losses (Note (iii)) BEEE (HEE)) (2,678,444)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R=ZE—AF+-A=t+—A8K
—E—RF—-H—H (2,834,164)
Charge for the year (Note (i) FRBEE (MEE)) (21,319)
Reversal of impairment losses (Note (iii)) BB ETIE R (T E(ii) 371,199
At 31 December 2016 RZZE-—ARF+-_A=+—H (2,484,284)
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—H 1,942,708
At 31 December 2016 R-_ZE—XR"FE+-_A=+—H 2,292,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.COAL MINING RIGHTS (conTinueD)

(i)

The balance represents the rights to conduct mining activities
in Shanxi Province. The mine sites are located on land in the
PRC to which the Group has no formal title of certain pieces of
land. The Department of Land Resources of Shanxi Province
issued and renewed several mining rights certificates to the
Group. Details of the Group’s coal mining rights are as follows:

Coal mining rights Expiry date
Xingtao Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Fengxi Coal Mine 24 January 2034
Chongsheng Coal Mine 14 October 2018
Xinglong Coal Mine 29 February 2016
Hongyuan Coal Mine 12 April 2017

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements, coal
mining rights of Xinglong Coal Mine was expired. Management
is in the process of renewing this certificate. With reference to
the legal opinion received by the management, there is no legal
barrier for the Group to renew its mining rights certificates.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
will be able to continuously renew the mining rights and the
business licenses of respective mining subsidiaries at minimal
charges.

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

16. /& R BRTERE (a0)

(i)

HREERNILUAEARRRBEBOEN -
BHUNFEEL F AEETEET
fEEMmEEAFE - WAEBE LT ERE
MAEBERENEELHREEZS -
AEBERRBENFELT

RxERE ZHA

BB P 1 —E-N\F+A+IA
55 7 R —E=NF—A=+WmHA
SRR —ZET-N\FE+A+HEA
S B SR A —E-RFEZA=T+NH
R —ET—+FNA+=H

BEEAGAMBHRRAY  BEREN
R RBEECEE - EREEEEZS
E-2EEREMBERRER  A&H
EEHERBEEET BERER -

ARAEZRRAEEBEFERRE
EREESKBNBARNREENE
EHR -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

16.COAL MINING RIGHTS (conTinueD)

(i)

(i)

) Annual

Amortisation of the coal mining rights is based on the
units-of-production method, utilising proved and probable
coal reserves in the depletion base. Amortisation expenses of
RMB21,319,000 (2015: RMB12,480,000) have been charged in
cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2016, as the result of the significant
favourable coal market circumstances of the coal business
segment, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, together with coal mining rights
of coal business segment as disclosed in Note 15. As a result,
the carrying amount of coal mining rights was adjusted to their
recoverable amount of RMB2,292,588,000. An impairment of
RMB371,199,000 was reversed and recognised as reversal of
impairment loss in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

As at 31 December 2015, as the result of the continuously
unfavourable coal market circumstances and sustained
operating loss of coal business segment, the Group assessed
the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment,
together with coal mining rights of coal business segment as
disclosed in Note 15. As a result, the carrying amount of coal
mining rights was written down to their recoverable amount of
RMB1,942,708,000. An impairment loss of RMB2,678,444,000
was recognised in impairment losses in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s coal mining rights

with carrying amount of RMB2,292,588,000 (2015:
RMB1,942,708,000) were pledged for borrowings (Note 28).

Report 2016 =& —RFEFHK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. & R R TERE ()

(if)

WIRIRTEREE BB F A R E R
B UARRMEEFNBEEEMETIA
B4 AR¥21,319,000 (ZZE—H
£ ANR#12,480,0007T) 2 ##45 %
BT ASEERAE -

(iVR—ZBE—XR"F+-_A=+—8B 7R

BREFSBHERTHBEAEANE
o AEEFHEME - BEREZENAR
PR TS BB R BRAE ME A A] Uk B &
(M 15T E) - Bt - Hix
FREEEREARZHE KRB £
A R #2 292,588,0007C ° B E A R ¥
371,199,000 C R M » WA 2 M
WAFRAER AR EEEREE -

RZEBE—AFE+-_A=1+—8 BaRHE
RIS ERIFETF R E R ER DI
BHRLCEEE  AEEFEYE K
5 F 5% 8 DA Jo o IR SE 7 0 BB B IR ER R
RIRT Y El1 %8 (BB sE15FTHEEE) -
It o R BRI RE 2 BR T EMUR = E AT Uk
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e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

17. LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17. HEFEF RN
Sea Land use
use rights rights Total
TSI AR + i fF A #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ARET T
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 RZE—HF—H—H 45,971 84,982 130,953
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE M EAR (FEE32) (45,971) (77,984) (123,955)
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 R-_ZT—AF+_-_A=+—H -
and 31 December 2016 —ET—RF—H—H
R-_ZF—RFt+ZA
=t—H - G 6289
Accumulated amortisation e £
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—H (3,905) (14,127) (18,032)
Charge for the year (Note (i) FANBEHE (MHEEG)) (536) (1,050) (1,586)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE—FMBAR (MFE32) 4,441 13,392 17,833
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RE+-_HA=1+—H
1 January 2016 R=ZF—X"F—H—H = (1,785) (1,785)
Charge for the year (Note (i)) FREH (MEEG)) = (140) (140)
At 31 December 2016 R-FB-—RE+-_A=1+—H - (1,925) (1,925)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—AF+-_HA=+—H = 5,213 5,213
At 31 December 2016 RZEB—RF+_A=+—H - 5,073 5,073
(i) During the year, amortisation expenses of RMB140,000 () REAR - BEARK140,0007T &2 55
have been charged in administrative expenses. During the AYEATERAX REE-T—H
year ended 31 December 2015, amortisation expenses of FT-ZA=T—HLEFE  REARYK
RMB1,446,000 and RMB140,000 have been included in loss 1,446,0007C & A R #140,0007T #) # 35
for the year from discontinued operation and charged in FAXEDRBEEREERIELEED
administrative expenses respectively. NFERNEBBERFAITRAS
(i) As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s lease prepayments with (i) RZFE—RE+H=1+—H &x5E
carrying amount of RMB5,073,000 (2015: RMB5,213,000) were BREEAARS073,000c (ZE—H
pledged for borrowings (Note 28). F : AR%H5,213,0007T) MHEBNER

KR RARGEE (HE28)
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18.REE RN R 2=
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Unlisted investment: FELTHIRE :

Unlisted shares, at cost LIRS - BRAE 49,000 49,000
Share of loss FE(SETHE (2,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss B &8 (46,567) (46,567)
The following list contains the particulars of an associate, which TREI FTEZEREBREENEERN

principally affected the results or assets of the Group: i N =L =

Proportion of ownership interest

EEERERLLA

Principal
Group’s Held by activities and
Place of effective the Held by place
Name of associate establishment interest Company a subsidiary of operation
AEE TEEBR
BENEAM FR 3L B BRER FRREE HEAREA EEM R
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% = 49% Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa”) H (2015: 49%) (2015: 49%) in the PRC
RKRSE (38) ZRAR AR 49% 49% BRHE
((RKER%]) (ZZ—1F: (ZZ—n%F: HhET

49%) 49%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (conTinueD)

Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic partnership
for the Group for its coal business.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Tongmei Qinfa suffered
losses and management re-assessed the recoverable amount
of the Group’s interest in Tongmei Qinfa. The recoverable amount
of equity interest in Tongmei Qinfa has been determined to be
minimum based on its value in use with a pre-tax discount rate
of 15.16%. The directors of the Company determined that the
likelihood of recovering the interests in Tongmei Qinfa was remote.
Accordingly, a full provision for impairment loss of RMB46,567,000
was made. During the year ended 31 December 2016, Tongmei Qinfa
continued to suffer losses and no reversal of impairment has been
made.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
discontinued recognition of its share of losses of Tongmei Qinfa. The
amounts of unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from
the relevant management accounts of the associate, both for year
and cumulatively, are as follows:

18

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

JABE AT 2R @

RREER B SRR - b AKEEER
76 77 T O BRBR & fEBRE o

BHE-_Z—AFE+-_A=t—RHIEE R
HEEBREE EEEBCEEAEERE
HERBOEZNATKESEE - AIEFEAR
BRI Bl EEENEFEREENURAINR
KI516NEERBL c RRAIEEET -
WERBERBEEENAREEEN - At B
fER 2 REREE B E AR 46,567,000

REBEZE-_T—RE+_A=+—HILFE -
FIRRBFELREE - SHEELRER

IE] o

REBE_ZT—R"E+A=+—HBILEFE -
AEBERUIBRENERKEREEE - &
REBER

AREERRA 2 ANFERRG
DS QR BRI AR M IR

2016 2015
—E—-XE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREF T

Unrecognised shares of loss of REEHE—FHEE R FEERD
an associate for the year RIERED D 8,939 -

Accumulated unrecognised shares of Rt o h—MHEE A REED

loss of an associate REER I D 8,939 =

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Tiaro Coal Limited
(“Tiaro Coal”), a previous associate of the Company announced to
commerce a voluntary administration. The directors of the Company
determined that the likelihood of recovering the interests in Tiaro
Coal and Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. (“Paragon Coal”), a subsidiary
of Tiaro Coal and another previous associate of the Company,
of RMB24,138,000 was remote. Accordingly, a full provision for
impairment loss of RMB24,138,000 was made and charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. On 30 December
2015, Bright Rock Holdings Limited (‘Bright Rock”), a subsidiary
of the Company was disposed of, together with its equity interests
in Tiaro Coal and Paragon Coal, for a consideration of Australian
Dollars (“AUD”) 20,000 (equivalent to RMB95,000).

REE-_TE—AF+_A=+—RHILLFEE "
Tiaro Coal Limited ([Tiaro Coal]) ' Z~A ]
AEA—EEE AR EMRAMEREIEER
ERRF - ARBESEEWETiaro Coalk
Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. ([Paragon Coal])
(Tiaro CoalWIBE AR RARRIBER S —
B & A R]) AR 624,138,000 T # 5 69 A
BEMEN - Fit - EER 2 BEREEERE
AR ¥E24,138,0007T * WEREREZEBA
xR - RZT—RAF+_A=+H &R
A2 M@ 2 E]Bright Rock Holdings Limited
([Bright Rock|) = # [A] & M Tiaro CoalX
Paragon Coal MM # HE - HK{E%20,000
BT ([R5t ]) (HERAR95,0007T) °
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of the deferred
tax assets during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

1. EEREEERERE
(a) ELEBIEEE

REE T —

NERNZ_ZE—RE+ZA=1+
—HULEFE EEIRNEEHEEENEE

& :
Charged
to consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2016 income 2016
R=B—RE REEEZE RZZB—AEF
—HA—H WARAMK +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R ARET T
Deferred tax assets arising from: EEE IS EMNELERE
BE:
Tax losses carried forward HEENTIEERE 690 (690) =
690 (690) -
Charged
to consolidated
At 1 statement of At 31
January  comprehensive December
2015 income 2015
RZZT—AF WiEEa2E RZZE—hF
—A—H WAERMER +=A=+—8”
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETT
Deferred tax assets arising from: EEXB NIIRENELERE
BE:
Tax losses carried forward EE AT IR EE 4,302 (3,612) 690
Deferred tax assets recognised MEEREERNELETRIA
for inventory provision BE 8,913 (8,913) -
Deferred tax assets recognised for FLEEER N RARFEZ AR AR 18
bad and doubtful debts BE 5,320 (5,320) -
Unrealised profit arising from intra- E¥HEE AR RIFERZ S
group transactions elimination EERARER & T 849 (849) -
19,384 (18,694) 690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

(a) Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of RMB3,244,342,000 (2015:
RMB2,727,660,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which these losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entities. The tax loss will expire within

five years.

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements of the
deferred tax liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2016

e MR

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

19.EZEHEBEERER @

(a) EERIBEE @)
RRARREBRE AR MERT KA
REFER AR P RBHEEEBNER
wmA MAEEMERZEBERBARE
3,244,342,000L (Z T —HF: ARK
2,727,660,00070) FERELEFIBEE ° Fi1E
EEENAEFERTE -

(b) EERIBEE
HE T XRFA-_ZT—HF+_-_A=+

—HLFE CDHINECHRABERHEE

and 2015: D)
(Credited)/
charged to
consolidated
At1 statement of At 31
January comprehensive December
2016 income 2016
(5t X)),/
R=F—XRF HREGE WR=B—RE
—A—H 2HEHKBARXR +t=A=t+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT R AR®T T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: ~ E4 B THZERIELER B
8fE:
Revaluation surplus arising from (¥BAHEENEHAR
business combinations 15,352 (4,007) 11,345
Depreciation allowances in excess HRIBAR R T E R ST E
of the related depreciation and B
amortisation 8,090 186,238 194,328
23,442 182,231 205,673
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19.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. EEBRBEERERE @

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued) (b) EEHEARE (9
Credited to
consolidated
At 1 statement of At 31
January  comprehensive December
2015 income 2015
RZE—RF FTARRE R —HF
—H—H ZHERARX +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: ~ E4£ B T 5 &EHELEHRE
=N
Revaluation surplus arising from EFEHEENEHEHG
business combinations 1,052,110 (1,036,758) 15,352
Depreciation allowances in excess FRRAARATT E R H T E
of the related depreciation and B 5
amortisation 86,364 (78,274) 8,090
1,138,474 (1,115,032) 23,442
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 B AR ZIRE

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has direct and indirect RZZBE—RE+ZA=+—8  A2ART
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private FIMMB AR EE kAR - AN B
companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries are set out below: NEERIARE - ZEMBARINFEH

FIEAT

Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ S 3] HALNE HHE A BRIRMR/ TEXBR
AR R BRER be2o) BR BUEES EEBY
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% = United States dollars Investment
(“Qinfa Investment”) Islands  (2015:100%)  (2015:100%) (“UsD”) USD4,801/ holding
REREBRATA EBRaES (ZT-n%: (ZE-1%: USD50,000 in the PRC
([ZBRE]) 100%) 100%) 4801 ([%7:))/ RAER
50,000% 7 PE
Yuen Hoi Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
RAARAR lslands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%)  1%7T,/50,000% 7T BEEY

ABRZE (ZT-1fF: (ZZ-1%:

100%) 100%)
Hong Kong Qinfa Coal British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
Trading Limited lslands ~ (2015: 100%) (2015: 100%) 13%7T /50,0005 7T Rk

BERERREHBRAA ABRLHE (ZT-1F: (ZZ2-1%:

100%) 100%)
Glory Explore International Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Dormant
HERRARATF lslands ~ (2015:100%) (2015:100%)  1%7T.//50,000% T EEXH

RERAES (ZT-1%: (Z2-1%:

100%) 100%)
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AMB AR ZIRE @
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERELA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ rEHE HELQH i) P BRIRSEZ/ FERBR
NEEB L3t 2 B ER 2] BR HUEES EEBY
New Far Trading Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD100/ USD50,000 Dormant
New Far Trading Limited Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%)  100%7T,/50,000% 7T HEE)S

RBRAHEE (ZT-1fF: (Z2-1%:

100%) 100%)
More Star Development Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
REERER AR lslands (2015 100%) (2015:100%) 1%7t.,/50,000% T holding
RBRAHEE (CT-1F: (ZZ-1%: in the PRC
100%) 100%) RERR
hE
Billion Base Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/USD50,000 Investment
BACEBRANA Islands ~ (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 1%7T,//50,000% 7T holding
RERES (Z2-1%: (Z2-1%F: in the PRC
100%) 100%) RERZR
e
Hong Kong Qinfa Trading Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD30,000,000/N/A Sales of coal
EERBBHBRAF BF  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 30,000,000%7C,/ in the PRC
(Z2—1%: (Z2-1%: TER HERRK
100%) 100%) i
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuep) 20 AMIB AR ZIRE @
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERELA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ TEE HELNH mKEAR BRIRSE/ FERBR
AEL Bt 2 BRER 2] 2] HUEES EEBY
Hong Kong Qinfa International Hong Kong 100% = 100%  HKD689,635,000/N/A  Sales of coal and
Trading Limited &5 (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 689,635,0007%7L,/ Investment
BEREERESBRARA (ZZ-1%: (ZZ-1%: TR holding
100%) 100%) in the PRC
HERRR
REER
hE
Lead Far Development Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Dormant
NEERBRAR % (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 10,0007 / i LEES

(ZZ2-1%: (ZZ-n%:

100%) 100%)
World Victory (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Investment
25 (M) ERAF BE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 10,000 7T / ~ i@ holding
(Z2-1%: (Z2-n%: in the PRC
100%) 100%) RERR
hE
World Success (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/N/A Investment
£2 (TH) BRARA B (2015:100%) (2015:100%) 10,0007/ M@ holding
(ZZ-1%: (Zz-1%: in the PRC
100%) 100%) RERR
i
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 20. A B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERLEILA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ rEHE HELQH i) P BRIRSEZ/ FERBR
NEEB L3t 2 BiRER 2] BR HUEES EEBY
Qinhuangdao Development Zone The PRC 100% = 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. © B (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB68,000,000 inthe PRC
REBRERFEESHERAAO (ZZ-1%F: (ZZ-1F: ARE68,000,0007T,/ HERRK
100%) 100%)  AK#68,000,0007C PE
Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Sales of coal
Transportation Co., Ltd. " H (2015: 100%) (2015: 100%) RMB20,000,000 inthe PRC
AR EEHEHRR AR (ZZ-n%F: (ZZ-1F: ARM$20,000,0007T,/ HERRK
100%) 100%)  AK#20,000,0007 PE
Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
and Transportation Co., Ltd. " i (2015: 100%) (2015: 100%) RMB10,000,000 inthe PRC
(Yangyuan Guotong’) (ZE-1fF: (ZZ-n%F: AR%10,000,0007,/ HERRK
G REBREHEER AR O 100%) 100%) AK%10,000,0007T HE
((EREE))

Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd.? The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
KEREEHBRRR O i (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMBS5,000,000 in the PRC
(ZZ-1F: (Z2-1F:  AE¥5000,0007,/ HERRK
100%) 100%) AR#5,000,0007 e
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 20. A B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERELA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ TEE HELNH HHE A BERTRARE/ FERBR
NEER Bt 2 BiRER 2] 2] HUEES EEBY
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
WEREMRBRAR O B (2015:100%) (2015:100%) HKD315,000,000 in the PRC
(ZE-F1&: (Z2-1%F: 315,000,000%7C / HERRK
100%) 100%) 315,000,000%7C PE
Zhuhai Qinfa Resource The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,000,000/ Dormant
Development Co., Ltd. HE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB1,000,000 TmER

KRR RERARAR 0 (ZZT-n%: (ZZ-8%:  AR¥1,000,0007/

100%) 100%) AR1,000,0007T
Baotou Danghui Materials Trading The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Co., Ltd. @ HE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 inthe PRC
BETEENEE SRR AR (ZZ2-1%: (Z2-1%: AR¥10,000,0007,/ HERRK
100%) 100%) AR%10,000,0007T HE
Ordos Dongsheng Yifa Materials The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. @ HE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB5,000,000 holding
SRS ETRBE (Z2-1%: (Z2-n%:  AR%5,0000007,/ in the PRC
FENEFRRF O 100%) 100%) AKH5,000,0007 REEK
HE
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 20. A B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERLEILA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ rEHE HELQH HHE AR BRTREARE/ FERBR
NEER L3t 2 BiRER 2] BR HUEES EEWE
Ordos Jinfa Materials Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
SRLAMERNERRAR O i (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 holding
(ZZ-1%F: (ZZ-1F: ARH$10,000,0007,/ in the PRC
100%) 100%)  AK#10,000,0007 REZR
P
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Investment The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. " (*Shuozhou Guangfa’) H (2015:100%) (2015: 100%) RMB10,000,000 holding
AN EE R RRERR AR 0 (Z2-AF: (Z2-1%: AR¥10,000,0007,/ in the PRC
(THMER)) 100%) 100%)  AK%10,000,0007 RERR
hE
Shenchi Shenda Energy Investment The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Investment
Co., Ltd. @ H (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 holding
WhEBERRRERRAR 0 (Z2-1%: (Z2-n%: AR¥10,0000007,/ in the PRC
100%) 100%)  AK#10,000,0007 REEKR
HE
Shenchi Shenfa Coal Trading and The PRC 100% = 100% RMB30,700,000/ Dormant
Transportation Co., Ltd. ? H (2015: 100%) (2015: 100%) RMB30,700,000 HEESS

BHEBERRERERAR O (ZZ-1%: (ZZ-8%: AR%30,700,0007/

100%) 100%) AR#30,700,0007%
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 20. A B AR ZRE w0
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERELA

Principal

Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and

establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place

Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation

RY /& r5E HALNR HHE A BERTRARE/ TEEBR

NEER Bt 2 BiRER 5B 5 aEE EEBY

Huairen Shunfa Materials Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Dormant

BLERRENEESERLA O FE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB20,000,000 TEXEW

(ZZ-n%: (ZT-R%:  AR%20,000,0007,/
100%) 100%) AR#20,000,0007T

Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group The PRC 80% = 80% RMB300,000,000/ Investment

Co., Ltd. @ HE (2015: 80%) (2015:80%) RMB300,000,000 holding

(*Huameiao Energy’) (ZE-1fF: (ZZ-R%: AR¥300,000,0007T,/ inthe PRC

IWREXREREEERAR 0 80%) 80%)  AKR%300,000,0007 REER

([EXRER]) HE

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining

Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. " ol (2015: 80%) (2015: 80%) RMB129,590,000 and operation

(“Xingtao Coal”) (ZZ—hF: (ZZ—R%F: AKR¥129,590,0007T / inthe PRC

WEEHTEREXRARRE 80%) 80%)  AR®120590,000m  BERAEREE

BRARO HE
(TRRER])
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 RNMIB R B ZIRE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLEILA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place

Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation

R/ rEHE HAAR HHE AR BRTREARE/ TEXBR

NEER L3t 2 BiRER 2] BR HUEES EEWE

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% = 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining
Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., Ltd. © H (2015:80%) (2015:80%) RMB32,000,000 and operation
(‘Fengxi Coal”) (Z2—0F: (Z2-n%F: AR%32,000,0007,/ inthe PRC

IWAHMFEREXRBARKE 80%) 80%)  AR¥32000000m «— BRRARREE
BRRFO e
(IEREE%E])

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 80% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal Co., Ltd. " HE (2015:80%) (2015:80%) RMB107,290,000 and operation
(“Chongsheng Coal”) (ZZ—h%F: (ZZ—R%F: AK¥107,290,000/ inthe PRC

WP FEREXRSRE 80%) 80%)  AR®107,290000m  BERFEREE
BRARO HE
(I=AE%])

Shanxi Ruifeng The PRC 100% = 100% RMB1,200,000/ Dormant
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. © H (2015:100%) (2015: 100%) RMB1,200,000 HEESS

WFERREEERAR 0 (Z2-5F: (ZZ-8%:  AR¥1,200,000/

100%) 100%) AR1,200,0007T

Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining
Xinglong Coal Co,, Ltd. ? HE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB100,000,000 and operation
("Xinglong Coal’) (ZZ—1F: (Z2-1%F: AK%100,000,0007/ inthe PRC

L7 e R A % 100%) 100%)  AR¥100,000,000T  BRARREE
BRAFO e
(HERx))
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20 A AR ZBRE w0

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRERLA

Principal

Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and

establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place

Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation

R/ A r&HE HARAR B E A BRTREAR/ TEEBR

NEAER B L3t 2 BERER oL L] dMER EEBY

Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi The PRC 100% = 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining

Hongyuan Coal Co., Ltd. ? H (2015:100%) (2015: 100%) RMB100,000,000 and operation

(‘Hongyuan Coal”) (ZZ—5F: (ZZ—R%: AK¥100,000,0007,/ inthe PRC

W F AT e R 5 100%) 100%)  AK¥100,000,0007 BERERREE

BB AR 0 HE
(TREER])

Succeed International Ltd. Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000 and Investment

IEEER BB A A% (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD2,909,579/ holding

(ZZ-1%: (ZZ-8%: N/A in the PRC

100%) 100%) 10,0007 & REEK

2,909,579% 7/ TiEA E

Maxton International Enterprises Ltd. Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Dormant

BRAREXBRAT & (2015:100%) (2015:100%) N/A TRE

(ZZ-5F: (ZZ-RF:  10,000%7/ T
100%) 100%)

Zhuhai Henggin New Zone Hengfa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal

Commercial Service Co., Ltd. @ B (2015:100%) (2015: 100%) RMB10,000,000 and investment

HEEENERREHRE (ZZ—-nfF: (ZZ-n%F: AK¥10,000,0007,/ holding

BRARR O 100%) 100%)  AK#10,000,0007 in the PRC

HERRR

RERR

HE
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 RNMIB R B ZIRE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERRILA

Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ AR i3] AN ) BRTRER/ TEEBR
NEAER B L3t 5 BERER 58 <] afEE EEWE
Zhuhai Henggin New Zone Lifa The PRC 100% = 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Commercial Service Co., Ltd. @ H (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 and investment
WEEENBE U ENBRS (Z2—h&: (ZZ—h%: AK¥10,000,0007T,/ holding
BRARO 100%) 100%)  AK#¥10,000,0007T inthe PRC
HERERK
REZRR
i
Zhuhai Henggin Hongyi Industrial The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Development Co., Ltd. @ H (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB100,000,000 RS

KERERRERERARAR O (Z2—1%: (Z2—0%: AR¥OT/

100%) 100%)  AK#100,000,0007T
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD50,000/  Goods transport
(“Super Grace”) Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
Super Grace Enterprises Limited BRERAHS (Z2—0F: (ZF—A%F: 50,000%7t,/  andcharter hire
([Super Grace] ) 100%) 100%) 50,000 7T in worldwide
AmER RN
IR EMEE
£
Oriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% usb1/ Goods transport
(“Oriental Wise”) Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
Oriental Wise Group Limited RERZHEE (ZZ-—1%: (ZB—1%F: 1%7,/50,000%T  and charter hire
(Oriental Wise ) 100%) 100%) in worldwide
BmEH LR
AREHRRE
23
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20 A AR ZBRE w0

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERELA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ AR TEHE HELNH HKEAR BRIRSZ/ FTERBR
ACEL Bt 2 BRER o] o2} AfER EEBY
Qinfa Chartering Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% usb1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Chartering Limited Islands  (2015:100%) (2015: 100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
ABRAHE (CT-10fF: (Z2-1%: 1%71,/50,000%T  and charter hire
100%) 100%) inthe PRC
HmER LR
AR EHAE
hE
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% usD1/ Goods transport
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
KERaEE (ZZ-—1%: (ZB—1%: 1%7L,/50,0005  and charter hire
100%) 100%) in worldwide
BmER RN
AREHRES
23
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/ Goods transport
BEREMERRLA BB (2015:100%) (2015:100%) N/A and logistics,
(Z3-1%&: (ZZ—-R%: 10,0008,/ T#B  andcharter hire
100%) 100%) in worldwide
AmEH LR
AR EMEE
2IR
Liberal City Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/ Dormant
Liberal City Limited F5  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) N/A BEER
(ZZ-7%: (ZZ-7%: 1,000 7 / T8
100%) 100%)
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20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 RNMIB R B ZIRE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERELA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ AR rEE AN ) P BRIREE/ TERBR
ACEL Bt 2 BRER 2] 2] AfER EEBY
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
Perpetual Goodluck Limited &5 (2015:100%) (2015:100%) N/A and logistics,
(Z2—hE: (ZE—hE: 1,000%7 / TER and charter hire
100%) 100%) inthe PRC
HmER RN
AR EMAE
hE
Harbour Well Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% usD1/ Goods transport
Harbour Well Limited Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
KERZHE (Z2-1%: (Z2-8%: 1%7L,/50,0005  and charter hire
100%) 100%) in worldwide
AmERRNR
IR EREE
2
Merit Sino International Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% usb1/ Goods transport
BEHRER A Islands  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) USD50,000 and logistics,
RBRZEE (ZT-1fF: (Z2-1%: 1%7,/50000%7L  and charter hire
100%) 100%) in worldwide
AmER RN
AR EMEE
s
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. The PRC 100% = 100% RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
KEREMETRAR O i (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB100,000,000 and logistics,
(ZZ-1%F: (ZZ-7%:  AKM5000000m,/  andcharter hire
100%) 100%)  AK¥100,000,0007 inthe PRC
AmERRIR
AR EHEE
hE
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20 A AR ZBRE w0

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERELA
Principal
Place of Group's Held by Issued and activities and
establishment/ effective the Held by fully paid-up/ place
Name of company incorporation interest Company  subsidiaries registered capital of operation
R/ TEE HALNR HHE A BERTRARE/ TEEBR
NEER Bt 2 BiRER 2] 2] aEE EEBY
Zhuhai Henggin Coal The PRC 60% = 60% RMBO/ Provision of
Exchange Center Co., Ltd. © HE (2015:60%) (2015:60%) RMB50,000,000 coal market
KERZEERRZ ST OERAR O (ZF—n%F: (ZZ—h%F: AREOT,/ information
60%) 60%) AR #50,000,0007T and training
services
inthe PRC
RERRTISEH
RSEIRR
HE
Shanghai Qinhe Trading Co., Ltd. " The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
LRRNEHERAR" FE  (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 TEXW
(ZZT-0%: (ZZ-7%: AR®OT/
100%) 100%) AR#10,000,0007T
Guangzhou Guangyihai The PRC 100% = 100% RMBO/ Dormant
Trading Co., Ltd. © B (2015:100%) (2015:100%) RMB10,000,000 LEXH
BNESEEHERAF 0 (Z2-1%: (Z2-1%: AR¥OT,/
100%) 100%) AR#10,000,0007T
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic companies. (i) ZEERANPFBEKIZANERNT o

(il ZEERSNTERIMINEEEDRSE -

(i) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

RZE-—RFERZTE-—RAF+ZA=1+—
B AEBZEERAEERNEXZRER
FFEE FAKE SHKESE  BEKX
¥ 2R EE WINEZ  Super Grace
KOriental WiseR] % 7~ # 2= 1E # # (M 5%
28) c RZE—RERZZT—RF+=ZRA=
+—0 - —EHEARRERENEEAR
EE A5 R B R 2 RAEEE R -

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s borrowings are
secured by the Group’s equity interest in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao
Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal,
Shuozhou Guangfa, Super Grace and Oriental Wise (Note 28). As at
31 December 2016 and 2015, the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa, an
associate are secured by the Group's equity interest in Yangyuan
Guotong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conTinueD) 20 AMIB R R ZBRE w0
The following tables list out the financial information relating to TREHEMPEE  BARKEREHEE
Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng Coal, subsidiaries of the (RRREEEREERER ([FEZRE
Company which have material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The @) WB AR MEMNMEER - LT2
summarised financial information presented below represents the PH B E R E R YR A RIER 5 A1
amounts before any inter-company elimination. KB o
Xingtao Coal B P i 3¢
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
As at 31 December R+=A=t+—H
NCI percentage SR g Sl dt]] 20% 20%
Non-current assets EMBEE 2,396,884 2,153,401
Current assets mENEE 3,588,533 2,723,206
Current liabilities mENRE (3,077,616) (3,262,692)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,471,455) (1,128,849)
Net assets BERE 436,346 485,066
Carrying amount of NCI FRER AR E (A 77,703 87,447
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 46,721 17,166
Loss for the year FNEE (48,720) (2,061,135)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEEBR (48,720) (2,061,135)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEEIFERE =R EE (9,744) (412,227)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating REFEBME(FTA) Ben
activities 14,203 (148,007)
Cash flows used in investing activities BEZEMAEESR (26,403) (87,096)
Cash flows generated from financing activities BMEEHASIREN 11,941 174,798

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 RHIB R B ZIRE @m0

Fengxi Coal BAE R
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
As at 31 December n+=—B=+—H
NCI percentage EERERA DL 20% 20%
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,325,000 1,298,000
Current assets mENEE 557,872 539,398
Current liabilities mEAE (1,573,625) (1,532,892)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (59,741) (59,287)
Net assets BEFE 249,506 245,219
Carrying amount of NCI SRR R R E (A 49,901 49,044
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEFEE
Revenue Uz 83,300 16,844
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(E8E) 4,287 (1,060,073)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA S (ER) 858 4,287 (1,060,073)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DEREIFERESAEF]
(B18) 857 (212,015)
Cash flows generated from operating activities KEEB B SN 3,920 21,405
Cash flows used in investing activities REFDARE R (3,494) (24,935)
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ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

20.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continue) 20 RNMIB R B ZIRE @

Chongsheng Coal RAEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H
NCI percentage JEIER R B O LL 20% 20%
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,043,678 914,697
Current assets mENEE 985,194 974,355
Current liabilities mENAE (1,779,013) (1,784,439)
Non-current liabilities EMEBBEE (71173) (45,383)
Net assets BEFE 178,686 59,230
Carrying amount of NCI IR ERREE 35,737 11,846
During the year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEE
Revenue Uz 105,673 34,572
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(E58) 119,456 (1,313,734)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA S (EE) 858 119,456 (1,313,734)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DREIFERESAEF]
(E18) 23,891 (262,747)
Cash flows generated from operating activities KEEBTBRE SN 9,755 156,149
Cash flows used in investing activities BEZBMARSR (9,733) (56,787)
Cash flows used in financing activities mMEEFHTEES R - (100,000)
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

21.INVENTORIES 21. 78

2016 2015
—E-XKF =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Finished goods UPK 42,312 84,482
Fuel BRR 7,340 3,591
49,652 88,073
As at 31 December 2015, provision for inventories amounting to R-ZZE—RAF+-_HA=+—HBEma&E%
RMB35,542,000 were made against those finished goods with net BEERAROENEXRTRFERBAREK

realisable value lower than carrying value. 35,542,0007T °
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s inventories with carrying RZE—XRNFE+-_A=1+—H ' ' X&EBKEA
amount of RMB28,509,000 (2015: RMB68,329,000) were pledged BEARAARYK28,509,000T (ZE—HF : A
for borrowings (Note 28). K #68,329,0007T) < FEE BEEEER

(BizE28) °
22.TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 22.BEREZRAREVRERE

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHETT ARBT T
Trade and bill receivables EWE 5 ERR R EREE 794,171 995,734
Less: Impairment B ORE (401,829) (413,450)
392,342 582,284
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

22.TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (continuep)

(a) Ageing analysis

[l of the trade and bill receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to trade
and other receivables is disclosed in Note 34(a).

An ageing analysis of trade and bill receivables (net of impairment

loss) of the Group is as follows:

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BEWESRAREREE @
(a) B 2 47

B AERBE SRR REBERESR —F
AU o ZNER B A B B B 5 K EL b R WK B
REBENEER

Bt TR AP EE34(a) ©

AR E 1) EUE 5 Bk I B R B (FOBR AL

BEE) RkOHFMT

2016 2015
—AnE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Within 2 months 1 A A 242,172 303,534
Over 2 months but within 6 months FR1E A LA 1B @7~ E A 9,002 39,650
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEA K E BT BB —F 72 95,688
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F L E BT BBMRE 54,158 143,312
Over 2 vears (Note) BBEME () 86,938 100
392,342 582,284
Note: As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables aged over 2 years sk : R=ZZT—XFE+-_A=+—"H WFUE
amounting to RMB79,860,000 were due from customers which ARiic MY B M 5 fR 50 A K HE79,860,0007T
the Group has trade and other payable balance with. Based on ﬁﬂiﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ N I8 45
past experience and repayment history of the trade debtors, BREE P RRIE » 10 %ﬁ&fﬂﬂl
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary B SR TER R - BIE BARZ

in respect of these balances. FERTTIRAERE -

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from O to 60 days
(2015: 0 to 60 days) depending on customers’ relationship with the
Group, their creditworthiness and past settlement record.

The ageing is counted from the date when trade and bill receivables

are recognised.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

22.TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD) 22.EBEWESRAREVREE @
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) FEWE Z BRFUR{E
The movement in provision for impairment of trade receivables FARWKE ZFERFORERGBEDHIOT -
during the year is as follows:
2016 2015
—B-REF —ZE—AIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
At 1 January n—H—H 413,450 43147
Reversal of impairment losses VERENE-tdE (13,568) -
Impairment loss recognised B HERARE R = 502,479
Bad debts written-off i E I R (1,406) (134,783)
Exchange differences bE 5 =58 3,353 2,607
At 31 December R+—HA=+—8H 401,829 413,450
The above provision for impairment losses of trade receivables FiiEWEZERBREEEREREEREEE
represents provision for individually and collectively impaired trade AR#401,829,000L (ZZE—HF: AR
receivables of RMB401,829,000 (2015: RMB413,450,000) with a ¥413,450,0007T) 2 fi Bl K 3% [R] R B & U
carrying amount of RMB401,829,000 (2015: RMB413,450,000). The B H5BREARAREAL01,829,000c (ZE—H
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers who & AR¥413,450,0007T) © 1E B EH FE
did not make any settlement during the years ended 31 December WEREFEHRBE_T—R"FEFA=_F—H
2016 and 2015. F+_A=+—RHILFERREBERMERR
ZEFPEHE -
(c) Trade and bill receivables that are not impaired (c) WMBEZEKEZERERREKERE
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bill receivables that are I A B s HRR EREN RIKE 5 R KR
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are FEUEIRERE DATAO T ¢
as follows:
2016 2015
—B-KF —ZE—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBT T
Neither past due nor impaired W A B R E 242,179 304,117
Less than 1 year past due BHER DR — & 9,066 135,306
Over 1 year past due B HARE A —F 141,097 142,861
392,342 582,284
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

22.TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(c) Trade and bill receivables that are not impaired (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BEWESRAREREE @
(c) WEBEZEKEZRAREKERE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

(d) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in

their entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group sold certain trade receivables
with a carrying amount of RMB33,365,000 (2015: Nil) to
a factoring company for financing facilities amounting to
RMB20,000,000 (2015: Nil). At 31 December 2016, other borrowings
of RMB19,980,000 (2015: Nil) have been drawn down under this
financing facilities. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such trade receivables, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts of
the trade receivables and the associated other borrowings.

At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain bill receivables
accepted by banks in the PRC (the “endorsed bills”) with a carrying
amount of RMB4,199,000 to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers (the “endorsement”). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks
relating to such endorsed bills, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the endorsed bills and the
associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the endorsed bills,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the endorsed bills to any
other third parties The aggregate carrying amount of the trade
payables settled by the endorsed bills during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse was RMB4,199,000 as at 31 December
2015. At 31 December 2016, the Group did not endorse any bill
receivables to its suppliers.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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FRIFNBERBNBIELAR - 1B
e BEERRBANZFERTIRR
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d) AEZRIBRCCERSMEE

RZZE—RNEFE+_-_A=+—8 KEBH
BRmEEA A R%33,365,000C (ZE—H
F E)NETRERESERE T —BRE
~aEl LAERRE{EE A K%20,000,000
T(ZE2E—RAF  E) - R_T— R "F+=
A=+—H ZBEEEBETHMAEEAR
#19,980,000c (—ZE—HF : £) BIE
B ARBEERE  AEEBNRBEBAKX
HoRB&ER - BIEZERKEZERERN
BHRR At AEBEEEZBERERER
ZH5RALBELMBEEN2EEAE -

R-ZT—HF+-_A=+—8 AEBHER
E1E A R#4,199,0007T % & B 35 48R 17 &
HNETRKEERSETESRTHERS (&
EER|) UERERNZEHERZEN
BEER((EE] - ARAEERE A%
BNRBEBAI, AR KE  BEZE
EEZBMENRE Bt - XEEEES
HEREEZENEHEMENIE &FNE
BENEZER - BE%  A5ETHRE
FAZESEZENEMAERN - BIEHEE
EEYEEERERETENEME=F -
REANBEZRFECHEEEEREN
ENBSEFN_E—RE+-_A=+—H
HRMmEE S A RE4,199,000c c R -
—RNFE+_A=1+—8  AEBETEHEM
JE RS E T HAHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)
(e) Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their

(f)

entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group, endorsed certain bill receivables
accepted by banks in the PRC to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying
amount in aggregate of RMB4,317,000 (2015: RMB37,041,000). The
derecognised bills had a maturity of one to six months at the end
of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the derecognised bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the derecognised bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the derecognised bills
and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised bills
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these derecognised
bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the derecognised bills are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
derecognised bills (2015: Nil). No gains or losses were recognised
from the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively (2015: Nil).

Trade and bill receivables that are pledged

As at 31 December 2016, certain Group’s trade and bill receivables
with carrying amount of RMB33,365,000 (2015: RMB9,382,000)
were pledged for borrowings (Note 28).

A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

2.EWESRARERERE @
(e) ER2RIBRACZCHEHEESHEE

(f)

RZEBE—RNE+A=1+—08 KEFEE
FEERNRITARENE TREKEESETH
ATHER  UWEBEHEBRNZSHERERER
wEAEANR®L317,000T (ZE—RHEF:
AR #37,041,0007T) 2B E SERR o 42
IFERZEBERHRERREE —Z= /68 A
HY o RIBEPBEIZEEAZHRTE @ WERBBIEA
RITED  RUIEBRZRBEIBREEHASE
B EERE (HFESH])  ARFAES
RE AEECEREUIBERZIEEZEBXR
Homk&EIR o Bt - NEE 2 ELIE
RTRIERCEBEREBAENE SRR
AEBBFESLEZRIIERAZEREZZANIE
AERBOZERIEBRCEB 2 ATRE
RERREREE - ARFEERE ' A&
BERFELHERIIERCEBR I ARBLTE
j(o

BE_T—RF+__A=t—HLEFE &
SRV ARRERR I BRAZREE BERE
M ms e (ZE—1F - &) - XEER
FAXRAHERBHFES B EM KRS
BE (TR &)

BHEHBZERESRIAREREE
R-E—ARF+-_A=+—8 ' A&EEH
FERTEE B ARK33,365,0000t (T —F
& AR¥9,382,0007T) ZEWE SR K
EWREEREEELER (H:E28) -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

23.PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. RN IR K E B AR K

2016 2015

—E—-XREF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREEF T

Other deposits and prepayments (Note (i) HEhize RIBAIRER (HIEEG) 294,743 185,622
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUG FEIE AR AR SR IR (M EE())

shareholders (Note (ii)) 322,307 321,048

Other non-trade receivables EIEE FREIRERTK 69,192 93,331

686,242 600,001

Less: Impairment (Note (iii)) B ORE (BEEGI)) (405,084) (412,758)

281,158 187,243

Note:

(i) Prepayment for purchase of coal amounting to RMB236,490,000 (2015:
RMB120,290,000) was included in other deposits and prepayments.

(i) Amount due from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed term of repayment. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of RMB322,307,000 (2015: RMB321,048,000) were

fully impaired.

(iii) Impairment of prepayments and other receivables

Provision for impairment of prepayments and other receivables are as

i

(i) EEBEXAMNERARK?236,490,0007T (=
T—HF : ARE®120,290,0007T) Bt AE
iz R IBABER

(i) FEMRIEMRRR AR SRR R EIK T - % 8 RERE

EBERE - M- —RF+

A =
N —=

A=T-8

BRI A AR #322,307,0007C (ZE— R4 :
AR#321,048,0007T) B2 %ERIE °

(i) FEATBR R Ko EL & e AR SR D RUE

TR BRFR R B A FEUSR FORER AN T

follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Other deposits and prepayments HEfize RIAMERR 42,913 52,688
Amount due from non controlling shareholders FEU I 2 % AR 3R S IE 322,307 321,048
Other non-trade receivables E b IEE 5 IR 39,864 39,022
405,084 412,758
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

23.PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. AR R HE M EWERF @
(CONTINUED)
The movement in provision for impairment of prepayments and FATENT BR 30 M H M E W BR B2 R (B e
other receivables during the year is as follows: BT
2016 2015
—B-AEF —F A5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 412,758 49,974
Impairment losses recognised B R REEE 5,397 394,855
Reversal of impairment losses recognised B iR REEERRE (13,206) -
Uncollectible amounts written-off i 551 AT U Bl £ 58 (184) (32,071)
Exchange difference M H ZRE 319 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 405,084 412,758
Management regularly reviews the ageing and credit quality of the EREETHRNAEEEMERRKEME
Group’s prepayment and other receivables. The above provision WERR 2RI RfEEEZR - LAl FBANER
for impairment losses of prepayments and other receivables REMEWRR 2 REBEREEERADE
represents provision for individually impaired prepayments and AR #405,084,000c (ZE—HF : AR
other receivables of RMB405,084,000 (2015: RMB412,758,000) with #412,758,0007T) Z fE B! R B # T8 1 BR R
a carrying amount of RMB405,084,000 (2015: RMB412,758,000). Ko H Ath 8 UK R 51 9 8 A R #6405,084,0007T
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to prepayments (ZZE—FHF: AR¥412,758,0007T) ° @
and other receivables which the directors of the Company consider AREZEBUEREBZHARTESTRAK
that the chances of collection/utilisation of the outstanding B /{5 FA i AR UL Bl & B8 B0 i 2 iR A TR A BR
amounts are remote. AR E A ERER KB -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

24.PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of RMB174,000 (2015: RMB45,468,000) as at 31
December 2016 were pledged to banks to secure general credit
facilities (2015: Certain of the Group’s bill payables and general
credit facilities).

Bank deposits of RMB1,939,000 (2015: RMB443,000) were
restricted for use in relation to the litigation proceedings as
disclosed in Note 41(a)(v).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, B R ZRHEEFRK

R-ZE—REF+_A=+—8 " FIHEXK
ABRBI74000 (ZE—FF: AR
45,468,0007T) EEBTFRITIER—REE
ER(ZCE—AF  ASEETEMNERER

—RIEELER) o

RITERARE1,939,0005T (=

T

AR #443,0007T) B KTFEL1(a)(v)FT 55 A9

AR RARE T T R BIE A

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5.0 RBTEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) ReRREEEYEIE -
2016 2015
—®—x%| =—F-@%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTIT
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE 24,713 20,669
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A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

2B BERBEEEY @
(b) RIS ERELETHREREZY

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (conTinueD)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash generated

from operations: iR :
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR¥T R ARBT T
Loss before taxation BR 7% A 518
From continuing operations REFELEFET (127,033) (8,033,305)
From discontinued operation RE BRI BT = (4,397)
(127,033) (8,037,702)
Adjustments for: B TYFIBMEL T -
Depreciation for property, Wz - BEREETE
plant and equipment 15 96,513 261,940
Amortisation of coal mining rights W R R B A e B 16 21,319 12,480
Amortisation of lease prepayments GEN=S AN 17 140 1,586
Provision for inventories TFEEE 8(a) = 35,542
Finance income BISIA 7 (984) (2,844)
Finance costs BRI 7 447,939 415,506
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARREE QT2
and associates e 32 - (68,083)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEKZEZ
plant and equipment BB () 6 70,525 (3174)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment M - BB NMERE
losses on property, plant and equipment CRERE),REEE 8(b) (211,597) 3,067,505
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment B RTERE CRERR),
losses on coal mining rights B B8 8(b) (371,199) 2,678,444
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment FEURE SRR CRERE),
losses on trade receivables RIEEE 8(b) (13,568) 502,479
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses &/t B 7% K EL th g Us BR 3¢
on prepayments and other receivables CRERE), REEE 8(b) (7,809) 398,316
Impairment losses on interests in associates B4 A AR 2 FEE B 18 = 70,705
Equity-settled share-based REREEARD
payment expenses AR 5,322 14,789
Share of loss of an associate 7 — &l & A Rl EsiE = 6,522
Property, plant and equipment written-off Y - BE R 8(a) 2,090 204
Fair value gain on capitalisation of payables  JE[FERREANLEH A A B ES 6 - (3,051)
Changes in working capital: EEBEREY
Change in inventories FEZH 38,530 202,629
Change in trade and bill receivables JEWE 5 8=k B R M R 1R B & 203,644 177,634
Change in prepayments and other receivables &1 BR 2 & E 4th g Uk B 74 & (63,496) 193,813
Change in trade and bill payables FERT B 5 BR TR R BN 5 (107,051) 43,073
Change in other payables HAbE AR E B 89,844 405,428
Cash generated from operations REEBHABRE 73,129 373,741
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26.TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 ENEZRRKENRE

An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the Group is as AEERNEGERRENZRNERE DT
follows: R
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year —FR 130,559 1,074,216
QOver 1 year but within 2 years —F L E BT BBRMRE 828,322 13,636
QOver 2 years but within 3 years REA BB HBRA=F 22,946 859
981,827 1,088,711
27.0THER PAYABLES 27. H M FEATBR X
2016 2015
—B-AEF —F A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Current BO A
Receipts in advance TR IR 108,264 216,515
Accrued expenses R 780,854 339,312
Amount due to a related company (Note (i)) f1ﬁ RIRE A A IE (MEEd)) 16,169 18,969
Amounts due to directors BN EERIE 3,810 3,509
Amount due to ultimate holding company B R AR RS AN B FRIE 8,830 3,735
Other payables (Note (ii)) HAth FEAT BR SR (Bﬁaﬂn)) 2,028,816 1,942,983
2,946,743 2,525,023
Non-current FEBNHA
Other payables (Note (ii)) E At FEATERFR (B EEG)) 67,717 82,195
3,014,460 2,607,218
Notes: MIaE -
(i)  The related company is a company controlled by Mr. Xu. () ZAERRRBIRTEEGOR
(i) Construction payables, payables for related to mineral exploration and (i) HAbER B D B E?ETEHLM FRIE -~ B
mining rights and provision for litigation claims of RMB1,180,086,000 ERE IR RIS IE&.:J?"\EE%%?{%/\E
(2015: RMB1,034,294,000), RMB468,350,000 (2015: RMB463,877,000) #1,180,086,0007T ( —hF: AR
and RMB678,136,000 (2015: RMB466,894,000) respectively are 1,034,294,0007T) * A E #468,350,0007T
included in other payables. (ZE—F%& : AR#463,877,00000) & A

E%678136000n(_2 HE: AR
466,894,0007T) °

e —RBERR EFRFEEBRDAHN
TIAREEM - 2B REEEERE

The amounts due to a related company, directors and ultimate
holding company are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
term of repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

28.BORROWINGS 28. 5 &

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —T—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt =t AR%T T AREFTT

Bank loans IRITER
- Secured — BHEA (i) 5,043,520 5,310,270
- Unsecured — EA (i) 962,681 576,832
6,006,201 5,887,102
Other borrowings HibEE (iii) 37,070 18,220
Total borrowings BERE 6,043,271 5,905,322

As 31 December 2016, secured bank loan of RMB672,289,000
(2015: RMB148,882,000), unsecured bank loan of RMB269,850,000
(2015: RMB30,000,000) and other borrowings of RMB17,090,000
(2015: RMB18,220,000) were not renewed or rolled over upon
maturity and carried interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 12.96%
(2015: 6.72% to 12.96%) per annum. As at 31 December 2016,
these borrowings are secured by coal mining rights with a carrying
amount of RMB994,151,000 (2015: RMB178,870,000), property,
plant and equipment with a carrying amount of RMB407,274,000
(2015: RMB5,736,000), lease prepayment with a carrying amount
of RMB5,073,000 (2015: Nil), guaranteed by the Company, certain
subsidiaries of the Company, related parties and a former director,
Mr. Ma Baofeng (2015: personal guaranteed by Mr. Xu). In addition,
bank deposits of RMB1,939,000 (2015: RMB443,000) was restricted
for use as a result of the bank borrowings were not renewed or
rolled over upon maturity (Note 24).

Subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, the Group is in the process of negotiating with the financial
institutions and the creditors to renew or roll over these borrowings.

R-_ZE—ARE+_-_A=+—8 HEFR
TERARMKE72,289,000C (ZFE—H
£ A R #148,882,0007T) + & 3K 48 iR
TE XA K #269,850,000t (Z T — &
&£ AR #30,000,0007T) M EMEE A
R #17,090,000c (ZZE—FHE: AR
18,220,00070) AR EI R EE X R TT
W N F4.75%F12.96% (ZF— H F:
6.72%%£12.96%) MFEFEFHBE - RZT—
NE+T_A=1t—H ZESEEREREEES
AR®994,151,000c (ZE—HF : AR
#5178,870,0007T) Z E R KiEH#E - BREE
BANREEL07,274,000C (ZE—FHF: A
R#5,736,0007T) 2% - WE REE - R
m{E A AR¥5,073,000C (ZE—HF:
m) CHERMNERIERER X2/ AR
AIZETHBAR BEFRINEESR
BAEAIERR (CT—RF  RAEE@EAE
&) o b oh + SR 1T 77 3k A R #1,939,0007T
(ZZ—RF : AR¥443,00070) AR AR
BB EE SR TF MR HIE A (H5E24) ©

RZBE-—RETA=+—BEREEALR

SHE > AEELESREEREEAERD
BEENRGTRERE -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

28.BORROWINGS (conTinuED) 28.f6E )
Bank loans amounting to RMB2,473,678,000 due for repayment BERXXEBAGREREEMRITETER
after one year which contain a cross default clause that demands BHRYAERNN —FED Hﬁf@&aﬁ’]fﬁﬂ
immediate repayment when there is default in any bank loans ERARM2,473,678,000t 7 RME A
repayment are classified as current liabilities. i
Bank loans due for repayment, based on the scheduled repayment RIBE R B TES G EIEE G - T
terms set out in the loan agreements and without taking into R BRI XENGREENTE - FH
account the effect of any repayment on cross default clause are as BEMNRITERDOT
follows:
2016 2015
—B-RF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 3,532,523 3,284,777
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F BT EARSE 1,118,336 840,390
Over 2 years but within 5 years M A LB BB A F 1,355,342 1,761,935
6,006,201 5,887,102
Other borrowings are repayable as follows: HithE 5= NI EREE -
2016 2015
— R —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZERK 37,070 18,220
The Group’s borrowings are secured by the following assets: AEBZEEHTIEEELER -
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt =E ARET T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B MR 15 1,110,714 1,003,099
Coal mining rights IR BRI 16 2,292,588 1,942,708
Lease prepayments THEFE IR 17 5,073 5,213
Inventories FE 21 28,509 68,329
Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 BR X M R E 1B 22 33,365 9,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

28.BORROWINGS (conTinuED) 28.6 8 @

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s borrowings are also RZE—RERZTE—RF+ZA=1+—
B ANEBZESTHEBRIREERERR
BW—RHBEARINNIE REEFEN—H

secured by other receivables of a related company of which Mr. Xu
is the shareholder, a property held by Mr. Xu, the ultimate holding

company’s equity interest in the Company and the Group’s equity
interest in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal, Chongsheng
Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal, Shuozhou Guangfa, Super
Grace and Oriental Wise. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
borrowings were also secured by a property held by Mr. Xu Da. As
at 31 December 2016, borrowings of RMB6,033,401,000 (2015:
RMB5,895,323,000) were guaranteed by the Company, certain

W RIRIERARIRANA A AR R A&
EREXRER  BfEEE  BEEE =
FHEE - EERE - RREE - BNER-
Super Grace&Orienta | WiseH) IR A #e 2 1
HR o T-R"F+ZA=+—8 &K%
IZ%%UTEET%L?EE%ﬁE’J—IECF@%T’EE
HeRZE—R"F+ZA=+—H AR

#6,033,401,0007C (=& —

heE: AR%

subsidiaries of the Company, related parties (Note 37(b)) and/or a
former director, Mr. Ma Baofeng. 5,895,323,0007T) 2 fEEHBARE - AQF
ETHEBLAR - BEs (Ha37(b) &3k

RIEFHRETERMER -

Notes: BfsE
(i) Secured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 7.28% (i) y/\\% T—ARFE+ZA=+—H8 BHEMR?T
(2015: 4.35% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December 2016. BEREN T4.35%F7.28% (=T — R F:
4.35%%7.28%) HIFFEEE o
(i) Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to (ii) y/\\%g ANETZA=+—H " EEFPRT
8.10% (2015:5.66% to 8.40%) per annum as at 31 December 2016. BEREN T4.35%F8.10% (=T — A &F :
5.66%%8.40%) K HHEHE o

7

(iii) Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 12.00% to (iii) \g:iji NFETZA=1+T—H g &
13.50% (2015:10.00% to 12.96%) per annum as at 31 December 2016. Z > F12.00%%E13.50% (% T — R F:
0.00%%12.96%) HIFEF =TS

o

29.ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 20.FHIRREEH
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 79,047 74,693
Addition NE 12,843 =
Interest charge on unwinding of discounts (Note 7)  #r& #7382 F 2B (Mi3E7) 4,568 4,354
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 96,458 79,047
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 30.EX » ERERKRE

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEREB D B B
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBEZ RO GFEERN Y KR H AR
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the R EEREEE -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Share capital (b) B
2016 2015
—B-RF —Z-0fF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
RE &8 A2 G
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pyt AR®T R ARETT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each &R EI{EOQ. 108 LA L&A 20,000,000,000 1,763,000 | 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, issued and EER ERTRAR
fully paid
At 1 January n—A—H 2,278,413,985 193,275 2,078,413,985 176,531
Shares issued in respect of FEERHETHRR
placing of shares (i) - - 200,000,000 16,744
Shares issued in respect of AR ERTAR
payables capitalised Bl (ii) 215,000,000 17,949 = =
At 31 December Rt=A=1+—H 2,493,413,985 211,224 | 2,278,413,985 193,275
; ; () R-—B—RE+-—fF— "I— » 200,000,000
D onch were st ot & Brice of HKDO 245 per Shate ta ot less than RBREAO 1087 M R E N0 240
six independent placees for a total consideration (before issuing AT B W%ﬁf' NORINBENARA
expenses) of HKD49,800,000 (equivalent to RMB41,693,000). RBAE (NBR 1T 8 A Al i) #349,800,00078
The proceeds of HKD20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB16,744,000) 7L ($B?$EA}\E¢1¥41 693, 00075) o {8 2IE
representing the par value, were credited to the Company’s share 20, OQO 000 /%735*5 = %AE%%,NM,OOO
capital. The remaining proceeds of HKD27,917,000 (equivalent E)_ﬁﬁ@ ﬁ+)\\$7 jﬁﬁ%$ ° %‘Jﬁﬁﬁg
to RMB28,372,000), after the issuing expenses of HKD1,883,000 o 2 T IO LR s
;eccl%lgittfent to RMB1,577,000), were credited to the share premium f;fyg%?é?ﬁé/\?% !577!00(/)}%> /’ég‘f’)\ﬂ%’\
g iR ©
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (conTinuep) 30.EX » RERRE @
(b) Share capital (continued) (b) B&A (50
(i) On 25 December 2015, the Group consolidated certain interest payable (i) R=F—AF+_A_+HA AREKRE
owing by its subsidiaries to a financial institution of RMB141,5633,000 P8 2 =) & o 8 A 8 A K #5141,633,00
(the “Payables”) and novated the Payables from the subsidiaries of TL(TEMAR]) S|SB B BRMRE
the Company to the Company as the principal debtor. The financial ZEBARARAIHE R R ERBARNFE o
institution, on the same date, transferred the Payables to an AR SREERENREE—BIE=H
independent third party (the “Creditor”). ([fEREAD -
Pursuant to an agreement between the Company and the Creditor BAREARERBARZZ-AF+ A=
dated 25 December 2015, the Creditor has conditionally agreed to ThAEBBNHE  EEAGREHRE
subscribe for 215,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Shares to be Issued”) 215,000,000% BB ([(F & T K]) S K
each at a subscription price of approximately HKD0.272 per share by RIEBEALR0.2728 7T @ Bi@ANEI D
capitalisation of part of the Payables in the amount of RMB48,822,000 e XA ER I AR 648,822,000 (BE R
(equivalent to approximately HKD58,480,000). Accordingly, the Group 58,480,000/8 TT) ° A it REBEL TR
has no contractual obligation to deliver cash to settle such amount ERNBEOBMIRK - B UL IR K EE
and such amount will be settled by a fixed number of shares. As at 31 HERMIBH Jj’t\:%ﬁ—fﬁg/‘%:ﬁ_ =+—
December 2015, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair B REARREZZER  FHRTEAHD
value of the Shares to be Issued of RMB45,771,000 is considered as A EAR45,771,0007T #1482 R A Rl HE
quasi-capital of the Company. BN o
On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 new shares were allotted and issued RZZ—"F—A7"A " 21 5,000,0008% ¥ A%
to the Creditor, the Company’s share capital and share premium WOBW BITHRERA - ARAIBRAREE
have been increased by approximately HKD21,500,000 (equivalent to R RI#921,500,0008 T (HHERARE
RMB17,949,000) and HKD33,325,000 (equivalent to RMB27,822,000), 17,949,00078) 133,325,0007% 7t (18 2 #
respectively, with a corresponding decrease in the quasi-capital ARH¥27,822,0007T) - MBEARIEFIEESR
account. FR A o
(c) Perpetual subordinated convertible securities (c) KA R ATHARE 5
On 31 December 2012, the Company issued convertible securities RZE—=—F+=ZHA=+—8 ' A a%
to Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl’, the ultimate 1B {E 5194,700,000% 7T (FH&E K AR
holding company of the Group) with a value of HKD194,700,000 157,872,0007T) 2 AR FEH TE R B
(equivalent to RMB157,872,000). The direct transaction costs ERAAE ([BE]  AEESKERAR) -
attributable to the convertible securities amounted to RMB941,000. HAMREBEBSFEENEERFIBRAAARK
941,0007T °
The convertible securities are convertible at the option of the holder ARRFESITR - E——F+=-A=+—H
of convertible securities into ordinary shares of the Company at ZIEREMRRRRATIRRE ST A ARE
any time after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion price of BHBAARALBR T HBRERER
HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the Company. While the convertible RAEEBART.658TT o F&E AR E S
securities confer a right to receive distributions at 3% per annum, THRMNATBREFI %D IKEE - ARAMD
the Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution A2 EEEREBEUBRRES ZGFIEEED
pursuant to the terms of the convertible securities. DK °
The convertible securities have no maturity date and are AMREFESFTEINR TRARGERES
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or 50% of the IR R E S A £ 5 2100%550% T LA
principal amount of the convertible securities each time, on any fEE - NS IRES B A TER A
distribution payment date at the face value of the outstanding BREBEHFCBTASEEES MR EE A H
principal amount of the convertible securities to be redeemed plus 2E RS IKEEZ100%850% (AR T 15 5%
100% or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions accrued to such JE) °
date.
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue)

(c)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities (continued)

As the convertible securities have no contractual obligation to
repay its principal nor to pay any distributions, they do not meet the
definition for classification of a financial liabilities under IAS 32. As
a result, the whole instrument is classified as equity, and respective
distributions if and when declared are treated as equity dividends.

The Group had not elected to defer distribution payments for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
RMB5,030,000) (2015: HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to RMB4,728,000).

Deficit
Share premium

On 21 December 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.10
each were issued at a price of HKD0.249 per share to independent
third party placees. The excess of the proceeds totalling
HKD27,917,000 (equivalent to RMB23,372,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares issued was credited to
the share premium account, after deducting the issuing expenses.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares were allotted and issued to
the Creditor by capitalisation of part of the Payables. The excess of
the fair value of shares issued totalling HKD33,325,000 (equivalent
to RMB27,822,000) over the nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued was credited to the share premium account,
after deducting the issuing expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries of the Company and
the amount of share capital of the Company transferred and issued
to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire equity interests in all
members of the Group as part of the Reorganisation.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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30.

(c)

BEX - RERKE @
KARBATBRRES @)
BRI S ETEREARS TR I
FERIDKEEZAEEE  MTTFEHEE
SHERIEIIRANE S mMABEHERNRE -
I 2#zZESRIT A BEAERS M
DIKFERE IR ESERI BRI °

AEEVTEREECEHEE_T—<F+
—A=+—HItFEHNH A FIE5,841,000
& T (8 ® A R #5,030,0000T) (= &
— R & :5841,0008 T (FHE R AR
4,728,0007T)) °

(d) &5 At

(i)

(i)

B0 R 1E

R—ZZE—ARAHE+=HAH=+ —H"
200,000,0008% & A& H {80.107% 7T /9 I 78 f%
WIAGRRO0.249B T EBR BT TEILE =
FAEBEA - FISREBLEEBITEBREE
E{EM42%E27,917,0008 7T (BHERARE
23,372,0007T) ERHIBREITEBEF AR
DimER -

R=—Z—7"F— A7NH  215,000,0000% %
MNBBAGED BN EREAR AR B REITT
BEA - BRIIBROGAAEBEEHETER
% 48 S (B HY 42 %833,325,000/8 7T (FHE R
AR#27,822,0007T) EMBRFITE BEET
AR5 B R o

BRI
EHFERBEARRNMNBARNEHE NG
BEESBAN—BD SRB|AKEMRA
P B 2Rz 2 AR M A2 1R 88 M ITH
ARRB R Z EH) Z 5 o
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e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue) 30.E% ~ RERKRE @

(d) Deficit (continued) (d) E?ﬁ'iﬂ (#8)
(i) Reserves (iii) & 1E
Statutory reserve fund EERER

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group
are required to allocate certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of liquidation
and, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated losses or be
capitalised as issued capital.

Specific reserve — maintenance and production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to
transfer an amount to specific reserve for the maintenance and
production funds and other related expenditures based on coal
production volume. The movement of specific reserve is as follows:

RIFSNEBERRERNEBETERM - K
KREETHNETERANESTSRERTE
AR RUDEETHRBEREN (RPR
10%) BXEfRmE ((REREBE]) BEE
&R EEEMEARML0% A LE

EEREBZATADIK - EHRBRIFE R
AR IR AR RE P BRI P E T IR il Y A X K 8
R BRI BREA BT BEITRARIERI -

HIE#E - HEREERS
BEFEEERTE ~XEBEARBERE
BB —EREBRAZEFEREREERE
EEeAREMEARAS - BIEMBHEZESHN
B

RMB’000

ARBT T

Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—RB2&#% 248,468

Provision for the year FRE 42,228

Utilisation for the year FREH (74,699)
Balance at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZFE—RAF+ZA=+—HK

—E-RE-A—BZ&R 215,997

Provision for the year FREE 33,211

Utilisation for the year FAEA (28,183)

Balance at 31 December 2016 RZEBE—ARFF+_A=+—RH2zZ&& 221,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuep) 30.EX ~ EERKRE @)
(d) Deficit (continued) (d) E a4t )
(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) BE 5 1%

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).

(v) Share-based compensation reserve (v)

Share-based compensation reserve represents the value of
employee services in respect of share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Option and Share Option as set out in Note 31.

(vi) Distributability of reserves (vi)

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2015: Nil).

(e) Capital management (e)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
included borrowings disclosed in Note 28, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, comprising share capital, perpetual subordinated
convertible securities, quasi-capital and deficit, as disclosed in
Notes 25 and 30, respectively.
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30.CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continue)

(e)

(f)

31.

(a)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12
June 2009, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option”) whereby the grantees were granted
the rights to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option is 8,400,000
shares which were granted on 12 June 2009 with the subscription
price of HKD2.52 per share.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option has a vesting
period of one to three years commencing from the Listing Date and
the options are exercisable for a period of 10 years. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
option in cash.

A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

30.EX - HERKRE @

(e) EXREE (4
REBRBREFHRHERNERBETRITLE
I8 DAER S IR @ #RIB N T A] BEFERE 2 B
SEEKFER & AR AR 2 1F B R AR
2 MEVS T4 - WHEELBAMN 2 B %
BARZEEEL TR o

(f) BE
KRB EBEREVTEZREBE_T— X F+
“A=Zt+—BHIEFEZANEE (ZE—H
FE)o

N.BEBEE ARG HERBOAR

(a) BER DB SR BT B
REE—BRER-FTAFAA+ BB
MBERER - ADARMERDHBER
IR B ((ERDMBENBRE]) &
bt - ESE AR T REBAR R HOHER] o

BEEBIX AHEENERERINER
BEHETERT TETAORMNDEAHE R
8,400,000 * RHR=ZZTZNLF A +=
BIEE @ REBEAER2.528TT -

BOHRBEERAFEEAMBEEN X HAE
hEEBHAE LT EYEF—Z2=F M
BRER R+ FHEARTE - AARLEE
ESEEEENRSBORENBERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS NREREEURDBERNTR
(CONTINUED) (%)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BEXRAMRERNBRESTE o)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) ERERENFRRRGEFDT -
Number of Contractual
options Vesting conditions life of options
BIREN
BREHE SRR BHRHR
Options granted to the grantees 8,400,000 30% on both of the first and second 10 years
—-on 12 June 2009 anniversary of the Listing 104
BT AR AR IS AR Date, 40% on the third
—RZEENFSA+TZH anniversary of the Listing Date

FTHBRE—REF
FEZBFHEI0%
T EHRE=RAFEL0%

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (i) BX A AHEBEEABRENE R R NEE

Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: HITEEWNT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-—AFt+ZA=1+—BHLHFE
Outstanding number of options
HATERRERR
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January retirement of during the 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2016 adirector year 2016
RZB-RF R=E-RE
-B-A gz t=B=+-H
RRAEH RHBS il & Wi  RENEE EREH ifes
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
AT Th T ) T
Executive director
HTES
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 1,200 (1,200) - -
SRESE “EENE “EENERATIRE
~ATZR “E-NERAT-R
Employees
&8
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 10,800 1,200 (2,400) 9,600
% “2INE “ERNERAToRE
AATZH “E-NERAT-H
12,000 - (2,400) 9,600
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

MNEEREEURGAERMNTR
(%)

(a) BEXRAHRERNBRESTE (0

(i) BRLHBEABRENE R RNEE
EITEBIMT © (@)
BE_ZT-—HFET_A=+—BULEE

Outstanding number of options

AT AR IER B
Balance at Granted Balance at
Exercise 1 January during the 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 year 2015
RZE—R4F RZE—AF
—A—8 +=A=+—8
AR NER it B i il fAEER FERFH HAEER
HKD ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT T T T
Executive director
HITES
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 1,200 = 1,200
SIRIE ST > “EENE “ETNFRATZAZE
~ATZH “Z-NE~RT—H
Employees
=]
In aggregate 12 June 2009 12 June 2009 to 11 June 2019 1.26 10,800 = 10,800
e —EThE —EZAEAAToRE
~ATZH “E-NEXAT—H
12,000 = 12,000

*  Mr. Ma Baofeng retired and ceased to be an executive director of the
Company with effective from 23 June 2016.

*

B-ZE—R"FERA-T=HREXN  FRE
FERERTBRERANTES -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS NREREFIURD BERBAR

(CONTINUED) (#&)
(a) BX L HRERBRESTS (@
(i) BA L HBEABERENE R R NEE

(a) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: (continued)

During the year, no share option (2015: Nil) under the Pre-IPO Share
Option was exercised.

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for every one existing
share held by the shareholders whose names are on the register
of members on 10 October 2011, the exercise price of the Pre-IPO
Share Options was adjusted from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the
number of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options as at 10 October
2011 was adjusted from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.5 years (2015:
3.5 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding
Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December 2016 was HKD1.26 (2015:
HKD1.26) per share.

(b) Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written
resolutions passed on 12 June 2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise
of all options which then has been granted and have yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence of the
shareholders” approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. Unless approved by the shareholders, no
option may be granted to any person which if exercised in full would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to be granted to
such person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding share
option) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of such new grant.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

EITEENT )
RER  BEEHXARAZESAEBREE TR
R EREWITE (ZE—RF  8) -

HRER-_Z—F+ATHRBIIKEREM
R FEA —RIB ARG ERE —IRAE
TRITHARR  BX A HABERBRIENITE
BR252BTAERI26B T MR- —
—F+ATHERTENERXARAEERE
R% # 8t B §7,800,00017 8 2 £15,600,000

{/\ ®

NZZE—RNE+-_A=+—8 " HAxTEH
RAFEE R ERENNEFI TGS L
RE25F (ZE—RAF :35F) - RZT—
NE+—_A=+—H BRITEEBRNAFRE
ERBRENINEFLITEERTH1.268
T (ZZ—RF:1.2687T) °

(b) fE AR =T &I

RIFE—ERR-_ZFZAFA A+ _HBB
MEERZER @ ARAIND RN —IEBAUE
AHEl ([mREsta ) -

HTERBEBRES S LA AR EMEBE
i ERERE AR ARITENMEBR
REMARETHNRRNEE - EERE
BRRAEFAT - @RI BBETREET
PR B2 MI30% » BRIFEIRRILAE - BRI
HEBTEBERNEAZHRHBREE A
(B#E%A) A12EAMEERZALRHHK
BT REERE (BRETE  2EER
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS NEREREEURDH/ERNMTR
(CONTINUED) (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BB RESTEI (o)
An option under the Share Option Scheme may be exercised in R AR AT 8118 T &Y 8 AR 4 AT AR 15 B IR R AT
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any EEFRAAREETSE TN B AERTT
time during a period as determined by the board of directors of the £ - MABBARE R B HEFTEBBI10
Company, which must not be more than 10 years from the date of Fo
the grant.
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) REBRENFRRRGEFOT -
Number of Contractual life
options Vesting conditions of options
BRERE BERGE BRENSOER
Options granted to a director and employees 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years
—-on 17 January 2012 on both of the first and 104F
BT—42EEREENERE second anniversary
—-RZZE——F—H+tH of the grant date
KL BEIR40%

WRHBEHSRE R
FPEFHHE30%

Options granted to directors and employees 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% 10 years

- on 30 April 2015 on both of the first and 104
RTESEESNERE second anniversary
—RZZE-—RFMA=TH of the grant date
R H#R40%

PRHBHEE R
FEREFHE30%
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share

Options are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEEREEURGAERMNTR
(&)

(b) BRAERTE ()

(ii) BIRENEE RINEFHETEBOT :

BE_ZF- R Ft-A=+t—-BHLFE

Outstanding number of options

HA{TRERESR
Balance at Effect of Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January  retirement of duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2016 adirector year 2016
R=B-7§ R=B-AE
-A-H EZRE TZR=1-H
ERAEH RitiAH T8 T8 s % ER%H F373
HKD '000 '000 '000 '000
AT T T T T4
Executive director
HiTEs
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 2,964 (2,964) - -
SRR i g3 2 —F-ATtRZE
—AttH ZEZZ5-A1KA
Independent non-executive
directors
BukuiEs
Mr. Huang Guosheng 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
BEBLE —5-1% ZZ-T§NA=TRZE
MA=1R ZE2REMAZTAR
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
AHREE “F-0F Z2-TENA=TRZE
MA=1A ZEZRENAZTAR
Mr. Xing Zhiying 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 500 - - 500
MEREE “E-nF ZZ-REMA=TRE
MA=1A ZEZRFNAZTAA
4,464 (2,964) - 1,500
Employees
B8
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 150 5,929 2,964 (741) 8,152
& _FC B F-ATtRAZE
—AttA “F-—%#-81+5A
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 132,000 - (7,000) 125,000
i —Z-1fF ZZ-RENA=TRZE
MA=tH ZZ-REMAZTAR
137,929 2,964 (7741) 133,152
142,393 - (7761) 134,652
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31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS NIEEREEUROGAERNNTR
(CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) EERFESTE ()
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share (i) BEBREMNEE RINEFHTEENT :
Options are as follows: (continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z—AF+-A=+—HLEE
QOutstanding number of options
HATTRERIES A
Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1January during the duringthe 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2015 year year 2015
RZZ-1% RZZ-h%
—-A-H TZA=t-A
ERAER sk L (i3 KSR AR ERKR igfei
HKD 000 000 000 000
AT T T T i
Executive director
HES
Mr. Ma Baofeng* 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 2,964 = = 2,964
iR it 2 “E_§-AttRZ
—At+tH “2-E-A15A
Independent non-executive
directors
BukumEs
Mr. Huang Guosheng 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0.485 = 500 = 500
BEBRE “Z-1F “Z-1¥MA=TRZ
MA=tH “ECREMAZTAA
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0485 = 500 = 500
AHRcE “T-1F “T-R¥MA=TRZ
mA=tH “ECREMAZTAA
Mr. Xing Zhiying 30 April2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 = 500 = 500
b I i “Z-1¥MA=TRZ
mA=tA “ZCRFMAZTAA
_____ L . .
Employees
L]
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 16 January 2022 1.50 5929 = = 5929
R —FC “T-_£-AttRZE
—-AttA “E-5-A1A
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025 0.485 = 156,000 (24,000) 132,000
e “F-0fF “2-nFMA=TRZ
MA=1A “ECRFMAZTAA
5929 156,000 (24,000) 137,929
8,893 157,500 (24,000) 142,393
*  Mr. Ma Baofeng retired and ceased to be an executive director of the x HA-EBE—RNESNA-TSBHREEN HRIE
Company with effective from 23 June 2016. EERERITBAERNRTBITES o

Annual Report 2016 —Z—<FFR (



China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS NREREFIURD BERBAR

(CONTINUED) (%)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) HEERRESTEI ()
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of Share (i) BBRENH B RNEFIITEENT :

Options Scheme are as follows: (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the number of the exercisable shares under
the Share Option Scheme was 96,702,000 (2015: 62,293,000)
shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option under
the Share Option Scheme were granted (2015: 157,500,000). During
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no share option
under the Share Option Scheme was exercised.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 8.1 years (31 December 2015:
9.1 years). The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding
share options as at 31 December 2016 was HKDO0.55 (2015:
HKDO.55) per share.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

(&)

MNZZE—RNE+-_A=+—8 - BRESZ
T RNA[/TEAR D HE B 596,702,0000% (=
T4 : 62,293,0000%) °
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BRESETHEEREERD (22—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

31.EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS MNEEREEURMAEROAR
(CONTINUED) (&)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) BB RESTEI (o)

(iii) Fair value of share options and assumptions (i BREND AERRE
The fair value of service received in return for share options granted REBREMBMORBARE 2R
is measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. EREBRENALERE EREBRE
The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is WSt AR ERE A R SRS
measured based on the Binomial Lattice Model. The contractual 2 - BRENS QORI AR AT A E A
life of the share options is used as an input into this model. BE o RRAITTHEMTEHE WA =B BhfEE
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Al o

Lattice Model.

Granted on

30 April 2015

R=ZE—AF

WA=+H

Fair value at grant date REE BB AR E HKD29,443,1417% 7T

Share price & B HKDO0.485/ 7T

Exercise price 1B E HKDO.485/% 7T

Expected volatility TEHR IR 53.89%

Expected option life Te AR R A EARR 10 years 104

Expected dividend yield rate TE AR AR B as 0%

Risk-free interest rate 4 [ B 7| 2 1.638%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of three FEER IR A E N =B 0] & L8 A 5] By FE O

comparable companies. The expected dividend yield rate is based FEL - FBEAREWEZXRIER =B &
on the average dividend of three comparable companies. Changes NN EHEESE - REISERRE

in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair A AR EGEHEKEARTE o
value estimate.
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

32.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 2. HEMNBEAE

In addition to the disposal of Zhuhai Port as disclosed in Note
10, the Group disposed of two subsidiaries, together with two
associates, during the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 10 April 2015, the Group agreed to sell its entire equity
interest in Gerrards Agents (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
(“Gerrards Agents”), an indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company,
at an aggregate consideration of HKD1,995,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,662,000) to an independent third party. The
completion date of the disposal was on 22 July 2015. Gerrards
Agents was dormant.

On 30 December 2015, the Group has agreed to sell its entire
equity interest in Bright Rock, an indirectly owned subsidiary of the
Company, together with two associates, Tiaro Coal and Paragon
Coal, at an aggregate consideration of AUD20,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB95,000) to another independent third party. The
completion date of the disposal was on 30 December 2015. The
principal activity of Bright Rock was investment holding of these
two associates.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{

BRI FE10PT I EE M BEIRBBHIN - ARER
BE_T-AFT_A=1T—HLFEEH
EMEMB A RERMER L QT

RZZT—RAFHA+H XEEREN
AR E1,995,0008 T(HWHERARE
1,662,0007T) #§ E MGerrards Agents
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
([Gerrards Agents ) (/A 5] & £ # A 1)
WJ%’&ET) WEHRELET —2BYE=
Eiﬁ’i%Iﬁﬁﬁ%EXEHﬁ%:?—ﬂit
)EJ +—H ° Gerrards AgentsE E{Z & % -

%:§—£¢+ZHE+H F AEBRE
41 {E20,0002 7T (MHER ARKIS5,000
7E)i“| H M Bright Rock (AR RIMEHEERN
MERR) MEEARE  ERMEBE QT
Tiaro CoalMParagon Coal * HEFR—%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continue)

The carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of Zhuhai Port, Gerrards
Agents and Bright Rock as at the respective disposal completion

date are as follows:

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

2. HEME A @
BKGBT « Gerrards Agents & Bright Rock
REBHETKBEZEE (AF) REE
W

Gerrards
Zhuhai Port Agents Bright Rock Total
Gerrards
HigE Agents Bright Rock @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTR ARBTR ARET T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment nE  BELEE 15 172754 - - 1,727,154
Lease prepayments RERNER 17 106,122 - - 106,122
Interests in associates N NSl 18 - - - -
Inventories 7E 277 - - 277
Trade receivables B SRR 6,743 = = 6,743
Prepayments and other receivables BRTRFRE YRR 76,065 100 - 76,165
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEN 4,683 2 - 4,685
Trade payables ERE SRR (2,942) = = (2,942)
Other payables Hi e (370,216) (32) - (370,248)
Borrowings B8 (1,083,210) - - (1,083,210)
Net assets EERE 464,676 70 - 464,746
Non-controlling interest SRR (185,870) - - (185,870)
Cumulative exchange differences AELENBLRANEEFE
recognised in respect of the net R ZFHER AR
assets of the disposed subsidiary ENNEZER
reclassified from equity to profit or loss = (16) 4,454 4,438
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZME /(BB) 70,834 1,608 (4,359) 68,083
Direct expenses in relation to the disposal BEHESENERRY 360 - - 360
Total cash consideration BeRELE 350,000 1,662 95 351757
Net cash inflow arising on HEEENRERARE
disposals
Cash consideration RerE 350,000 1,662 95 351757
Direct expenses paid BREERAZ (360) = = (360)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERAEEEN (4,683) 2) = (4,685)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal MEEENRSRNFE 344,957 1,660 95 346,712
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

33.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain financial institution with respect to general
banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company
of approximately RMB4,206,554,000 (2015: RMB5,934,404,000).
In addition, as at 31 December 2016, the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company have executed corporate guarantee
to certain banks with respect to general banking facilities
granted to an associate of approximately RMB640,600,000 (2015:
RMB635,690,000) as disclosed in Note 37(c).

The Company has not recognised any financial liability (2015: Nil) in
respect of the guarantees granted for general banking facilities of
the associate as the Directors considered that it was not probable
that the repayments of the borrowings from the associate would be
in default and the estimated fair value is insignificant.

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and currency
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and bill
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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33.

34.

(a)

BREREN
RZEBE—RNE+A=1+—8 AxQazH
ETARBIMBRARERZ —RIRTTEED
ABR#4 206,554,000 (Z2—HF : AR
#55,934,404,0007T) MAE TS RMEERLIA
AIFEIR o AN - ANBEES7 ()T E - =
Z—RNF+_A=1+—8 " AR EAXAQF
ETHBRARM — ML A ERZ IR
TIEE#H AR640,600,0000T (ZE—H
F: AR #635,690,0007T) ME THRITE
SAEER o

ARBIEARARBERR 2 —RRITEERE
ReERERTMNEREE (ZFT—0%F:
B) AAESRAEAEEREQARMER
ZAREEAKREFARBETTERX °

cREREERANE

AEBEHELFXEHERTEYEE  RE
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R B DA e 7R 62 18 B 1 5 TR B PR R B B 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

(b)

VALUES (conTinuED)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customer operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At the reporting date,
64.4% (2015: 87.7%) of the net trade and bill receivables was due
from the five largest customers within the coal business segment.
In view of the history of business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history of the receivables due from
them, management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable balance due from
these customers. Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the debtors and whether there is any dispute with the
debtors. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group as set out in Note 33, the Group does not provide
any other guarantee which would expose the Group to credit risk as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, but the borrowings are subject to
approval by the parent company’s management. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with any lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

34.

(a)

(b)

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

tREREERAAE @

EER @)
AEEAGENEERBREESXZSZRFEMNE
PR MIER P EETERENRTE -
Hitt - EERANEE T ERIRFmEERE KR
SR FTEHREEEEETRRR - MBS
B BRESEAREREEFEFCLL%
(ZZE—HF:87.7%) DEWERKERKD
HMARFEFEHIE - EREZERFPMERE
TR EC £ M JIE ML 5 1Y B W BR SR R RE 8% R
i - B ERAAEE M AR A FE AR R
EHRAGWEENEERR - EREERES
AR ARHEORE - @5 AR
BENREFAREHREEAZFZME I X
4t i Y BR 30 /9 A W B 14 1B I TE HRRE (S o &%
SEERREASEMEE CREERGE
AR AT o BRI FEI3FT i B IS YE (R
Gy RZFB—XRE+-_A=+—8 K&£H
TAEE 2 EE R BRI ER ST EAamER
(ZZ—RF: E)-

AEBAENEEERAERTRERESE
2 BEEARGEAREEEM]E K&
BeBRREHRERERDPESCTRLEE
SRR R Z B0 - ARERE M+ = 5
BBl RATESHBE EEARE
TRE  NENEREHZRBHESHER -
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the reporting date of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SG.eREAREERALE @

(b) REBE LSRR (@)
TRAFVAEE ZITESREBENTRER
ZHRHELEHE  BEEAZEBNIREHKR
WRRERE (BEFEHAE YA RTE 27
EH M ARE  BliERRE R ER 2
RAE) UWRAEE e AN R ZEBH
qu/‘""

As at 31 December 2016

R-2-A¥+ZA=1-H
More than
Total Within one one year and
Carrying  undiscounted year or less than
amount cash flow on demand five years
KI5 —FR -F%
REE RERAR BRER BEFR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKFR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Current BN
Trade and bill payables EREIERRENEE 981,827 981,827 981,827 -
Financial liabilities included in other payables FAEMEMNRIZEREE 2,838,479 2,838,479 2,838,479 -
Borrowings fBE 6,043,271 6,043,271 6,043,271 -
9,863,577 9,863,577 9,863,577 -
Non-current JEEDH
Financial liabilities included in other payables SAEMEMNERZERER 67,717 80,800 - 80,800
67,717 80,800 - 80,800
9,931,294 9,944,377 9,863,577 80,800
Maximum exposure of financial HBERADTARR
guarantee contracts (Note 33) (PiE33) 640,600 683,882 683,882 -
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A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR EHREREENRAALE @
VALUES (conTinueD)
(b) Liquidity risk ontinued) (b) B AL (=)
As at 31 December 2015
“2-EFt-A=t-H
Total Within one  More than one
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  yearand less More than
amount cash flow ondemand  than five years five years
RTR —FR —Fik
FAE Benes REX BRER RELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AR%ETT  ARETE
Current K
Trade and bill payables EREZERRENEE 1,088711 1,088711 1,088711 - -
Financial liabilities included in other payables ~ FFAZMEMNEIZEREE 2,308,508 2,308,508 2,308,508 - -
Borrowings fE& 5,905,322 5,906,322 5,905,322 - -
9302541 9302541 9302541 - -
Non-current FENA
Financial liabilities included in other payables ~ stARMEMERz 2RA R 82,195 101,000 - 80,800 20,200
82,195 101,000 - 80,800 20,200
9,384,736 9,403,541 9,302,541 80,800 20,200
Maximum exposure of financial IBERSOSARR
guarantee contracts (Note 33) (PzE33) 635,690 667,411 332,748 334,663 -
The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts L BEREO 2B AEBIRBEEE
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle BERSBIZHMAFERENc B L
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that R (WERZHFAREZZESE) - BRER
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on EHR2TEE - AREBERABRAAEBER
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers BRI FIAE - A+ Lt msHiS&R T 5
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable under FARBERELBREZNAIEMEMAE -
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change R AR AR RIBUAR S F 5 AR
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under RUBRERBER LR EEBENAI M

the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (conTinuED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank
loans with a repayment on cross default clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts
include interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in
the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained in
the above table.

The directors do not consider that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

SG.eREAREERALE @

(b) REVE 2R (&)

T RIBIEE N 00 3% P E A E AT B KB
Bt B a8 X B OGRFNRITERIHA D
- 2RMBBEERANNKRFTENNEM
Ko Bt ZESBERERMEIHADN
fMRER | RRBEANMREZ2BAD -

EEARRITHITHEERBREZ LA ER
HABEET K - EERRZFRITERBR
BERWBEAHTEERAHEE -

Maturity analysis - Bank loans subject to a repayment on
cross default clause based on scheduled repayments

BHE RO — RIFBIEFTERN
BN EERRORITER

Total Within one  More than one

Carrying  undiscounted yearor  yearand less

amount cash flow ondemand than five years

REH —FA —Fi&

BREE BongElw FIREK BRFA

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE AREBTRT AR®TRT ARE®TR

At 31 December 2016 R-BE-—AE+=-B=+—-8 6,043,271 6,467,888 3,759,354 2,708,534
At 31 December 2015 RZF-AF+=A=1+—H 5,905,322 6,080,248 3,302,997 2,777,251

As 31 December 2016, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB9,463,913,000. As disclosed in Note 28, certain
borrowings amounting to RMB959,229,000 were not renewed or
rolled over upon maturity and carried interest at 4.75% to 12.96%
per annum. In addition, subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report, further borrowings of RMB20,980,000 were
not renewed or rolled over upon maturity. The liquidity of the Group
is dependent on its ability to implement the measures to improve
the Group’s immediate liquidity and cash flows as described in Note
1.2(c).

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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A P RARMEE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR /%TREREER D AME @
VALUES (conTinueD)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=E
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings. NEFBZNERRBERETERBEE o Al &5
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the RNEFEFMEREAZEEFRAEE S RIEAT
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate e RMNMERREARBENERRE - 1=
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by BE Yo 7 N &= B R AL B R 3 () -

management is set out in (i) below:

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s TEHIIAEB ZEERRE B 2 7 =
borrowings at the reporting date: o
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest value interest value
rate BREE rate REE
per annum RMB’000 per annum RMB'000
BRFER X AR®TTT BRFME AR®EFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEN=EE :
Borrowings 5E 4.75% -13.5% 1,861,144 |4.35%-12.96% 2,760,496
Variable rate borrowings: AENEEE
Borrowings BE 4.35% -7.28% 4,182,127 | 4.35%-7.28% 3,144,826
Total net borrowings BEETFE 6,043,271 5,905,322
Net fixed rate borrowings as a B E R R EEFES
percentage of total net borrowings AEEFENEDSL 30.80% 46.75%
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR b.TRIAMEERAAE @

VALUES (conTinuED)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(c) RMZERE @)
(i) BRE DM

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings prevailing
at the reporting date, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax by approximately
RMB41,5661,000 (2015: RMB31,238,000) and increase/decrease
the Group’s accumulated losses by approximately RMB41,561,000
(2015: RMB31,238,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax and consolidated equity that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to re-measure those
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the reporting
date. The impact on the Group’s loss after tax and consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2015.

BREMBEHEMESHRIZTIE - RFE5HEA]
i pes 1ﬁ“‘a’ﬁlJ$%é’&3tﬂ/T|3 10018 %
o hrteEREE T AF+_A=1+
—HAIEFE 2 ASBERB&EEBREM, RS
HAREL1,561,000 (ZE2E—HF : AR
#31,238,0007T) RAEERTEIEE N,
WA # ANER#41,561,0007T (ZE—FREF
AE#31,238,0007T) °

J:%)it@l@ﬁé* DT HE AN SR B 2 R T 1K B 1B B 4R
ARG AREL CHRER - 2R HRERMNE

*:@W#&iae%@éi WERREHTE
AEEFFALNBE AEAKRE@ERRES
M RERETEITEEMIA - XEH
ZBBRREBBESAER ZFERTARMNE
m%ﬁﬂﬂEiﬂjE’JET{thT’EHﬂH# %
DT THERINE — T — R AR EAEETT -

(d) Foreign currency risk (d) SheE R B
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign ARBAIFIEBHEBAING - FIBESRAR
exchange transactions involving RMB must take place through BHINER H W ABRP B ARRITIHEAM
the People’s Bank of China or other institutions authorised to BEETEBEINEEIBETT - INEXFFR

buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rate adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted
by the People’'s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through purchases giving rise to cash balances that are
denominated in USD, while all the other operations of the Group
are mainly transacted in RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the
RMB value of purchase costs of commodities that are denominated
in foreign currencies.

) Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (conTinuED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

UW.EREREERAAE @

(d) shEER B ()

e ERERME
31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

TREMMEERBESARNBIAEEXE

B MENEEXZEENY
EiHE  AMELNHEERR -

BE B M LASME

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—hfF

Denominated Denominated

in USD in USD

B EEHE PAETTEE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents HERIREZEEY 441 436

(e)

No sensitivity analysis has been presented as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the foreign exchange risk associated with
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities will not be significant.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The Group classifies all its financial assets and financial liabilities
as loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

35.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At each reporting date, capital commitments outstanding not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

REVNHREDM IBERARREER /A
AAEEcREERBENINERRETE
ﬁ o

(e) UFRAAEBEIIRNEREEREAEN
[RE
AEEKABCREERSRAED BIRE
HADBRERRERERAREREE -

AREEILZR AR EHNAATRN /BT AR
FEE BER-F-REER-_T-—RAF+
“A=T—HORAREDRITAK -

35. EAAIE
REEBME A - WRNGEEHBEEEL
BN A BITEARNRBNT :

2016 2015

—EB-AF —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Property, plant and equipment Yz - B KR 45,692 48,176
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

36.0PERATING LEASES 36.ZX&EHE
(a) Leases as lessee (a) IEAEBAZHEE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under PRI REHE EHEE TR R KIERE K
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BEmT
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 1,086 14,017
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FRRERAFK 793 1,509
1,879 15,526
The Group leases properties and vessels under non-cancellable NEBERBENTRIEKCETEERSHES
operating lease agreement. The lease terms are between two and R c HEAN TFRE=F - ZZEHE T

three years. The agreements do not include an extension option.

TR H R A -

(b) Leases as lessor (b) FERHBEAZEE

The future minimum lease payments receivable under TR B ETHEE TR RFIKIEEELI

non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BEZRIN R :
2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Within 1 year —FR 8,569 9,169
The Group leases vessels under various agreements which typically AEERBYVGBHFBE="ZEANET

run for an initial period of three to six months. The agreements do

not include an extension option. P -
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

I.BEFIRS
AEERAEENEEFETETRS
)1 %%@%E&#_E—A¢+_H
NBET) REBEZEE  (MRITESRE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with related
parties of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, an executive director who
resigned on 8 December 2016, and his close family members; (ii)
Mr. Xu Da, an executive director and his close family members: SENEFEREE (iii)iﬂﬁ§$%ﬁ%m§§‘ﬁﬂi
(iii) Mr. Ma Baofeng, an executive director who retired on 23 June (R—ZZE—RENA-+=HEM : (V&
2016; (iv) Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa HERHN AR REEREEXEEFRA
industry”), a company controlled by Mr. Xu; (v) Yuanfan Technology Al ([RREX]): T?L%E&%%E%TW
Co., Ltd. (“Yuanfan Technology”), a company controlled by Mr. Xu IO TLWﬂB‘iﬁﬁE Al ([BWBHE )
Da and Qinfa Industry; (vi) Tongmei Qinfa, an associate, (vii) Bo Hai (VB AR RERE (VII)@?EET GO
Investment Limited (“Bo Hai Investment”), a company controlled by AEEREARAR (B RE])  Kvii)
Mr. Xu; and (viii) Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the AR A REIERA 7@?&5 °

Company.

AEBEFANE ABESNRSFHBOT -

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the above
related parties for the year are as follows:

(a) Recurring transactions (a) BEMRS

Transaction amount for the
years ended 31 December

Payable outstanding
as at 31 December

BE+-A=t-ALEE R+=A=+-H
ZREE ZRBEA IR
2016 2015 2016 2015
—RE —T-RfF —E-RE “T-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARET T AR®TR AR¥EFTT
Sales of coal to SHERKT
- Tongmei Qinfa — RERE 1,760 270,085 1,060 -
Purchase of coal from RERRE
- Tongmei Qinfa — AERE 77,149 4,317 548,495 433,545
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

37.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuep) 3V.BERRSZ w
(b) Guarantees provided by related parties (b) BAEFRMEHER
2016 2015
- —F—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Guarantees of bill payables and borrowings BREEREEZFBRHED
provided by Mr. Xu and his close family members ERNEREREEER 7,575,910 7,279,380
Guarantees of borrowings provided by RERERAEBEREBREMHN
Mr. Xu Da and his close family members BEER 7,345,990 7,046,160
Guarantees of borrowings provided by ERIELEERENEELER
Mr. Ma Baofeng 370,000 370,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by FREZRENEEER
Qinfa Industry 2,772,000 2,772,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by RINBHIREREEER
Yuanfan Technology 152,000 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided by PREHOEEER
Fortune Pearl 3,010,000 =
Guarantees of borrowings provided by SR ERENEEER
Bo Hai Investment 3,010,000 =
Guarantees provided to a related party (c) REF—BBEESNER
2016 2015
ZE-RE —F—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Guarantees given by the Group for banking AEE R =2
facilities obtained by Tongmei Qinfa EERIRITRIE IR ER 640,600 635,690
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueD)
(d) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding positions
with authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

A P RARMEE

JV.BEFRSZ @
(d) BEREEEALTHME

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=+—H

BREEEATHEEZRIFAERERS
EEREHAKEEINEIRAEEZAL
(BREARARES) BREEEALZHE

including the directors of the Company. Key management personnel LU
remuneration are as follows:

2016 2015
—E—-XE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETFIT
Directors fee E50E 3,319 3,316
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZBREYEN 8,702 6,721
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RN FIET B K 133 77
Share-based payments VAR B EERE S 3R 1,913 4,433
14,067 14,547
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31 December 2016 —Z—"F+=-A=1+—H

38.NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective in these consolidated

financial statements.

China Qinfa Group Limited FEIEZEEER AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 2R

B -

38. [ RER AR BT 5] B RS 5T B R B 7%

AREEWEEAN NFIERMEL KRR AEE
I MR AR 2 F A REEFT R S

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RIS ARz %
FRE ST IR LXK

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments

I % B 7 el 5 R B 581 051% &
BIpR = 5T 4RI ZE 2857 (fEF]AN)

IAS 7 Amendments

Bl &5t ERIE 75 (BFIAN)

IAS 12 Amendments

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REERHEBERANEELEENEELEIOEA

Disclosure Initiatives

BERETE

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

To be determined*
1 January 2017

—E—+¥—HA—H
1 January 2017

REEERIE 1258 (BRIA) MABE B RERRLERIBEE —ZE—+t%—HA—H
IFRS 2 Amendments Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions

BRI 5w EERNE 25% (BRTA) AR RERN RO X S0 DB RGE —E-N\F—H—H
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
[ R B 75 s o R R SR 955 TRIA —EF-NF¥—A—H
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
[ % B 755 ¥ o5 2 B 35 1 5557 B AW —ZE-N¥—A—H
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BB B 75 i XE R S 1655 HE —ET-NF—HA—H
*  0On 17 December 2015, the IASB issued “Effective Date of Amendments * ﬁ/\\\£§*£¢+:ﬁ] TL:C =0 ff@?’ﬁ%ﬁ‘]
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28" This update defers the effective date of the Z B & 24 [ EIER A1 75 W 5 2 R 551055 K B
amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or [55—3 = Ef@glﬁ\'J%Z&@\Zﬂ% ETZEEA’ﬁ HEJ] - pt&
its Associate or Joint Venture” that the IASB issued in September 2014. LB TERETEAZE S m:g—gi
Early application of these amendments continues to be permitted. NABGE [IREEXIHBEQRILAERE
RMAERERT A BTAZ ARAH - 2

FPRAZEETHBER AR -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements except for the following:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED

(CONTINUED)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2015, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9
will have an impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets. Further information about the impact will
be available nearer the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.
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38.NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED 38. 2 AR ER AR B9 T 5T I AME 7T B PR B 7

(CONTINUED)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of IFRS
15. The directors of the Company believe that it is impractical to
disclose the impact in these consolidated financial statements
until the Group has completed the assessment.

IFRS 16 Leases

Under IFRS 16 a lessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is treated similarly to other
non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly and the liability
accrues interest. This will typically produce a front-loaded expense
profile (whereas operating leases under IAS 17 would typically have
had straight-line expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of
the right-of-use asset and the decreasing interest on the liability
will lead to an overall decrease of expense over the reporting period.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate
implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use their incremental
borrowing rate.

As with IFRS 16’s predecessor, IAS 17, lessors classify leases as
operating or finance in nature. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset. Otherwise a lease is classified
as an operating lease.

For finance leases a lessor recognises finance income over the
lease term, based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment. A lessor recognises operating
lease payments as income on a straight-line basis or, if more
representative of the pattern in which benefit from use of the
underlying asset is diminished, another systematic basis.
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38.NEW AND REVISED IFRSs NOT YET ADOPTED 38. 8 RERAN BV 5T B AR 18 5T BRI B B 7%

(CONTINUED) #ﬁ%ﬁﬁ—ﬂu (%)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued) BRI M EEAE 1655 HE @

Recognition exemptions BREBR

Instead of applying the recognition requirements of IFRS 16 B & At BB B 7 R 2R R 551 655 2 TERR

described above, a lessee may elect to account for lease payments BE - AEAFERERNTRERERAEE

as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or RERHERNEEREZNS —BE RSN

another systematic basis for the following two types of leases: EEFBRARAY

~  leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no — MEHRTZEAxKAANESE B &
purchase options — this election is made by class of underlying PRERER - HEEIREREEER
asset; and ET R

- leases where the underlying asset has a low value when new - BB EEBFEREBEEREMNEE
(such as personal computers or small items of office furniture) (Bl anfE A BB S/ N R =R ML) — 1
— this election can be made on a lease-by-lease basis. BETIZERE ST -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of AAREETBHEABEBRTBRELERNE16

IFRS 16 in the future may affect amounts reported and related REBRSEFEMERN B LEEESR

disclosure. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable B o A - EASBEITFHARER - B

estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until the Group performs a detail R B EERE 16NN EIER S

review. FTEBAIAT o

39.IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 30.HEERBRREZERA

The directors of the Company consider the immediate and ARREZRE  AEEZEERSEER
ultimate holding company of the Group to be Fortune Pearl, a NARRRBEXBEEIMK LN ARE
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate B RRERF R B —RRREAE o

controlling party to be Mr. Xu, the sole shareholder of Fortune Pearl.
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40.COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. LB T

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
current year’s presentation.

Reclassification for the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2015:

Impairment losses are separately disclosed from other expenses on
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Reclassification for the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015:

Borrowings with cross default clauses are reclassified as current
liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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China Qinfa Group Limited FEIREZ&EEAR A7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Outstanding litigations

Up to the date of this report, the following legal proceedings are still
outstanding.

(i)

Litigation claims relating to the performance of the
contract execution between Liaoning Zhonghuitong
Asset Management Limited (“Zhonghuitong”) and
Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy

On 29 November 2012, Xinglong Coal acquired certain coal
mining machineries at a consideration of RMB94,708,000.
On 27 June 2013, Xinglong Coal settled the purchase of
machineries by way of bill payables of RMB94,708,000 which
was guaranteed by Zhonghuitong. Xinglong Coal eventually
repaid the bill payables of RMB59,021,000 and failed to honor
its remaining obligation of RMB35,687,000. As a guarantor,
Zhonghuitong settled the principal and interest of the bill
payables of RMB35,687,000 on behalf of Xinglong Coal. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, Zhonghuitong applied
to the Liaoning Shenyang Municipal Intermediate People’s
Court to order Xinglong Coal and Huameiao Energy to repay
RMB35,687,000, late penalty charges of RMB3,788,000 and
interest payment of RMB6,888,000, totalling RMB46,363,000,
in addition to the court litigation costs. The interest payment
was calculated on the basis of 0.05% per day from 28 June
2014 until the settlement.

The principal and interest of RMB35,687,000 had already been
recognised as payables to Zhonghuitong included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015. As a result of the foregoing, the Group
further recognised the late penalty charges of RMB3,788,000
and interest charges of RMBG6,888,000 in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the
judgements, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of payables to the plaintiffs, with additional
corresponding legal costs of RMB279,000, which have been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(i) Litigation claims relating to damage of properties with

local villagers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were several
litigation claims initiated by the local villagers against the
Group relating to compensation for properties damage
of RMB9,210,000. As a result of the foregoing, the Group
recognised the provision for litigation of RMB9,210,000 in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the
judgements, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of payables of RMB9,210,000 to the plaintiffs.

(iii) Litigation claims relating to unsettled property, plant

and equipment contract sums with several suppliers of
the group

As at 31 December 2015, there were several litigation
claims initiated by the suppliers against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue payables in
relation to purchase of machineries with an aggregate
amount of RMB132,206,000 and the late penalty charges of
RMB6,605,000 and corresponding legal costs of RMB108,000.
An aggregate amount of RMB132,206,000 had already been
recognised as payables to these suppliers included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015. As a result of the foregoing, the
Group further recognised the late penalty charges and interest
charges of RMB6,605,000 and corresponding legal costs of
RMB108,000 in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinueD)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(iii) Litigation claims relating to unsettled property, plant

and equipment contract sums with several suppliers of
the group (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the
judgements, the Group was ordered to make immediate
repayment of payables of RMB137,118,000 to the plaintiffs. The
Group is actively negotiating with the plaintiffs for settlement of
the court cases. Subsequent to year end and up to the date of
this report, the Group has successfully reached an agreement
with certain plaintiffs at a PRC court on a settlement plan with
an aggregated amount of RMB26,551,000 that will be repaid by
monthly installment.

Up to the date of this report, the remaining litigation claims
with an aggregate amount of RMB2,796,000 are still in
progress. No further provision for litigation was required to be
made in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(iv) Litigation claims relating to unsettled considerations

in relation to the acquisition of coal mining rights of
Xinglong Coal mine and Hongyuan Coal mine

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were litigation
claims initiated by the previous owners (the “Previous Owners”)
of Xinglong Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine against the
Group to demand immediate repayment of the unsettled
considerations with an aggregate amount of RMB51,338,000
in relation to the acquisitions of coal mining rights of Xinglong
Coal Mine and Hongyuan Coal Mine in 2013. Pursuant to the
judgements of the Shanxi Shuozhou Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court dated 20 April 2015 and 10 December 2015, the
Group was ordered to pay the Previous Owners the unsettled
consideration of RMB51,338,000, the late penalty charges and
interest charges of RMB3,000,000 and corresponding legal
costs of RMB350,000. On 23 July 2015 and 4 January 2016,
the Group lodged appeal applications to the Shanxi Provincial
Higher People’s Court. The amount of RMB51,338,000 had
already been recognised as payables to the Previous Owners
included in other payables in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015. As a result
of the foregoing, the Group further recognised the late
penalty charges and interest charges of RMB3,000,000 and
corresponding legal costs of RMB350,000 in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has successfully reached an agreement with one of the
plaintiffs on a settlement plan with an aggregated amount of
RMB13,000,000 that will be repaid by monthly installment of
RMB1,000,000. Accordingly, such litigation claim was released
subsequently.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continuep)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(iv) Litigation claims relating to unsettled considerations

in relation to the acquisition of coal mining rights of
Xinglong Coal mine and Hongyuan Coal mine (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, another previous
owner of Hongyuan Coal filed a lawsuit to Taiyuan Municipal
Intermediate People’s Court against the Group to demand
immediate repayment of the unsettled considerations of
RMB87,423,000 and the late penalty charges and interest
charges of RMB14,487,000 in relation to the acquisitions of coal
mining rights of Hongyuan Coal Mine.

Up to the date of this report, litigation claims of
RMB125,761,000 is still in progress. The amount of
RMB125,761,000 had already been recognised as payables
to the Previous Owners included in other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016. As a result of the foregoing, the Group further
recognised the late penalty charges and interest charges of
RMB14,487,000 in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of
bank borrowings

In 2015, a bank filed a lawsuit in Zhuhai Municipal
Intermediate People’s Court against the Group to demand
immediate repayment of the defaulted bank borrowings
of RMB148,882,000 and interest charges of RMB328,000
respectively. The principal of RMB148,882,000 and respective
interest charges of RMB328,000 had already been recognised
as borrowings and accrued expenses included in other
payables respectively in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015.

In 2016, another bank filed lawsuit in Shanxi Province
High People’'s Court against the Group to demand
immediate repayment of the defaulted bank borrowings of
RMB492,444,000 and interest charges of RMB13,068,000
respectively. The principal of RMB492,444,000 and respective
interest charges of RMB13,068,000 had already been
recognised as borrowings and accrued expenses included in
other payables respectively in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)
(v) Litigation claims relating to default of repayment of

bank borrowings (continued)

Pursuant to the judgements, several bank accounts of the
Group were frozen for one year from the date of the judgements
and the coal mining rights of the Group and two properties of
the Group’s related companies were frozen for three years from
the date of judgement. In addition, the Group was ordered to
make immediate repayment of the aforesaid balances.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is still in the process
of negotiating with these two banks to renew its loans
outstanding.

(vi) Litigation claims relating to the performance of the

contract execution Heilongjiang HengJiu Construction
Limited (“HengJiu”) and Chongsheng Coal and Fengxi
Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a
litigation claim initiated by Hengdiu against the Group to
demand immediate repayment of overdue payable in relation
to down-hole construction with an aggregate amount of
RMB30,000,000 and the late penalty charges of RMB9,000,000.
An aggregate amount of RMB30,000,000 had already been
recognised as payables to these suppliers included in other
payables in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016. As a result of the foregoing, the Group
further recognised the late penalty charges of RMB9,000,000
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016. Up to the date of this report, the case has yet
been concluded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)
(a) Outstanding litigations (continued)

(vii)Litigation claims relating to the performance of the
contract execution Yu Lin Zhong Kuang Wan Tong
Construction Limited Company (“Yu Lin Zhong Kuang”)
and Xinglong Coal and Hongyuan Coal

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a
litigation claim initiated by Yu Lin Zhong Kuang against the
Group to demand immediate repayment of overdue payable
in relation to construction of coal mining infrastructure with
an aggregate amount of RMB101,323,000. It had already been
recognised included in other payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016. The
case was concluded on 9 January 2017 in the Shanxi Provincial
Xinzhou City Intermediate People’s Court. As a result of the
foregoing, the Group further recognised the late penalty
charges of RMB16,345,000 and interest of RMB13,101,000
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Group appealed to Shanxi Provincial
High People’s Court on 22 February 2017. Up to the date of this
report, the appeal has yet been concluded.

As at 31 December 2016, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the provision for the above litigation is sufficient in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016.

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31 December 2016,
the Group was not involved in any other material litigation or
arbitration. As far as the Group was aware, the Group had no
other material litigation or claim which was pending or threatened
against the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the Group was the
defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to
certain litigations arising from the ordinary course of business.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or
other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained at present, but the
management of the Group believes that any possible legal liability
which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have any
material impact on the financial position of the Group.
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41.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)
(b) Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued the
guarantees to certain banks in respect of borrowings made by
Tongmei Qinfa, an associate of the Group. Under the guarantee, the
Group that is a party to the guarantee are jointly and severally liable
for any of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa from those banks.

As at 31 December 2016, the directors of the Company do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group at
31 December 2016 under the guarantees issued is a portion of the
outstanding amount of the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa amounting
to RMB640,600,000 (2015: RMB635,690,000).

42.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 April 2016 and 11 July 2016, the Group entered into a share
sale and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement
with Bo Hai Investment, a related company wholly owned by Mr.
Xu, a previous director and a close family member of a director
of the Company respectively in relation to the disposal of entire
equity interest in Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (“HK
Qinfa international group”) at a consideration of RMB176,740,000.
The principal activities of HK Qinfa International Group are coal
mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal and
shipping transportation in the PRC. The proposed transaction is
yet to complete and is subject to certain conditions precedent as
stated in the share sale and purchase agreement. Subsequent to
the year, the Group and Bo Hai Investment agreed to further extend

42.
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the long stop date to 30 April 2017 for satisfying the outstanding EBEFBIER AT A —F+A
conditions precedent. Details of which are set out in the circular ZHABMBERARARAEZS—REF+Z

dated 26 October 2016 and the announcements of the Company
dated 16 December 2016, 30 December 2016 and 28 February 2017.
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43.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the year is as follows:
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BRARRNFROMBIARNERDT

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Non-current assets IREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIZE = -
Current assets REEE
Other receivables o Ath FE U BR 5K 13 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries RIS NGIE S 73,243 141,533
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 3,525 16
76,781 141,553
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E A FE T BR 5K (104,183) (99,861)
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE (BE) EEFHE (27,402) 41,692
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)BEEFE (27,402) 41,692
Capital and reserves BRI 4
Share capital [N 211,224 193,275
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities AR AR ] HRR 55 156,931 156,931
Quasi-capital fHE N - 45771
Deficit B4t (395,557) (354,285)
(Capital deficiency)/total equity (BRER) R EHE (27,402) 41,692

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of RIZZE—+tF=A=+—REFTEZEEBER
China Qinfa Group Limited on 31 March 2017. NRIESGIERKERE -

Xu Da Bai Tao
#®E HES
Director Director
BFE EoE
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43.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. R AN AR R R 0

COMPANY (conTiNuED)

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

AR EME R R B 0 I F) e S R A

BB

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out BEEHIIAT
below:
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based
Share Share Quasi-  convertible  Contributed Exchange compensation  Accumulated
capital premium capital  securities surplus reserve reserve losses Total
XARR NRBAER
s BiteE BEK  WERES gAB%  ERRE  <MERE  RHER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Notes Note 30(o)  Note 30(d)(i) Note30(c) Note30(d)vi) Note30(d)iv)  Note 30(d)v)
fifzt Hiats0)  MEE0(G)) Hs0l)  MES0M) MRS MR
1 January 2015 WZE-1f-F-A 176,531 302,750 = 156,931 668,719 (62155) 8,269 (53,400) 1187645
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FR2ERA / (K8)
for the year EL ]
Loss for the year ERER = = - = - - - (1273376)  (1.273,376)
Other comprehensive income Ef2ERA
Foreign currency translation differences INEREZEE - - - - - 31,475 - - 31475
Total other comprehensive income E2ERALEE - - - - - 31475 - - 31475
Total comprehensive income/(oss) 2EWA/(BE) 85 - - - - - 31475 - (1278376)  (1,241901)
Transactions with equity REEHEALR S
shareholders, recorded directly in equity RERERIR
Distribution relatingto convertble securities ~ EATERARBEN Nk 30(0) - (4728) - - - - - - (4728)
Shares issued in respect of placing FEEETORG 30(o)i) 16,744 28,372 - - - - - - 40116
Payables capital as quasi-capital ERERER 300l = - 4771 - - - - - M
Equity-Settled share-based payments 28LRAE
ERNAR = = = - - - 14789 - 14789
Share options lapsed BAuERE = = - = = = (1341) 1341 =
Total transactions with equity shareholders ~ EEREEAZRFEE 16,744 18,644 477 - - - 13,448 1,341 95,948
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZ-1E+ZA=1-H
R=Z-A"5-A-A 193,275 321,304* 65,11 156,931 658,719* (30,680)* AN+ (1,325,435) 41,692
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FR2ERA / (K8)
for the year £
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (68,234) (68,234)
Other comprehensive loss A2 EGE
Foreign currency translation differences SEREES - - - - - (14152) - - (1152)
Total other comprehensive loss Eft2EEELEE - - - - - (14152) - - (1152)
Total comprehensive income/(oss) 2EMA/(FR) 2% - - - - - (14152) - (68,234) (69,386)
Transactions with equity shareholders, BRRBEEALRS
recorded directly in equity RERERIR
Issuance of shares in respect of HARMENFRERA
payables capitalised 30(b)ii) 17,949 27822 (45,771) - - - - - -
Distribution relating to convertible securities ~ EATEREARBENH R 30(0) - (5,030) - - - - - - (5,030)
Equity-Settled share-based payments RGEENRD
RERMH = = = - - - 5,322 - 5322
Share options lapsed BNERE - - - - - - (1,949) 1,949 =
Total transactions with equity sharsholders ~ EUERHEAZRHEHE 17949 2,192 (48771) = = - 3378 1,949 9
At 31 December 2016 R-B-~E+-B=t-R 211,224 344,186* - 156,931 658,719* (31,832)* 25,000  (1,391,720)* (27.402)
*  These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of RMB395,557,000 (2015: *  ESEEES NN TSR A Z EALA R

RMB354,285,000) in the statement of financial position of the Company

Annual Report 2016 =& — XFFI{
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